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NOTICE OF 21* ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty First Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sun
Pharma Laboratories Limited will be held on Monday, 25™ September, 2017 at 10:45 a.m. at

the Registered Office of the Company at Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai — 400 063 at shorter notice to transact the following‘ business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including audited consolidated '

financial statements) of the Company for the financial year ended on 315 March, 2017 and the
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Toconsider declaration of dividend on Preference Shares

3. Toconsider declaration of dividend on Equity shares.

4. To appoint Director in place of Mr. Sailesh T Desai (DIN: 00005443), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

5. To consider and appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors

to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), SR B
C & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm’s Registration No. 324982E / E300003) be and
are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years to hold office from the conclusion of this 21* Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 26" Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration (exclusive of applicable taxes

and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses) as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Company in consultation with them”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ORDINARY
RESOLUTION: '

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
(including statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the
Notice of this Meeting payable to M/s. Kailash Sankhlecha & Associates, Cost Accountants,

appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records maintained by the Company for
the financial year2017-18.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee
thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, to execute all such
documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to this resolution



7. To consider amnd, if thought fit, to pass, the followmg resolution as an ORDINARY .
RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section- 152, 161 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Kalyanasundaram
Subramanian (DIN: 00179072), who was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of
Directors of the Company and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the

Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

the Companies

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendment or
modification thereof and subject to such other permissions/approvals as may be required, Mr.
Kalyanasundaram Subramanian (“Kal Sundaram™) , who is already appointed and acting as CEO India
Business and Emerging Market, as the Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company
fora period of 2 (two) years from his initial date of appointment i.e. February 13, 2017 to February 12,
2019 at the remuneration as recommended by Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board and on such terms and conditions (including the remuneration to be paid to him in the
event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period) as set out in the
terms of his appointment letter with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter, vary and modify the terms
and conditions of the said appointment and/or remuneration, in such manner as may be agreed to
between the Board of Directors and Mr. Kal Sundaram within and in accordance with the limit
prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment thereto and, if necessary, as
may be prescribed by the Central Government and subject to the approval of the Nomination &

Remuneration Committee and the approval of the shareholders as may be required, and agreed to
between the Board of Directors as may be acceptable to Mr. Kal Sundaram.

The main terms and conditions of Mr. Kal Sundaram’s appointment in addition to the terms and
conditions mentioned in the appointment letter shall be as under:

1. Subject to the supervision and control of the Board of Directors and subject to the provisions of

Compariies Act, 2013, the Whole-time Director will carry out such duties and exercise such powers
as may be entrusted to him by the Board of Directors. He is further authorised to do all such acts,
deeds, things and matter as may be required to do, as the Whole-time Director & CEO. Mr. Kal

Sundaram shall nerform such duties and exercise such powers as are additionally entrusted to him
by the Board.

2. The appointment of Mr. Kal Sundaram as the Whole-time Director of the Company would be subject
~ to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e. Mr. Kal Sundaram would be
Tiable to retire by rotation.
3.

The appointment as Whole-Time Director will be terminable as per the terms of appomtment letter
of Mr. Kal Sundaram or upon Mr. Kal Sundaram ceasing to be a Director of the Company

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian

~ shall be determined by the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the Nomination &

Remuneration Committee, from time to time within however, the maximum limit as set forth below



1. Salary (including bonus) and perquisites not exceeding Rs. 75,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five
Lakhs only) per month. He will be entitled to furnished/non furnished accommodation or house
rent allowance, gas, electricity, medical reimbursement, leave travel concession for self and
family, Company’s maintained car, telephones and such other allowances, benefits and
perquisites in accordance with the Company’s rules, and/or any other allowance, benefits and
perquisites as the Board may decide from time to time, the monetary value of such perquisites
to be determined in accordance with the Income-tax Rules, 1962.

2. Company’s contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund or annuity fund, gratuity
payment as per Company’s rules and encashment of leave at the end of his tenure shall not be
included in the computation of ceiling on remuneration and perquisites as aforesaid.

3. Minimum Remuneration: In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year
during the currency of tenure of Mr. Kal Sundaram as Whole-time Director & CEO, he shall be
entitled to receive a total remuneration including perquisites, etc. upto the limit as approved by the
members herein above, as minimum remuneration, subject to receipt of such approvals as may be
required, if any.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendments, modifications or relaxation
by the Central Government to Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorised to vary or increase the remuneration (including the minimum remuneration), i.e. the
salary, perquisites, allowances, etc. within such prescribed limit or ceiling and the aforesaid Appointment
letter of Mr. Kal Sundaram be suitably amended to give effect to such modification, relaxation or
variation, subject to such approvals as may be required under law;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to
take such steps as they may deem fit, expedient or desirable to give effect to this Resolution.”

9. To comsider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a2 SPECIAL
RESOLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, and pursuant to the
provisions of Section 42 of the Act read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to raise/borrow from time to time by way of issue of
nonconvertible securities including but not limited to bonds and/or non-convertible debentures
(NCDs) and / or money market instruments, in one or more tranches, on a private placement basis
as may be necessary, for a period of 1 (one) year from the date hereof, on such terms and
conditions including the price, coupon, premium / discount, tenor etc., as may be determined by
the Board of Directors (or any other person so authorized by the Board of Directors), based on the -
prevailing market conditions. '

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate amount to be raised through the issuance of
nonconvertible securities including but not limited to bonds and/or NCDs and / or money market
instruments in one or more tranches pursuant to the authority under this Resolution shall not
exceed the overall limit of Rs. 6,500 Crore (Rupees Six Thousand Five Hundred Crore only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, including any
Committee thereof or any other person so authorized by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute all such
agreements, documents, instruments, applications etc. as may be required, with power to settle all
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the aforesaid Resolution as it may in its
sole discretion deem fit and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any of the



Directors and/or Officers of the Company / any other person(s) authorized by them, to give effect
to this Resolution.”

10. To conmsider and, if thought f’ t, to pass the following resolution as ORDINARY
RESOLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions, if any, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors in case of loss or inadequate profit. for contributing and/or subscribing from time to time in
any financial year to any national, charitable, social, benevolent, public or general and other
funds/institutions/ hospitals/ trusts/entities whether or not directly relating to the business of the
Company or the welfare of its employees upto an aggregate amount of five per cent of the average net
profits of the Company during the three financial years immediately preceding or such sum as may be
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or the relevant regulations plus Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Fifty Crores only) in each financial year.”

11. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as ORDINARY
RESOLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof , for the time being in force), and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and
sanctions of other authorities as may be necessary, approval of the sharcholders be and is hereby
accorded to the Company to enter / continue to enter into transactions of sales and/ or purchase of
products or other transactions as the Board of Directors of the Company may deem fit and proper, from
time to time with Aditya Medisales Limited having CIN: U24230GJ1990PLC014535, (hereinafter
referred to as “AML”), which in the near future will become a related party of the Company in terms of
section 2(76) of the Act, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed to between the
Company and AML, subject to each transaction with AML being entered on an arm’s length basis
irrespective of whether the same is in the ordinary course of business or not;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any other person(s)
authorised by them, be and are hereby authorised to execute, deliver and perform such agreements,
contracts, deeds and other documents and deal with any matters, take necessary steps in the matter as
they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary or expedient and to do or cause to be done all such
acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any
transaction(s) with AML, and make such changes to the terms and conditions as may be considered
necessary, expedient or desirable and execute such addendum agreements, documents and writings and
to make such filings as may be necessary or desirable, in order to give effect to this Resolution, in the
best interest of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited,

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14™ September, 2017

Rachana Kokal -
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/1,

Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E),
Mumbai - 400063.

CIN: U25200MH1997PLC240268
Website: www.spll.co.



NOTES:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The relative Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1)of the Companies Act, 2013
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the 21% Annual General Meeting of the
Company (the “Meeting” or “AGM”) under Item Nos. 6 to 11 and for resolution relating to -
Appointment of Auditors under Item No. 5 of this Notice, is annexed hereto. The relevant details as
required under Clausel.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (S§S-2), in respect of the persons seeking appointment / re-

- appointment as Director and/or relating to remuneration of Directors is given under the heading
“Proﬁle of Directors” forming part of this Notice.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The proxy form duly completed must reach the Registered Office of the Company not later
than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explahatory Statement
are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working

. days except Saturdays between-11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General -

Meeting and at the venue of the Annual General Meeting during Meeting hours.

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 25% May, 2017, recommended a Dividend Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) per preference share of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each and Rs.
40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) per equity share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the same if declared at the Meeting will be
paid on or before Thursday, September 28, 2017 to the Company’s Equity Shareholders whose
names stand on the Register of Members on Monday, September 25, 2017 as Members of the
Company after giving effect to valid transfers in physical form lodged with the Company before
Monday, September 25, 2017. '



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as “the Act”), the
following Explanatory Statement sets out material facts relating to the Special business under Item
Nos. 6 to 11 of the accompanying Notice dated 14" day of September, 2017.

Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts for resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the
accompanying Notice relating to appointment of Auditors is also given hereunder.

Item No. 5:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and on completion of the term (including the cooling period of three
years granted under the Act) of the existing Statutory Auditors namely, Deloitte Haskins and Sells, LLP,
Chartered Accountants, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended
appointment of S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 324982E / E300003) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5(five) consecutive years to hold office from the
conclusion of this 21st Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 26th Annual General Meeting of
the Company at such remuneration (exclusive of applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses) as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with them.

Their appointment shall be subject to ratification by the members as may be applicable under the
provisions of the Act or rules made thereunder from time to time. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants have consented to act as Statutory Auditors and have confirmed that their appointment, if
made, would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act. They have also confirmed,
that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Auditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso to
Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 -and that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the-
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at item no. 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members
as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in anyway concerned or interested
in the above resolution.

Item No. 6

M/s. Kailash Sankhlecha & Associates, Cost Accountants, has been appointed as the Cost Auditors by the
Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of the Audit Committee for conducting audit of
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31% March, 2018 at a remuneration of Rs.
6,16,000/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Only) excluding reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
and applicable taxes.

In terms of provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, members’ ratification is required for remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor.

Therefore, consent of the members of the Company is sought for passing of an Ordinary Resolution as set
out at Item No. 6 for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year
ending 31% March, 2018. '

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at item no. 6 of the Notice for approval of the Members as
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in anyway concerned or interested
in the above resolution. '



Item No. 7 & 8

On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on February 13, 2017 has appointed
Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian (‘Mr. Kal’) as an Additional Director effective from February 13,
2017. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kal holds office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors at the same meeting had also appointed Mr. Kal
as a Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO?’), for a period of two years effective from
February 13, 2017 to February 12, 2019 on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in-
the resolution Nos. 7 & 8, subject to approval of the members of the Company.

As required under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received a Notice along with
requisite deposit from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Kal for his appointment as Director of
the Company. Mr. Kal fulfils all the conditions given under section 196(3) and Schedule —V to the
Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible for his appointment. He is not disqualified in terms of section 164
of the Companies Act, 2013 from being appointed as Director and has given his consent to act as Director.

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements
of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The copy of the appointment letter of Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian is available for inspection by any
member of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays
between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting during Meeting hours.

Profile and other particulars of Mr. Kal, as required under the Secretarial Standard on General Meeting
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are provided under heading “PROFILE OF
DIRECTORS” forming part of this Notice.

The members’ approval is being sought for appointment and remuneration of Mr. Kal as a Whole-time
Director of the Company for a period of two years effective from February 13, 2017 to February 12, 2019
in terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Further the Members may note that, Mr. Kal has also been appointed as the CEO & Whole-time Director of
" Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, Holding Company at its Board meeting held on February 14, 2017
for a period of two (2) years i.e. from February 14, 2017 to February 13, 2019 at nil remuneration.

The Board recommends the Resolutions set out at item no. 7 and 8 of the Notice for approval of the
Members as Ordinary Resolutions. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives,
except Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian to whom resolutions relates, are in anyway concerned or
interested in the above resolutions. :

Item No. 9

As and when required, the Company may enable Board of Directors to raise funds by issuing of non-
convertible securities including but not limited to bonds and/or non-convertible debentures (NCDs)
and/or Money Market instruments, in one or more tranches from time to time.

Pursuant to Section 42 of the Act, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to obtain approval of its members by way of a

“special resolution, before making any offer or invitation to subscribe securities to be issued on a

private placement basis. The said approval shall be the basis for the Board to determine the terms and
conditions of any issuance of bonds and/or NCDs and / or money market instruments by the Company
for a period of 1 year from the date on which the members have provided the approval by way of the



special resolution.

The members at the 20 Annual General Meeting held on 11" August, 2016, had approved the issue
of NCDs and / or money market instruments in one or more tranches, on private placement basis as
may be necessary, upto Rs. 6500 Crore (Rupees Six Thousand Five Hundred Crore only). However,
_“the validity of resolution is only for a year. Therefore, consent of the shareholders is once again
‘being sought.

The Company has already raised Rs. 10,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crore) by allotment on
Private Placement Basis, 10,000 (Ten Thousand) Rated Unsecured, Listed Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures of Face Value Of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each for cash at par, under two
series with Series 1 Debentures Comprising of 5,000 Debentures and Series 2 Debentures Comprising of
5,000 Debentures.

The proposed Special Resolution is intended to give authority to the Board of Directors for the issue
of such securities as may be required from time to time in terms of the Resolution.

Your Directors recommend the passing of the Resolution in Item No. 9 of the Notice as a Special
~ Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives of the Company are in anyway
concerned or interested in this Resolution. '

Item No. 10

Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013 enables the Company to make contributions to charitable and
other funds, subject to the approval of the members in general meeting in case such contribution exceeds 5
per cent of the Company’s average net profits for 3 immediately preceding financial years. Consequently,
the Board of Directors of the Company proposes the above resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for
approval of the members for making contribution up to an aggregate amount of five per cent of the average
net profits of the Company during the three financial years immediately preceding or such sum as may be
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or the relevant regulations plus Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty
Crores only) in each financial year. This is to enable the Company to contribute necessary amounts in the
interest of Company and society.

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item no. 10 of the Notice as an Ordmary Resolttion,
for approval of the Members

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in anyway concerned or interested
in the above resolution.

Item No. 11

Shanghvi Finance Private Limited (“SFPL”) in which Mr. Dilip S. Shanghvi, the Promoter and Managing
Director of the Holding Company (Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (SPIL)) alongwith his spouse is
having 100% shareholding, has initiated a merger of his certain entities with SFPL (hereinafter referred to
as ‘Merger’) out of which, some entities are inter alia sharcholders of Aditya Medisales Limited.

Aditya Medisales Limited (“AML”), having CIN: U24230GJ1990PLC014535 is a public limited company,
incorporated on October 06, 1990 under the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 402, 4th
Floor, R.K. Centre, Fatehgunj Main Road, Vadodara — 390 002. AML is primarily engaged in the trading of
pharmaceutical products.

Subsequent to receipt of approval(s) of Merger by the regulatory authorities and completion of necessary
formalities of Merger, AML will become a direct subsidiary of SFPL. On AML becoming direct subsidiary
of SFPL, it will become a related party of the Company from the effective date of the Merger as defined
under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). The Merger is expected to be completed
before the end of financial year 2017-18.



Presently thé Company is having transactions with AML, and on AML becoming a related party, the
Company is expected to continue having transactions with AML which may fall in the ambit of material
related party transactions.

The Company in its ordinary course of business, sells its products to AML, which further sells the same in
Indian domestic market to wholesalers, stockist and others. In the Financial year 2016-17, transactions with
AML amounted to around Rs. 5600 Crores (Five Thousand Six Hundred Crore) comprising predominantly
of sales. The material transaction threshold as provided under the Act, for transactions not in ordinary
course of Business with any related Party(ies) is 10% of the turnover of the Company as per the last audited
financial statements or Rs. 100 Crores whichever is lower. The turnover of the Company as per the draft
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 was Rs.5322.8 Crore. Considering
the turnover of 2016-17, related party transactions not in ordinary course and in excess of Rs. 532.28 crore
(i..10% of turnover) or Rs. 100 Crore whichever is lower i.e. related party transactions not in ordinary
course and in excess of Rs. 100 crore will require prior approval from the Audit Committee, Board of
Directors and Members of the Company. In case the volume of related party tranaction(s) with AML which
are not in ordinary course of business crosses the above mentioned threshold, the transaction(s) with AML
will require approval from the shareholders of the Company.

The transactions with AML will be carried out on the basis of business requirements whether and will be
entered on an arm’s length basis irrespective of whether the said transactions are in the ordinary course of
business or not and hence the approval from the shareholders of the Company is required in terms of
Section 188 of the Act.

Therefore, pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Act, it is proposed to obtain prior approval of the
shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution for material transactions entered/ to be entered with AML, on
AML becoming a related party of the Company. .

The particulars of the transaction(s) pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and the Compames
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as under:

Sr. | Particulars Information
no. .
1 | Name of the Related Party Aditya Medisales Limited
2 | Name of Director(s) or Mr. Sudhir V. Valia being brother in law of Mr. Dilip S. Shanghvi the

Key Managerial Personnel who is
related

Promoter and Managing Director of the Holding Company (Sun
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (SPIL)) may be considered as
interested in the Resolution.

Nature of Relationship

Shanghvi Finance Private Limited (“SFPL”) in which Mr. Dilip S.
Shanghvi, the Promoter and Managing Director of the Holding
Company (Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (SPIL)) , alongwith
his spouse is having 100% sharcholding, has initiated a merger of
certain entities with SFPL out of which, some entities are inter alia
shareholders of Aditya Medisales Limited.

Subsequent to receipt of approval(s) of Merger by the regulatory
authorities and completion of necessary formalities of merger, AML
will become a direct subsidiary of SFPL. On AML becoming a direct
subsidiary of SFPL, it will become a related party of the Company
from the effective date of the Merger.

10




4 | Nature, material terms and
particulars of the contract or
arrangement

Nature of transactions: All transactions to be carried out based on

business requirements of the Company shall be entered on an arm’s

length basis irrespective of whether the same is in the ordinary course

of business or not. The transactions to be carried out between the

Company and AML will be predominantly of sales, and other nominal
transactions such as purchases or supply of goods or materials,

availing or rendering of services, leasing of property of any kind or

other transaction as may be deem fit by the Audit Committee and

Board of Directors of the Company.

Term of the approval: For a period of five years from the date of this
21* Annual General Meeting till the date of 26™ Annual General
Meeting.

5 | Monetary Value

The transactions upto Rs. 12000 crores in the first financial year to be
ended on March 31, 2018 with increase in value and volume of the
transactions in the subsequent financial years.

6 | Whether the transactions have Yes
been approved by Audit
Committee and the Board of
Directors

7 | Any other information relevant or | None

for the Members to make a
decision on the proposed
transactions

The Board is of the opinion that the aforesaid related party transaction(s) is in the best interest of the

Company.

The members’ approval is being sought for approval of the transactions to be entered with AML under
Section 188 of the Act or any other provisions of the Act. Further, in terms of provisions of the Act, all
related party(ies) will abstain from voting on this resolution as set out at Item no. 11 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item No.11 of the Notice for the approval of the
Members as an Ordinary Resolution. Mr. Sudhir V. Valia, Director, being brother-in-law of Mr.Dilip S.
Shanghvi (Promoter and Managing Director of SPIL) is concerned or interested in this resolution. Relatives
of Mr. Sudhir V. Valia may also be deemed to be interested in this resolution.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution as set out at Item no. 11 of the Notice.

| By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited,

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14™ September, 2017

Rachana Kokal
Company Secretary
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

(Details of Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed)
As required under Secretarial Standard - 2, the particulars of Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian and Mr. Sailesh T. Desai who are
proposed to be appointed at this 21¥ Annual General Meeting, are given below:

The details of Board and Committee Meetings attended by these Directors during the year 2016-17 are stated in the Board’s Report

which forms part of the Annual Report.

The details of remuneration, wherever applicable, are provided in the respective resolution(s) and in the respective Explanatory

Statement(s).

Particulars Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian (Kal) Mr. Sailesh T. Desai
Age 63 years 62 Years

Brief resume of the Director | Mr. Kal joined Sun Pharmaceutical

including nature of expertise in
specific functional areas

Industries Limited (SPIL) in January 2010
after 22 years with GSK in various parts of
the world.

Mr. Kal is a Chemistry graduate and a
Chartered Accountant from India with 37
years of experience of which some 30 years
in the pharmaceutical industry.

Mr. Kal’s career in Pharma industry began
when he joined Burroughs Wellcome, in
New Zealand as Commercial Advisor in
1988. His long and varied career with
Burroughs Wellcome in New Zealand
which was acquired by Glaxo to become
GlaxoWellcome and finally
GlaxoSmithKline, includes assignments as
Vice President, head of Classic Brands
business of Emerging Markets; Area
Director South Asia & Managing Director,
GSK India; Managing Director -
GlaxoWellcome, Singapore (Singapore,
Indochina & Myanmar). Commercial
Director - Burroughs Wellcome, New
Zealand.

In 2010, Mr. Kal Joined SPIL as the
Whole-Time Director & to manage India
and Emerging Markets (EM) of SPIL. Mr.
Kal was instrumental in Merck (MSD) and
SPIL:  collaboration and spearheaded
opening of SPIL operations in few
important markets such as Japan, MENA.

In 2012, Mr, Kal resigned as Director of
SPIL, and moved to USA as Director &
CEO of Taro, subsidiary of SPIL, to assume

responsibility for Taro operations in North

America.

In Jan 2017, Mr. Kal moved back to India
to manage India and EM regions of SPIL.
He has also been appointed as Whole-Time
Director of SPIL without remuneration
w.e.f 14" February, 2017.

Mr. Sailesh T. Desai is a science graduate from
Kolkata University and is a successful entrepreneur
with more than three decades of wide industrial
experience including more than two decades in the
pharmaceutical industry. - '

Date of First appointment on the
Board

13" February, 2017

30™ October, 2012

Directorship held in other companies
(excluding foreign companies &
section 8 companies)

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited
Universal Enterprises Private Limited

(singly or jointly as first holder) as
on 31* March, 2017

Membership / Chairmanships of | N, Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited — Allotment
Committees of other public Committee

Companies

Inter-se  Relationship  between | NIL NIL

Directors

No. of Shares held in the Company | NIL 1 share jointly with Sun Pharmaceutical Industries

Limited and as a nominee of Sun Pharmaceutical
Industries Limited
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LTD. ;
Registered Office: Sun House, CTS No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon-East, "

Mumbai - 400 063, India.. Tel Nos: 02243244324
CIN: U25200MH1997PLC240268 SHARMA
ATTENDANCE SLIP

TWENTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING oF THE COMPANY AT 10:45 AM. ON MONDAY, 25™ SEPTEMBER, 2017
AT SUN HOUSE, CTS NO. 201 B/1, WESTERN EXPRESS HIGHWAY, GOREGAON-EAST, MUMBALI - 400 063,

Sr. No.

Folio/D.P. & Client L.D. No.
Name
Address

Joint Holder (s)

1 /We hereby record my presence at the TWENTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at 10:45 a.m. on 25" September,
2017 at Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon-East, Mumbai - 400 063. )

Signature of the Attending Member:

Signature of Proxy:
NOTES:

(1) Shareholder/ Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting and hand over at the entrance duly signed.
(2) Shareholder/ Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/her copy of the Notice for reference at the meeting.

SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LTD.
Registered Office: Sun House, CTS No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon-East, @
Mumbai - 400 063, India..Tel Nos: 02243244324
CIN: U25200MH1997PLC240268
PROXY FORM

© PHARMA
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
) Administration) Rules, 2014/

Name of the member(s)

Registered address

No. of Shares held

Folio No/ DP Id & Client Id

Joint Holder (s)
E-mail Id

[/We, being the member (s) of

shares of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited, hereby appoint:

1.Name:...

or failing him / her

reee SEENALUIE: ..ottt or failing him / her
3.Name: : :

E-mail Id: ... SIgnature: ........oooveiiiiiii e

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TWENTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the

Company at 10:45 a.m. on Monday, 25" September, 2017 at Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon-East,
Mumbai - 400 063. )

Affix
Signature of Shareholder: ..............ccoooriiiniiiiiinnnn Signed this.............. dayof.....c..coeeennenn 2017 g;‘r’::“:f
Signature of Proxy holder(s): ............ccccereneeee. e Re.1/-

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registerled Office of the Company at Sun

House, Plot No. 201 B/1, Western Express Highway, Goregaon-East, Mumbai - 400 063 not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before
commencement of the Meeting.
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members of,
SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED,

Your Directors Present the Twenty First Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 3 18 March, 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rs. in Millions)
Particulars 4 Standalone Consolidation
2016-17 2015-16 | 2016-17 2015-16
Total — Revenue 53,228.9 47,093.0 53,2289 | 47,093.0
Profit Before Tax 9,691.0 7,877.5 9,677.70 | 7,876.90
Tax Expense: '
-Current Tax 2,100.0 1,560.0 2,100.0 1,560.0
-Deferred Tax Charge / Credit _ 6.7 60.6 6.7 60.6
(Loss) / Profit after tax_ : 7,5843 |  6,256.9
:;:(iti :ti:;:r Tax before Share in profit / (10ss) of . .7.571.00 6’2 56.3 0‘
Share of Profit of Associates . 2.5 0.0
Total Other Comprehensive Income -107.0 -79.6 -107.1 -79.6
Total Comprehensive Income 7,477.3 6,177.3
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
attributable to: .

-Owners of the Company 7,466.4 6,176.7
Opening balance in Retained Earnings 5,698.1 562.5 5,691.20 556.20
Amount available for appropriation
Dividend on Equity Shares -2,000.0 -2,000.0
Dividend on Preference Shares -40.0 -40.0
Corporate Dividend tax ' -415.3 -415.3
Transfer to various Reserves: _ -

-Debenture redemption Reserve . -1,041.7 -1,041.7 -1,041.7 | -1,041.70
Closing balance in Retained Earnings 9,678.4 5,698.1 9,660.7 5,691.2

Figures for Financial Year 2015-16 of Stand alone financial statement have been restated as per Ind AS and therefore may not be

comparable with financials for Financial Year 2015-16 approved by the Directors and disclosed in the Financial Statement of previous
year.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the current year of operation, the Company on Standalone basis has registered a growth in the total
income from Rs. 50,868.9 Million to Rs.55,515.4 Million due to increase in sales. Therefore, the profit
before tax has increased from Rs. 7,877.5 Million to Rs. 9,691.0 Million. Consequently, the Company has
registered profit after tax of Rs. 7,584.3 Million. The contribution of subsidiaries and associates in
consolidation is minor as reflected in the Financial Results.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have recommended dividend of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) per preference share
of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each and Rs. 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) per equity
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share of Rs: 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each for the year ended on 318 March, 2017, subject to approval
of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 1041.7 Million from Profit & Loss Account to
Debenture Redemption Reserve Account. “

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Sailesh T Desai, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself

for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Directors recommend his
appointment. '

With effect from 10® November, 2016, Mr. Abhay Gandhi resigned as Whole time Director & CEO of the
Company due to his shifting to United States of America to look after business of another subsidiary
company of Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited i.e. the Holding Company of Sun Pharma Laboratories
Limited. Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian was appointed as an Additional Director of the

Company, Whole-Time Director & CEO w.e.f. 13th February, 2017 as per the provisions of Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and he shall hold the office upto the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The Board recommends appointment and remuneration of Mr. Kalyanasundaram
Subramanian as a Whole-time Director & CEO of the Company for a period of 2 (Two) years upto 12®
February, 2019, for approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Uday Baldota, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, has resigned as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f.
19" June, 2017 to assume office as Chief Executive Officer of Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, a
subsidiary of the Holding Company, Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited. Mr. C.S. Muralidharan is
proposed to be apgointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 19® June, 2017 at the Adjourned Board Meeting
to be held on 26" May, 2017 with nil remuneration from the Company. Mr. C.S. Muralidharan is alse
proposed to be appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Holding Company, Sun Pharmaceutical
Industries Limited w.e.f. June 19, 2017 at their Board Meeting to be held on 26" May, 2017

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Compaﬂy

confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under section 134(5) read with section 134(3)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 318 March, 2017 , the

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March, 2017 and of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on thatdate; .

¢) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company



and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

¢) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Dﬁrectors of the Comﬁ)any met Four(4) times dmﬁ g the previous financial year on 30th
May, 2016, 1t August, 2016, 9t November, 2016 and 1t February, 2016. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is given below:

Name of the Director - Number of Board meetings held Number of Board

during the tenure of respective meetings attended
Director

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian* 1 1

Mr. Sudhir Valia 4 4

Mr. Sailesh Desai 4 4

Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha 4 4

Ms. Rekha Sethi 4 4

Mr. Naresh Chand Singhal 4 3

Mr. Abhay Gandhi** 3 3

* Appointed w.e.f.13t.n February, 2017
**Upto 10" November, 2016

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE |

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of three Directors viz. Mr.
S. Mohanchand Dadha, Mr. Sailesh Desai and Ms. Rekha Sethi. Ms. Rachana Kokal, Company
Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of theCommittee.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met four times(4) during the previous fihancial year on

30thMay, 2016, 11t August , 2016, 9™ November, 2016 and 13thFebruary , 2017. The attendance of

each Member of the Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Chairman / Number of meetings | Number of
Member held during thetenure| Committee meetings
of the respective attended
members
Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha Chairman
Mr. Sailesh Desai Member
Ms. Rekha Sethi Member
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
identifies persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities
required for the position and also takes into consideration recommendation, if any, received from
any member of the Board. The Committee also ensures that the incumbent fulfills such other
criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or
other applicable laws. ‘

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a
policy for selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors & Senior Management.

The Key highlights of the Remuneration Policy of the Company are as follows:

A. Guiding Principles for remuneration; The Company shall remunerate all its personnei

reasonably and sufficiently as per industry benchmarks and standards. The remuneration
shall be commensurate to retain and motivate the human resources of the Company. The
compensation package will, inter alia, take into account the experience of the personnel,
the knowledge & skill required including complexity of his job, work duration and risks
associated with the work, and attitude of the worker like, positive outlook, team work,
loyalty etc.

B. Components of Remuneration: The following will be the various remuneration

components which may be paid to the personnel of the Company based on the
designation and class of the personnel.

a.

€.

f.

Fixed compensation: The fixed salaries of the Company’s personnel shall be
competitive and based on the individual personnel’s responsibilities and performance.

. Variable compensation: The personnel of the Company may be paid remuneration by

way of variable salaries based on their performance evaluation. Such variable salaries
should be based on the performance of the individual against his short and long term
performance objectives and the performance of the Company.

Share based payments: The Board may, on the recommendation of the NRC, issue to
certain class of personnel a share and share price related incentive program.

. Non-monetary benefits: Senior management personnel of the Company may, on a

case to case basis, be awarded customary non-monetary benefits such as discounted
salary advance / credit facility, rent free accommodation, Company cars with or
without chauffer’s, share and share price related incentive, reimbursement of electrify
and telephone billsetc.

Gratuity/group insurance: Personnel may also be awarded to group insurance and
other key man insurance protection. Further as required by the law necessary gratuity
shall be paid to the personnel. ‘

Commission: The directors may be paid commission if approved by the shareholders.
The shareholders may authorise the Board to declare commission to be paid to any
director of the Board.

C. Entitlement: The authority to determine the entitlement to various components as
aforesaid for each class and designation of personnel shall be as follows:
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Designation/Class To be determined by

Director Members on recommendation of NRC and the Board.
Key Managerial Personnel other than | Human Resources Head

Directors

Other employees Human Resources Head

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

During the year, the evaluation of the annual performance of individual directors including
Independent Directors, Board and Committees of the Board was carried out under the provisions
of the Act and relevant Rules and the circular issued by SEBI dated January 5, 2017 with respect
to Guidance Note on Board Evaluation. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had
approved the indicative criteria for the evaluation based on the SEBI Guidance Note on Board
Evaluation.

The Chairman of the Board Meeting at which the matter was discussed and the Chairman of Audit and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting, i.e. Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha interacted with
each Directqr individually, for evaluation of performance of the individual directors.

The evaluation for the performance of the Board as a whole and of the Committees was conducted by
questionnaires.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non Independent Directors and
performance of the Board as a whole was evaluated.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors
on the basis of various criteria such as structure and diversity of the Board, experience of Director,
strategy and performance evaluation, secretarial support, evaluation of risk, evaluation of performance
of the management and feedback, independence of the management from the Board etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee members on the basis of criteria such as mandate and composition, effectiveness of the
committee, structure of the committee and meetings, independence of the committee from the Board
and contribution to decisions of the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed
the performance of the individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as knowledge and
competency, fulfillment of functions, availability and attendance, initiative integrity contribution and
commitment, independence, independent views and judgement etc.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company recognises that employees are the most valuable resource and endeavors to enable its
employees to meet business requirements while meeting their career aspirations. The Human Resource
agenda continues to support the business in achieving sustainable and responsible growth by building the
right capabilities in the organisation. It continues to focus on progressive employee relations policies and
building a high-performance culture with a growth mind-set where employees are engaged, productive and
efficient. The Company has a dedicated human capital of around 6500 employees at various locations
across our Registered Office, active Manufacturing locations, dedicated Sales Professionals across various
geographies. Your Directors would also like to take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the
hard work and commitment of the employees of the Company and look forward to their continued
contribution. Information as per Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in “Annexure A” to
this report. Further, the information pertaining to 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, pertaining to the names and other particulars of
employees is available for inspection at the Registered office of the Company during business hours and
pursuant to the proviso to' Section 136 (1) of the Act, the report and the accounts are being sent to the
memibers excluding this. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to
the Company Secretary at Registered office address of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, integrity and
ethical behaviour in all its operations, the Company has made the Whistle Blower Policy of Sun
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (SPIL) applicable to the Company, since it is a wholly owned
subsidiary of SPIL. This Whistleblower Policy aspires to encourage all employees to report suspected
or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, unethical or inappropriate events (behaviours or practices) that
affect Company’s interest / image. The same is available on the website of the Company i.e.

www.spll.co.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every
individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices. It is the continuous
endeavor of the Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its
employees that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. SPIL has
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at work place in line
with the provisions of the Sexual harrasment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal)Act,2013 and the Rules thereunder for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment at workplace which is applicable to its subsidiaries and consequently applicable to the
Company. The Company arranged various interactive awareness workshops in this regard for the
employees in the manufacturing sites & Registered Office during the financial year. The Company
submitted the Annual returns to the local authorities under the above mentioned act. During the year

ended 315" March 2017, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of the Company was re-constituted on llth February, 2016 and comprises of
four Directors viz. Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha, Mr. Sudhir V. Valia, Ms. Rekha Sethi and Mr. Naresh
Chand Singhal. Ms. Rachana Kokal, Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of Audit
Committee. '

The Audit Committee met four (4) times duiing the previous financial year on 30th May, 2016, 11th
August , 2016, 9t November , 2016 and 13t ebruary , 2017. The attendance of each Member of the

Comnmittee is given below:

Name of the Director Chairman / Number of meetings held | Number of
Member during the tenure of the | Committee
respective members meetings attended
Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha ' Chairman 4 4
Mr. Sudhir V. Valia Member 4 4
Ms. Rekha Sethi Member 4 4
Mr. Naresh Chand Singhal Member 4 3
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act') in prescribed form MGT-9 is enclosed as “Annexure B” to this report

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company’s Auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm’s Regn No.
117366 W/W-100018), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of three years
at the 18® Annual General Meeting of the Company, and they shall retire at the conclusion of the ensuring
21* Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2017, has been issued with an unmodified opinion, by the Statutory Auditors. The Board of
Directors placed on record their appreciation for the retiring auditors.

The Board of Directors of the Company had proposed and recommended the appointment of M/s. SR B C
& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003) as the statutory auditors of
the Company for a period of 5(Five) years from the conclusion of 21* Annual General Meeting of the
Company, upto the conclusion of the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject to approval of
members at the ensuing 21* Annual General Meeting and ratification by members at every Annual General
Meeting of the Company, if required by Companies Act, 2013. M/s. S R B C & Co LLP, Chartered

Accountants, have confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder
for the appointment as Auditors of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
Messrs C. J. Goswami & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure
C”.The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

COST AUDITORS

The Company has appointed Messers Kailash Sankhlecha & Associates, Cost Accountants, Vadodara

as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting Cost Audit in respect of Pharmaceutical Formulations
of your Company for the Year2017-18.

LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

- All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the

related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis except one. As the contract
which was not in ordinary course was not material, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC 2 is not applicable for the current year.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place well defined and adequate internal financial control framework. During the
year, such controls were tested and no material weakness in their design or operation were observed.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At the beginning of the year, the Committee comprised of Mr. Sudhir V. Valia, Mr. Abhay Gandhi
and Ms. Rekha Sethi. During the year the Committee was re-constituted and now comprises of three
Directors viz. Mr. Sudhir V., Valia, Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian and Ms. Rekha Sethi. Ms.
Rachana Kokal, Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the said Committee.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met on 30™ May, 2016 and 13™ February, 2017,
during the year. The attendance of each Member of the Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Chairman/ | Number of meetings held | Number of Committee

Member during the tenure of the | meetings attended
respective members o

Mr. Sudhir V. Valia Chairman 2

Ms. Rekha Sethi Member 2

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Member 1 1

Subramanian*

Mr. Abhay Gandhi ** Member 1 |

* Appointed w.e.f. 13Ih February, 2017
**Upto 10" November, 2016

The contents of the CSR Policy of the Company as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed on the Company’s website www.spll.co. '

During the year, the Company carried out a detailed assessment of the additional areas where the CSR
activities should be focused so as to maximise societal good. Based on interactions with a wide cross
section of stakeholders - internal and external — the Company has added areas for its CSR activity(ies). Due
to the time taken to identify the additional areas, the Company was able to spend on CSR an amount of Rs.
71.96 Million only during the year as against Rs. 107.75 Million which is the requirement as per the Act..
In the current year the Company endeavors to increase the spending on CSR and be in line with the norms
in this area

The details of the Corporate Social Responsibility activities undertaken' and cxpenditufe incurred
thereon by the Company and brief details on the CSR activities are given in “Annexure D”.

+

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the
previous year which may impact the going concern status of the Company’s operation in the
future.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the Public during the year under review, under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.
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CONSERV_AIION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as “Annexure E”.

SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of the Company’s subsidiaries/
joint ventures/ associate companies of the Company is given in Form AOC - 1, which forms a part of this
Annual Report.

The highlights of performance of subsidiaries and associate companies and their contribution to the overall
performance of the Company during the financial year is given under Annexure A of the Consolidated
Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.

Details pertaining to companies that became subsidiaries/ jdint ventures /associates and those that ceased to
be the subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates of the Company during the year are provided in Note 36 of the
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, forming part of this Annual Report.

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 has been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 together with the comparative period data as at and for the previous year ended March 31,

2016. Further, the Company has prepared the opening consolidated balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 (the
transition date) in accordance with Ind AS.

CREDIT RATING

ICRA Ltd. has assigned the highest credit rating of ‘ICRA Al+’/‘ICRA AAA (Stable)’ for the bank
facilities and long term/short term borrowings of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board members about the existing risk assessment
framework which includes inter-alia identification of critical risks, assessment of likelihood and
impact, mitigating actions taken by the management and periodic review to ensure that such risks are
either eliminated or their impact minimized.
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Your Directors wish to thank all stakeholders, employees and business partners, Company’s bankers,
medical profession and business associates for their continued support and valuable cooperation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian Sudhir V. Valia
Whole-Time Director & CEO (00179072) Director (00005561)

. Place: Montreal A Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2017 Date: 25th May, 2017
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ANNEXURE A

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

5(1)

OF THE COMPANIES

(APPOINTMENT AND

i) Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year 2016-17 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial year 2016-17:

Name of Director

Designation

| Ratio of
" remuneration®* of
" each Director to
; median

" remuneration of

% ' increase /
(decrease) in
Remuneration in
the Financial Year
2016-17

|

- employees
Mr. Sudhir V. Valia Non-Executive Director 0.43 233.33
Mr. Sailesh T. Desai Non-Executive Director 0.34 100.00
Mr. S. Mohanchand Dadha  [Non-executive, 0.56 85.71
. |Independent Director ’
Mr. Naresh Chand Singhal Non-executive, 0.30 133.33
Independent Director ;
Ms. Rekha Sethi Non-executive, 0.64 87.50
Independent Director
Mr. Abhay Gandhi ** Whole-Time Director & 92.87 13.00%
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kalyanasundaram Whole-Time Director & i 102.16 NA
Subramanian *** Chief Executive Officer
|
| . :
Mr. Uday Baldota *kk Chief Financial Officer i NA NA
Ms. Rachana Kokal Company Secretary NA 15.31%

* Remuneration to Non Executive Directors consists only of sitting fees and is based on the number of
meetings attended during the year. ‘
**Upto 10* November, 2016. Remuneration (Cost to the Company) has been considered on
annualized basis.

%k

*%

* Appointed w.e.f.13th

February, 2017. Therefore, the increase cannot be given.Remuneration (Cost
to the Company) has been considered on annualized basis.

**Mr. Uday Baldota, Chief Financial Officer is not paid any remuneration from the Company.
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(i) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financialAyear
2016-17:668%

(iii) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 315t March, 2017: 6504

(iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the -
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile .
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentage increase in salary of employees other than Key Managerial Personnel: 14.50%
Average percentage increase in salary of Key Managerial Personnel: 14.15% (Remuneration (Cost
to the Company) has been considered on annualized basis.)

(v) Tt is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the as per the Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

Note: All the details of remuneration given above are as per CTC, and the ratios are calculated

on that basis.

» For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian Sudhir V. Valia
Whole-Time Director & CEO (00179072) Director (00005561)

Place: Montreal Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2017 Date: 25th May, 2017
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ANNEXURE B

FORM MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended 31.03.2017

Pursuant to section 92(3) o f the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Adminisstration Rules), 2014

i)
i)
iii)
iv)

vi)
vii)

REGISTRATIONAND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN:

Registration date:
Name of the Company:

- Category/ Sub-category ofthe Company:

Address of the Registered Office and

Contact details:

Whether listed company:
Name , Address , and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent:
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U25200MH1997PLC240268

January 17,1997
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
Company Limited By Shares

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/1, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai
Contact no: 022-43244324

Yes

(For Debt Securities Only)

Link Intime (India) Private Limited,
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083
Tel No: +91 22 49186000



PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

I
Sr.No| Name of the Company Address | CIN/GLN Holding/ % Applicabl
Subsidiary/ | of e Section
Associate shar
es
1 Sun Pharmaceutical India 1.24230GJ1993PLC0190| Holding 100% 2(46)
Industries Limited 50
2 Universal Enterprises India - N.A. Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)
Private Limited
3 Sun Pharmaceutical India U36900GJ2017PLC0951| Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)
Medicare Limited 32
4 |'Trumpcard Advisors and India AAH-6275 Associate 40.61% 2(6)
Finvest LLP
Generic Solar Power LLP | India AAE-7937 Associate 28.76% 2(6)
5

II1 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise shareholding

i)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of| No. of Shares held at the end of the year| %
Shareholders the year Chang
Dem |Physica | Total % of Dema |Physical | Total % of ¢
at 1 Total t Total during
Share Shares the
A | Promoter* :
1) | Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) | Individual/ 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
HUF
b) | Central . 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 . 0.00%
Government/
State
Government A
¢) | Bodies 0 | 50000* | 50000* | 100.00% 0 50000* | 50000* 0.00%
Corporate
d) | Financial 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0
Institutions/
Bank
e) | Any other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Sub total (A) (1) 0 50000* | 50000* | 100.00% 0 50000* | 50000* 0.00% NIL
2) | Foreign 0 0 0.00% 0 0 -0 0.00%
a) | Individuals 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
(NRIs)
b) | Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Individuals
¢) | Bodies 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Corporate ' :
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0.00%

d) | Financial 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Institutions/
Bank
e) | Any other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Sub total (A)(2) 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total shareholding 50000* | 50000* 100.00% 50000* 50000* | 0.00%
of Promoter & '
Promoter group Y
(A)=(A)Y(1)+(A)2)
(B) | Public 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Shareholding ’ _
1) Institutions 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 = 0.00%
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
b) Financial 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Institutions/
Bank
c) Central 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Government/
State
Govsrnmaent
d) Venture 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Capital Funds
e) | Insurance 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Companies : -
f) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
g) | Foreign 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
‘Venture
Capital
h) Qualified 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Foreign
Investors
i) Any other 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
(specify) '
Sub total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
2) Non- 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 ) 0.00%
Institutions
a) Bodies 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Corporate
i) Indian 0 0 0 0.00% 0 -0 0 0.00%
ii) | Overseas 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
i) | Individual 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%

shareholders
holding
nominal share
‘capital upto

Ak B P2 75 N
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ii) | Individual. 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
shareholders ‘
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of *1
¢) | Others 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
(specify)
i) | Non Resident 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Indians
(Repat) .
ii) | Non Resident 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Indians
(Non-Repat)
iii) | Qualified 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Foreign
Investors
iv) | Clearing 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Member
r . .
v) | Directors/ 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Relatives .
vi) | Trusts , 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
vii) | Foreign 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Portfolio
Investor
(Cnrnaratal) _
viii) | Overseas 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Corporate
Baodies i
ix) | Foreign : 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Nationals . ‘
Sub total (B) (2) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Total Public : 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
shareholding
Public Group
L(B)= (BYD+HBU2) '
©) . 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0.00%
Shares held by
Custodian for
CDDRe £ ANDo
GRAND TOTAL 0 50000 50000 100.00% 0 50000 50000 |- 100.00
(AHB)HC) * * * * %

* Including 6 shares held by nominees for and on behalf of Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (SPIL) jointly with
SPIL
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ii)  Shareholding of Promoters
Sr | Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of | Share holding at the end of the year| % change
N Name the year in share
No. of % of %of No. of | % of total | %of Shares| holding
Share total Shares Shares | Shares of | Pledged/ | during the
s Shares Pledged / the : encumbered| year
of the encumbe company to total
company red to shares
total '
1 | Sun Pharmaceutical | 50000* 100% NIL 50000* 100% NIL NIL
Industries Limited :

* Including 6 shares held by nominees for and on behalf of SPIL, jointly with SPIL

iii) Changein Promoters’ Shareholding
Sr. | Name of the Promoter | Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No | Sun Pharmaceutical ‘No. of % of total No. of shares % of total Shares of
Industries Limited* shares Shares of the 4 the Company
1 At the beginning of the 50000 100.0 N.A N.A
| year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons ~No
for increase Changes
/decrease (e.g. allotment
At the end of the year N.A N.A 50000 100.00

*Six Individual shareholders are holding 1 equity share each jointly with SPIL for and on behalf of SPIL as a nominee of
SPIL ,

iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
"ADRs):.

2

Cumulative Shareholding

uring the vear
No. of shares

Shareholding at the beginning of the

year

No. of

shares
NA

For Each of the top 10
shareholders*

Sr.
no.

% of total Shares

of the Company
NA

% of total
Shares of the
NA

At the beginning of the NA

year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase

/decrease (e.g. allotment

/transfer / bonus /
At the end of the year

No
Changes

N.A N.A NA NA

30



* Four Individual shareholders other than Directors are holding 1 equity share each, jointly with SPIL, and for and on
behalf of SPIL as a nominee of SPIL.

v)

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.
No

Name of Directors and
Key Managerial
Persannel

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

1

.Sudhir V. Valia*

No. of shares

% of total
Shares of the

No. of shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

At the beginning of the
year

0.002

N.A

N.A

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons

for increase

/decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat

No
Changes

At the end of the year

N.A

N.A

1

0.002

Sailesh T. Desai*

No. of shares

% of total
Shares of the

No. of shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

At the beginning of the
year

1

0.002

N.A

N.A

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in  Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase

-/decrease (e.g. allotment

/ transfer / bonus /

No
Changes

At the end of the year

N.A

N.A

1

]

~0.002

*The aforementioned persons hold 1 equity share jointly with SPIL for and on behalf of SPIL as a nominee of SPIL.

V)

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company includ‘ing interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in Millions)

Secured
Loans ) Total
excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Indebtedness

deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount - 10067.0 81.9 10148.9
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due ® - 217.0 - 217.0
Total (i+ii+iii) - 10284.0 81.9 . 10365.9
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Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year -

Addition: Principal Amount &' - 38982.4 - 389824
Reduction: Principal Amount ©) - 36067.0 62.5 36129.5
Reduction: Interest accrued but not due® | - | 1.7 - o 1.7 |
Net Change - 2913.7 (62.5) 2851.2
Indebtedness at the end of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount - 12982.4 19.4 13001.8
ii) Interest due but not paid -1-

iiii) Interest accrued but not due " - 215.3 - | 215.3
Total (i+iitiii) - 13197.7 19.4 13217.1

Notes:

1) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings. The change during the year has been shown on net basis.

2) Deposits are Trade/ Security Deposits Received. The change during the year has been shown on net basis.

3) Change in the Working Capital facility viz. Cash Credit and Overdraft facilities have been shown on net basis.

4) Ind AS adjustment in the outstanding as on March 31, 2017 of Commercial Papers are shown as reduction in prmmpal amount.

VI) REMUNERATION OFDIRECTORSANDKEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL

A)  Remuneration to Managlng Dlrector, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager (As per Form 16 on actual
payment basis)
(Amount in Rs.)

Mr. Abhay Mr.

Sr. . Gandhi, Whole Kalyanasundaram

l‘:zl;l‘f:ligsﬁzﬁ Time Director & Subramanian Total Amount

CEO (upto 10" (w.e.f. 13th
November, 2016) February, 2017)

no.

1 ‘Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of 45413805.59 5973672.54 51387478.13
‘| the Income- tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of the Income tax Act, 97220.96 0.00 97220.96
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income- 0.00 0.00 0.00
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00
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Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Commission as a % of profit 0.00 0.00 +0.00
5 Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 45511026.55 5973672.54 51484699.09
B) Remuneration to other directors:

(The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors consists only of sitting fees)

(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
no. | Remuneration Amount
Mr. Mr. Ms. Mr. Mr.
Sailesh Sudhir Rekh SM. Naresh
Desai Valia a Dadha Chand
Sethi Singhal
Independent Directors :
1 | Fee for attending board 0 0 3,75,00 3,25,000 | 1,75,000 | 8,75,000
committee meetings 0
Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0
Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 0 0 3,75,00 3,25.000 | 1,75,000 { 8,75,000
2 | Other Non-Executive
Directors
Fee for attending board | 2,00,000 2,50,00 0 0 0 4,50,000
committee meetings 0 ,
Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0
Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total (2) 2,00,000 2,50,00 0 0 0 4,50,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 2,00,000 2,50,00 3,75,00 3,25,00 |1,75,000 13,25,00

Overall Ceiling as per.the Act

Not applicable since no commission was payable to Director during the
year and Rs. 25000 per Director per Meeting of Board or Committee
thereof for Sitting fees .

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B)

5,28,09,699.09
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C) REMUNERATIONTOKEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(As per Form 16, on actual payment basis) .
(Amount in Rs.)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
no.
Mr. Total
Uday Ms. Rachana Kokal
Baldota | Company Secretary
CFO
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 9,34,050 9,34,050
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites under section 17(2) of 0 0
the Income Tax Act, 1961 :
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0 0
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option NIL 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0
4 | Commission as % of profit 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0
Total 9,34,050 9,34,05
VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of | Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
the Description | Penalty / [RD/ made, if
Companie’ Punishment/ NCLT/ any (give
s Act Compounding COURT] Details)
foos imnacad
A. COMPANY
Penalty

Punishment

Combnounding

B. DIRECTORS N

)

Penalty

Punishment L

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS
IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compnounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian Sudhir V. Valia
Whole-Time Director & CEO (00179072) Director (00005561)

Place: Montreal Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2017 Date: 25th May, 2017
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To,

ANNEXURE C
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017.
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited,
Mumbai.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
governance practice by Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited (“the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2017, complied with the statutory prov151ons listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and comphance-mechamsm in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We havé examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 3 1st March, 2017, according to the provisions of: '

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent applicable during the
period under review of Overseas Direct Investment; (Regulations relating to Foreign Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings not attracted to the Company for the year under review);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not
applicable to the Company for the year under review;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 6f Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 — Not
applicable to the Company for the year under review;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 — Not applicable to the
Company for the year under review;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 — Not applicable to the
Company for the year under review;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993,
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client — Not applicable to the Company;
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 —Not applicable to
the Company for the year under review; '

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards with respect to meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013; A

ii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

Durihg the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc.
mentioned above. :

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director.

2. Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Meetings of
Committees except in case meeting was conducted by issued of shorter notice. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance in adequate time before the meetings and a system exists for Directors for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. On verification of minutes, we have not found any dissent/disagreement on any of the agenda items discussed in the Board
and Committee meetings from any of the Directors and all the decisions are carried through.
Based on the Compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the
Respective Plant Heads/Occupiers of R & D Centers of the Company and taken on records by the Board of Directors at their
meeting(s). We are of the opinion that the Management has:

1. Adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations, to monitor and ensure compIian'ce with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines

2. Identified and cbmplied with the following laws applicable to the Company:
e Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940;

e Drugs (Price Control) Order 2013.

We further report that, during the period under review, the Company has acquired 475,000,000 (Forty Seven Crores Fifty lacs) 5%
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of USD 1/- each in Sun Pharma Holdings, Mauritius from Sun Pharmaceutical Industries
Limited (Holding Company).

For C. J. Goswami & Associates,

Practicing Company Secretaries

Chintan J. Goswami
Proprietor

Mem No. - 33697

C. P. No.-12721
Date: 25th May, 2017.
Place: Mumbai.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited,
Mumbeai.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

3.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

4. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For C. J. Goswami & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries

Chintan J. Goswami

Proprietor
Mem No. - 33697
C. P. No. - 12721

Date: 25th May, 2017,
Place: Mumbai.
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ANNEXURE D

Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2016-17

Details

Particulars

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken

‘| Your Company has identified health, education & livelihood,

The CSR policy of the Company encompasses its philosophy towards
Corporate Social Responsibility and lays down the guidelines and
mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare &
sustainable development of the community at large.

environment protection, water management and disaster relief as the
areas where assistance is provided on a need-based and case-to-case
basis. Your Company persisted with participation in such activities at
the local, grass-root level during the year.

Reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programmes:

www.spl Il.co

Composition of the CSR Committee:

Mr. Sudhir V. Valia, Mr. Abhay Gandhi (upto 10" November, 2016),
Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian (appointed w.e.f. 13" February,
2017) and Ms. Rekha Sethi

Average net profit of the Company for last 5387.45
three financial years:
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of | 107.75

the amount as in item above):

Details of CSR spend for the financial year:

a)Total amount spent for the financial year:

Rs. 71.96 Million

b)Amount unspent, if any:

Rs. 35.79 Million

Projects or Amount spent on the
Programs projects or programs
1. Local
Area or Cumulative Amount
Sector in other Amount expenditure spent
Sl CSR P':OJ.C“ %" | which the 2. Specify Outlay . upto to the Directly or
Activity . the State (Budget) Direct .
No. . project is . . . reporting . through
Identified and District | Project or | Expenditure g N . .
covered . . Overhead | period since | implementing
where Programwise | on projects .
. Expenditure 2014-15 agency
projects or or
programs programs
- were
undertaken
Support towards
setting-up of
1 Cancer. S:;;:hﬁzr; Wadala, ) Implementing
Sanatorium No.(I) - Mumbai 44.55 44.55 44.55 Agency
Institute and Eye ) '
Hospital _
2 IS)ZI:'Z(I)(I)pment Erilél:: tlltzrril Borivali, - Implementing
i’ . . .50 A
Project No.(II) Mumbai 7.50 7.50 7.5 gency
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Individual

3 Household Toilet g:;;trhﬁ?; Karnali, Implementing
| Construction N Baroda 6.16 6.16 6.16 Agency
. oD
Project
Support towards
treatment of neo- | Healthcare | All Gujarat Implementin
4 | natal and infants | under Item | and 2.90 .90 2.90 A 2 nc g
for disadvantaged | No.(I) Mabharashtra | = ’ ’ gency
patients
Support towards
s | Infrastructure S;;;trhﬁzr; Delhi : Implementing
Development for No.(I) 2.00 2.00 2.00 Agency
Animal Care )
Comprehensive
6 xf)(:l:fliicare for ?j:;trhﬁ:r; Kozhikode Implementing
marginalised No.(T) (Kerala) 0.50 0.50 0.50 Agency
community '
. | Education Ell?p uram,
7 Single Teacher under Item Thiruvallur Implementing
School Project No.(TI) District 0.50 0.50 0.50 Agency
) (Tamilnadu)
8 Mobile Medical E;:ghﬁ:r; Ranipool, Implementing
Unit Project N Sikkim 9.04 2.67 8.25 Agency
o.(D -
. Education | East
Education .. CSR
9 Programme ;I:) c?(eIrI;tem ]Sjlll:lt(rlllilt’ 2.34 2.34 234 Department
Community s
Water Supply Drinking Chota
10 | Infrastructure : Water Singtam, CSR
under Item o 0.71 0.71 0.71 Department
Development Sikkim 4
. No. () .
Project
Healthcare | East
1 Erza;rﬂ;mme under Item | District, | ; 5 1.59 1.59 lc)zgartment
No.(I) Sikkim ’ R a
Art and East
1 Promotion of Art - | Culture District ‘ CSR
and Culture - under Item o 0.50 0.50 0.50 Department
Sikkim
No. (V)
Training
.. for Sports East
Training for . .. CSR
13 . Promotion District,
Sports Promotion under Item | Sikkim 0.02 0.02 0.02 Departrgent
No. (VID)
Disaster
14 Disaster Relief Relief Dzongu, CSR
Support under Item | Sikkim 0.04 0.04 0.04 Department
No. ()

Grand Total :

71.96
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A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian Sudhir V. Valia
Whole-Time Director & CEO (00179072) Director (00005561)
Place: Montreal Place: Mumbai

Date: 25th May, 2017 Date: 25th May, 2017
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ANNEXURE E

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

I CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy are as follows:

e Use of furnace oil (FO) instead of High Speed Diesel (HSD) in Boiler

e Lightings load reduction by installation of LED lightings

e Improve boiler efficiency by installation Air preheater and recover heat from the exhaust air
e Electricity usages are reduced by confined control on Chillers operations

2. The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy

o In Guwahati factories biomass briquettes are used instead of conventional fuel

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

Captial investment of Rs 242 lac is done on energy conservation equipments.

11 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-
1. Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
The Company continues to invest for technology absorption.

Process robustness has been implemented for wide range of products which has resulted in positive outcomes with respect
to cost and increase in process capability.

Novel compact dosage forms having differentiation with regards to improved stability and/or reduced pharmacokinetic
variability have been developed for India market.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development,
import substitution

o  Market leader for several complex products. Offers complete baskets of products under chronic therapeutic classes.
Strong pipeline of products for future introduction in India.

¢ Not dependent on imported technology, can make high cost products available at competltlve prices by using
_ indigenously developed manufacturing processes and formulation technologies.

e Offer technologically advanced differentiated products which are convenient and safe for administration to patients.

e The Company has benefited from reduction in cost
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III FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Rs. in Million)

Year ended 31st March, 2017 Year ended 31st March, 2016

Particulars
Earnings 0 | 0.2
Outgo 2162.3 1,992.

IV The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Kalyanasundaram Subramanian

Sudhir V. Valia

Whole-Time Director & CEO (00179072) Director (00005561)

Place: Montreal
Date: 25th May, 2017

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25th May, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sun Pharma
Laboratories Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March,
2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

- In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
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misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31% March, 2017, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31% March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31%* March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting. :

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

) Page 2 of 3
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 38(A)(i)
to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 51 to the standalone
Ind AS financial statements as regards its holding and dealings in Specified
Bank Notes as defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated 8™ November,
2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8™ November, 2016
to 30" December, 2016. Based on audit procedures performed and the
representations provided to us by the Management of the Company, we
report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account

maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management of
the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in

“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25™ May, 2017
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the Members of Sun Pharma
Laboratories Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sun Pharma
Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) as of 315 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit

of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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46



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 315 March, 2017, based on the internal contro! over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner

(Membership No. 36920)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25% May, 2017
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date to the Members of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited)

()

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

(©)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of a building where
the Company is entitled to the right of occupancy and use and disclosed as fixed assets
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, we report that the agreement / non-
convertible preference shares / compulsorily convertible debentures entitling the right
of occupancy and use of building, are in the name of the Company as at the balance

sheet date. We further report that the following freehold land are not in the name of the
Company:

Particulars of Cost or deemed Remarks
the freehold cost/carrying
land amount as at
315t March, 2017
(X in Million)
Freehold tand 37.9| The registered sale deeds are in the name
located at of Sun Pharma Sikkim (Partnership Firm)
Guwahati, Assam which was then converted into Sun Pharma
admeasuring Drugs Private Limited, erstwhile company
around 8.49 that was merged with the Company
acres pursuant to the scheme of arrangement
under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 in terms of the approval of the
Honorable High Court of Bombay.
Freehold land 0.3 | The registered sale deeds are in the name
located at of Sun Pharmaceutical Industries
Chennai, Tamil (Partnership Firm) which was then
Nadu converted into Sun Pharma Medication
admeasuring Private Limited, erstwhile company that
around 6.35 acres was merged with the Company pursuant to
the scheme of arrangement under Section
391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of the Honorable High
Court of Bombay.
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(i)

In respect of immovable properties of land that has been taken on iease and disclosed
as fixed assets in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the lease agreements are

in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement, except
for the following:

Particulars " Cost or Carrying Remarks
of the deemed cost amount
leasehold as at 31t as at 315t
land March, 2017 | March, 2017
(Z in Million) | (X in Million)

Leasehold 74.6 73.3 | The lease agreements are in the

fand located name of Sun Pharma Sikkim

at Gangtok, (Partnership Firm) which was then

Sikkim, converted into Sun Pharma Drugs

admeasuring Private Limited, erstwhile Company

around 6.58 that was merged with the Company

acres pursuant to the scheme of
arrangement under Section 391 to
394 of the Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of the
Honorable High Court of Bombay.

Leasehold 35.8 35.1 { The lease agreement is in the name

land located of Sun Pharma Drugs Private

at Gangtok, Limited, erstwhile Company that

Sikkim, was merged with the Company

admeasuring pursuant to the scheme of

around 3.66 arrangement under Section 391 to

acres 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of the
Honorable High Court of Bombay.

As explained to us, the inventories, excluding stocks with some of the third parties, were
physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. In respect of inventories lying with third
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them.
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i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties

covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act),
in respect of which:

(a) Theterms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and

repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing quarantees and securities, as applicable. During the year, the
Company has not granted any loans covered under Section 185 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposit from the public in accordance with the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and hence
reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and

maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to, determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value added Tax, Cess and other material statutory

dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight
delays in few cases.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value

added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 315 March, 2017 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(viit)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at
31 March, 2017 on account of disputes, are given below:

Name of Nature of | Forum where | Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dues dispute is which the involved paid /
pending amount (% in Million) adjusted
relates # under
protest (T in
Million)
Income Income Tax, | Commissioner | 2010-11 to 8,111.4 5,583.2
Tax Act, Interest and | (Appeals) 2013-14
1961 Penalty
The Excise Duty, | Commissioner | 2009-10 to 217.5 6.7
Central Interest and | (Appeals) 2013-14
Excise Penalty and
Act, 1944 2015-16
Tribunal 1993-94 o 383.7 46.03
2004-05
and 2009-
10 to 2014-
15
High Court 2011-12to 412.2 12.0
2013-14

# Net of amount paid / adjusted under protest

There are no dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty and Value added Tax which have
not been deposited as on 315 March, 2017 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and banks

and dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from
government.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company
is in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties identified by the Management of the Company, and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Page 4 of 5

51



(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its holding, subsidiary or assocciate company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25™ May, 2017
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

T in Million
As at As at
Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 9,697.0 6,868.4 5,885.2
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2,200.8 2,248.9 2,276.9
(c) Intangible assets 4 107,033.5 122,398.9 137,236.6
(d) Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries 5 15.0 12.5 12.5
(e) Investments in the nature of equity in associates 6 70,625.6 37,994.6 -
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 654.8 644.4 1,772.1
(i) Loans 8 3.2 388.4 400.6
(iif) Other financial assets 9 145.1 127.9 166.2
(g) Income tax assets (Net) 10 4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
(h) Other non-current assets 11 929,2 1,206.8 449.6
Total non-current assets 195,812.3 175,990.4 152,586.0
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 4,993.0 5,441.5 6,285.5
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 13 1,675.5 6,236.0 20,546.8
(i) Trade receivables 14 6,236.9 3,824.8 5,370.6
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 15 9.6 10.3 7.6
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 16 26.2 329 86.5
(v) Loans 17 9,614.4 18,355.3 7,519.0
(vi) Other financial assets 18 32.3 413 23.6
(c) Other current assets 19 1,598.9 641.7 1,036.6
Total current assels 24,186.8 34,583.8 40,876.2
TOTAL ASSETS 219,999.1 210,574.2 193,462.2
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 20 0.5 0.5 05|
(b) Other equity 21 197,557.3 192,535.3 186,358.0
Total equity 197,557.8 192,535.8 186,358.5
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financia! liabilities
Borrowings 22 5,358.8 10,328.9 301.5
{b) Provisions 23 556.7 247.7 143.0
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 24 207.1 257.0 238.6
Total non-current liabilities 6,122.6 10,833.6 683.1
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 2,982.4 67.0 87.4
(i) Trade payables 26 4,858.8 3,799.5 3,460.0
(iii) Other financial liabilities 27 5,687.2 1,2113 344.6
({b) Other current liabilities 28 441.3 336.3 352.2
(c) Provisions 29 2,349.0 1,790.7 2.176.4
Total current liabilities 16,318.7 7,204.8 6,420.6
Total liabilities 22,4413 18,038.4 7,103.7
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 219,999.1 210,574.2 193,462.2

See accompanying notes 1 to 59 to the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

RAJESH K. HIRANANDANI
Partner
Mumbai, May 25, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

UDAY V. BALDOTA
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai

RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Tin Million
Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(1Y Revenue from operations 30 53,228.9 47,093.0
(i) Other income 31 2,286.5 3,775.9
(HI) Total income (1 + 1i) 55,515.4 50,868.9
(IV) Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 32 9,319.3 8,189.1
Purchases of stock-in-trade 3,511.2 5,757.6
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 33 782.3 158.0
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 34 4,855.5 4,398.2
Finance costs 35 1,476.3 2493
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 15,969.8 15,870.0
Other expenses 36 9,910.0 8,369.2
Total expenses (V) 45,824.4 42,9914
(V) Profit before tax (lll-1V) 9,691.0 7,877.5
(V1) Tax expense 37
Current tax 2,100.0 1,560.0
Deferred tax 6.7 60.6
Total tax expense (V) 2,106.7 1,620.6
(Vi) Profit for the year (V - VI) 7,584.3 6,256.9
(Viil) Other comprehensive income
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan (163.6) (121.8)
(ii) Income tax effect relating to remeasurements of the
defined benefit plan 56.6 42.2
Total other comprehensive income (Viil) (107.0) (79.6)
(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year (Vil+Viil) 7,477.3 6,177.3
Earnings per equity'share (face value per equity share - T 10) 45
Basic and Diluted (in %) 150,724 125,138

See accompanying notes 1 to 59 to the standalone financial statements
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

% in Million
Equity share Other equity Total Equity
capital
Equity Reserve and surplus
component of Capital Capital Debenture Retained
compound reserve redemption | redemption earnings
financial reserve reserve
instrument
Balance as at Aprif 01, 2015 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 0.0 - 562.5 186,358.5
Profit for the year - - - - - 6,256.9 6,256.9
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - * (79.6) (79.6)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 6,177.3 6,177.3
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - 1,041.7 (1,041.7) -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 0.0 1,041.7 5,698.1 192,535.8
Profit for the year - - - - - 7.584.3 7,584.3
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - “ (107.0) (107.0)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 7.477.3 7,477.3
Payment of dividends - Equity Shareholders - - - - - (2,000.0) {2,000.0)
Payment of dividends - Preference Shareholders - - - - - (40.0) (40.0)
Corporate dividend {ax - - - - - (415.3) (415.3)
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - 1,041.7 (1,041.7) -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 0.0 2,083.4 9,678.4 197,557.8
* Represents remeasurements of the defined benefit plan :
(#) ¥ 10,000
See accompanying notes 1 to 59 to the standalone financial statements
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

¥ n Miltion

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

9,691.0 7.877.5
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 15,969.8 15,870.0
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment recognised 203.6 -
in profit or loss
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments, net 33 1.6
Finance Costs 1,476.3 2493
interest Income (1,911.3) (2,921.8)
Gain on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through (337.9) (643.8)
profit or loss
Net Gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through (10.9) (38.4)
profit or loss :
Loss on sale of long term investment in a limited liability partnership - 216.7
Allowance for doubtful debts 9.0 1325
Net unreliased foreign exchange (gain) / loss 5.1 (18.1)
Operating profit before working capital changes 25,098.0 20,725.7
Movements in working capital:
Decrease in inventories 448.5 844.0
(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables (2,421.1) 1,420.7
(Increase) /decrease in other assets (1,062.9) 35.9
Increase in trade payables 1,054.6 350.1
Increase /(decrease) in provisions 703.7 (402.8)
Increase in other liabilities 95.9 69.7
Cash generated from operations 23,916.7 23,043.3
Net income tax paid (2,508.5) (1,273.3)
Net cash generated by operating activities (A) 21,408.2 21,770.0
. Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (including (3,732.2) (1.870.4)
capital work-in-progress, and infangible assets)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and 62.9 4.4
intangible assets
Receipt of rental on fixed assets given under finance lease 10.6 10.0
Purchase of investments
Subsidiary {2.5) (217.2)
Associate (32,318.4) (37,994.1)
Others (210,023.0) (267,996.0)
Proceeds from sale of investments
Subsidiary - 0.5
Others 214,921.9 284,124.8
Inter corporate deposit given
Holding company (9,200.0) (35,480.0)
Subsidiary (31.6) -
Others (5,970.0) (4,972.1)
Inter corporate deposits received back
Holding company 17,220.0 27,480.0
Others 6,721.2 2,165.7
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 1.8 53.6
3 months)
Interest received 1,918.4 2,948.8
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (20,420.9) (31,742.0)
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017 % n Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from non-current Borrowings - 10,000.0

Net increase in working capital borrowings 2,954.4 -

Finance costs (1,420.1) 4.9)

Dividends paid (2,040.0)

Tax on dividend (415.3) -
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities (C) (921.0) 9,995.1
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 66.3 23.1

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (56.7) (79.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year 9.6 (56.7)
Notes:

T in Million

As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
Balances with banks in current account 8.0 9.0
Cash on hand 1.6 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents {Refer note 15) 9.6 10.3
Less:- cash credit facilities included under loans repayable on - 67.0
demand in note 25 )
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 9.6 (56.7)

For non cash transactions refer note 57

See accompanying notes 1 to 59 to the standalone financial statements
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE: 3
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment

tin Million
Freehold land | Leasehold land| Buildings Plantand | Furniture and Vehicles Office equipment Total
equipment fixtures

At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2015 12.0 134.4 3,481.2 1,989.3 90.8 41.9 135.6 5,885.2
Additions - - 691.0 754.3 155 12.7 1155 1,589.0
Disposals - - - @37 - (2.2) (0.9 (6.8)
As at March 31, 2016 12.0 134.4 4172.2 2,739.9 106.3 52.4 250.2 7,467.4
Additions 26.1 - 1,657.2 1,886.9 68.9 27.3 36.6 3,703.0
Disposals - - (12.3) (0.6) 7.1) (5.3) (25.3)
As at March 31,2017 38.1 134.4 5,829.4 4,614.5 174.6 726 2815 11,1451
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2015 - - - - - - - -
Depreciation expense - 1.3 104.5 4103 13.1 9.4 61.2 599.8
Efiminated on disposals of assets - - (0.2) 0.6 # 0.0 (0.8)
As at March 31, 2016 - 1.3 104.5 410.1 13.1 8.8 61.2 599.0
Depreciation expense - 1.1 130.6 4143 16.0 14.2 80.7 656.9
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - 13.2 97.4 93.0 - - - 203.6
Eliminated on disposals of assels - - (5.4) {0.3) {2.9) (2.8) (11.4)
As at March 31, 2017 - 15.6 3325 912.0 28.8 20.1 139.1 1,448.1
Carrying amount
As at Aprit 01, 2015 12.0 134.4 3,481.2 1,989.3 90.8 41.9 135.6 5,885.2
As at March 31, 2016 12.0 133.1 4.067.7 2,329.8 93.2 43.6 189.0 6,868.4
As at March 31, 2017 38.1 118.8 5,496.9 3,702.5 145.8 52.5 142.4 9,697.0
(#) ¥ 23,472
Footnotes:

(i) Building includes T 1.8 Million (As at March 31, 2016 : ¥ 1.8 Million; As at April 01, 2015 : T 1.8 Million) and ¥ 1,772.0 Million {As at March 31, 2016 : ¥ 1,772.0 Miflion ; As at April 01, 2015: %
1,772.0 Million) towards cost of non-convertible preference shares of face value of ¥ 10/~ each and compulsorily convertible Debentures of face value of ¥ 10,000/- each respectively in a Company

entitling the right of occupancy and use of premises.

(i) The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(iii) The impairment losses have been included in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the "Other Expenses® line item. This charge is on account of impairment of certain property, plant and equipment
located al the Company's manufacluring facility at Jammu. Management has taken this decision after considering cost and other strategic matlers. The recoverable amount of the assets is the fair
value less costs to sell which is delermined by the management on the basis of its past experience.

(iv) The Company has elected to measure all it's property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying amounl at the date of transition to Ind AS. Refer Note 48.

58



SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE: 4
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other than internally generated
Following are the changes in the carrying value of intangible assels

¥ in Million
Product related
intangibles

At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2015 137,236.6
Additions 4325
As at March 31, 2016 137,669.1
Eliminated on disposals of assels (63.5)
As at March 31, 2017 137,605.6
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2015 -
Amortisation expense 15,270.2
As at March 31, 2016 15,270.2
Amortisation expense 15,3129
Eliminated on disposals of assets (11.0)
As at March 31, 2017 30,572.1
Carrying amount
As at April 01, 2015 137,236.6
As at March 31, 2016 122,398.9
As at March 31, 2017 107,033.5

Footnotes
(i) The aggregate amortisation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(i} The Company has elecled o measure all it's intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount at the date of transition to Ind AS. Refer Note 48.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 5
INVESTMENTS IN THE NATURE OF EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity ¥in Million Quantity T in Million Quantity T in Million
Unquoted (At cost less impairment in value of investments, if
any)
Equity instruments
Universal Enterprises Private Limited
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 450,000 12.5 450,000 12.5 450,000 125
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited
Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 250,000 2.5 - - - -
15.0 12.5 125
Limited Liability Partnership
Silverstreet Developers LLP - 2,420.2
Less : impairment in value of Investment - - (2,420.2)
15.0 12.5 125
Aggregate amount of investments before impairment 15.0 125 24327
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - - (2,420.2)
NOTE : 6
INVESTMENTS IN THE NATURE OF EQUITY IN ASSOCIATES (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity Tin Miliion Quantity % in Million Quantity T in Million
Unguoted (At cost)
Equity instruments
Sun Pharma Holdings
Ordinary Shares of USD 1 each fully paid 50,000 34 50,000 34 - -
Preference shares
Sun Pharma Holdings 1,025,000,000 70,309.7 | 550,000,000 37,991.2 - -
5% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of USD 1
each fully paid
Limited Liability Partnership
Generic Solar Power LLP
[ ¥ 28,760 (As at March 31, 2016 € 28,760)] 0.0 0.0 -
Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP 3125 - -
3125 0.0 -
70,625.6 37,994.6 -
NOTE : 7
INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity Tin Million Quantity ¥ in Miliion Quantity T in Million
Investments in Debentures / Bonds
Quoted
Canara Bank-8.55% Canara Bank Perpetual Bonds 05-03-
2025 - - - 500 4997
Debentures of T 1,000,000 each fully paid
Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd - 9.9 NCD
23DC18 250 259.4 250 257.8 250 262.2
Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each fully paid
IDBi Bank Lid-10.75% DBl Bank Lid OMN! (2014-15-Series
1) Tier | Perpetual Bonds 17-10-2024 - - - - 500 536.5
Debentures of T 1,000,000 each fully paid
National Highways Authority of india-8.2 BD 25JN22 61,809 66.7 61,809 653 61,809 63.6
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fuily paid
Power Finance Corporation Ltd -SR-1 8.2 BD 01FB22 142,393 153.6 142,393 1504 142,393 146.6
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid
Indian Railway Finance Corporation Ltd -8/8.15 BD 23FB22
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid 163,131 17541 163,131 1709 163,131 166.4
654.8 644.4 1,675.0
Unquoted
Sun Speciality Chemicais Pvi. Lid. - - - - 1,156,500 97.1
0% Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100
each fully paid
654.8 644 .4 1.7721
Aggregate book value (carrying value) of quoted investments 654.8 644 .4 1,675.0
Aggregate amount of quoted investments at market value 654.8 644.4 1,675.0
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment - - 97.1

60




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE: 8
LOANS (NON-CURRENT)

2 in Mitlion
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01, 2015
Loans to employees - unsecured considered good 3.2 9.7 1.3
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease - secured, considered good (Refer Notes 46 and 54) - 378.7 389.3
3.2 388.4 400.6
NOTE: 9
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT) T in Milion
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 4.9 - -
Interest accrued on investment - - 48.9
Security Deposits 140.2 127.9 173
145.1 127.9 166.2
NOTE : 10
INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET) (NON-CURRENT) T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Advance Income Tax 4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
[Net of Provision of ¥ 10,651.8 Million (As at March 31, 2016 : T 8,551.8 Million; As at April 01, 2015 : € 6,992.1 Million)]
4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
NOTE : 11
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Capital advances 161.8 531.6 90.2
Balances with government authorities 765.8 673.4 358.1
Others 1.6 1.8 1.3
929.2 1,206.8 449.6
NOTE: 12
INVENTORIES T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials and packing materials 2,381.0 2,023.0 2,872.2
Goods in transit 140.5 169.7 65
2,521.5 2,192.7 2,878.7
Work-in-progress 558.3 630.6 754.3
Finished goods 1,631.0 1,909.9 2,555.9
Stock-in-trade 277.2 708.3 96.6
Stores, spares and other materials 5.0 - R
4,993.0 5,441.5 6,285.5

(i) inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan and net realisable value. Write downs of inventories amounted to T 806.0 Million as at March
31, 2017 {As at March 31, 2016: X 750.0 Million; As at April 01, 2015: T 475.4 Million), The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year is disclosed in Notes 32, 33 and 36 and as “Purchases of stock-in-trade” in the standalone statement of profit and loss.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 13
INVESTMENTS (CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity T in Million Quantity Tin Million Quantity ¥ in Million
Investment in Mutual funds
‘Unquoted (*)

Units of Face Value of T 10 each fully paid
Dsp Merrill Lynch Mutual Fund - DSP BlackRock FMP -
Series 161 - 12M-Dir-Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2179
Deutsche Mutual Fund-DWS Fixed Maturity Plan Series 63-
Regutar Plan-Growth - - - - 15,000,000 163.7
Deutsche Mutual Fund- DWS Interval Fund - Annual Plan
Series 1 Direct - Growth - - - - 18,416,715 213.0
ICIC! Prudential Mutual Fund-ICICI Prudential FMP Series
73-391 Days Plan G Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 25,000,000 2753
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund- ICICI Prudential FMP Series
73 - 369 Days Plan T Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 20,000,000 2185
ICIC! Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudential FMP Series
74 - 367 Days Plan D Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 40,000,000 4345
ICICl Prudential Mutual Fund- ICICI Prudential FMP Series
74 - 368 Days Plan J Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 20,000,000 216.0
ICIC! Prudential Mutual Fund- ICICI Prudentiat FMP Series .
74 - 369 Days Plan K Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 15,000,000 1615
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudential FMP Series
74-370 Days Plan S Direct Plan Cumulative - L. - - 20,000,000 2142
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudential FMP Series ’
74 - 369 Days Pian B Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 30,000,000 325.9
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Fmp Series 145 Direct-Growth - - - - 35,000,000 385.5
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 155 Direct-Growth

- - - - 25,000,000 2730
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 156 Direct - Growth

- - - - 25,000,000 2725
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 157 Direct - Growth

- - - - 20,000,000 217.7
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 158 Direct - Growth

- - - - 20,000,000 2174
L&T Mutual Fund-L&T FMP Series 10- Plan T - Growth - - - - 25,000,000 2728
Reliance Mutua! Fund-Reliance Yearly Interval Fund -Series
1-Direct Pian-Growth Plan - - 22,980,898 304.3 22,980,898 278.4
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund -
XXVI - Series 9 - Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 50,000,000 545.4
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprii 01, 2015
Quantity ¥ in Million Quantity ¥ in Million Quantity ¢ in Million
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Yearly Interval Fund -
Series 6 -Direct Growth Plan - - - - 45,929,287 544.9
Reliance Mutuai Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXVi-
Series-20-Direct Plan-Growth Plan - - - - 25,000,000 2701
Reliance Mutuai Fund - Reliance Yearly Interval Fund- .
Series 8-Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 18,423,501 214.2
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXVi-
Series-31-Direct Plan-Growth Plan - - - - 30,000,000 320.9
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Yearly Interval Fund -
Series 9 - Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 18,395,541 2133
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund -XXVI-
Series 12-Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 25,000,000 2726
Religare Invesco Mutual Fund - Religare Invesco FMP-
Series 23-Plan O (370 Days) - Direct Plan Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2133
Religare invesco Mutual Fund - Religare Invesco FMP-
Series 23-Plan H (370 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 10,000,000 109.0
Religare invesco Mutual Fund - Religare invesco FMP-
Series 23-Plan L (370 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 21,000,000 227.8
Religare invesco Mutual Fund - Religare invesco FMP-
Series 23-Plan N (367 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2143
- 3043 7.503.7
Units of Face Value of T 100 each fully paid
ICICH Prudential Mutual Fund-ICICH Prudential Money
Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - - 5,015,403 970.5
- - 9705
Units of Face Value of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid
Axis Mutual Fund-Axis Liquid Fund-Direct Growth 110,943 200.1 - - -
Axis Mutual Fund - Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Plan Growth-
CFDG - - - - 483,934 750.6
BNP Paribas Mutual Fund- BNP Paribas Overnight Fund-
Direct Plan Growth Option - - 214,785 500.5 348,489 750.6
Baroda Pioneer Mutual Fund -Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund
Plan B-Growth 213,966 400.1 863,209 1,502.5 467,631 750.7
DSP BlackRock Mutual Fund-DSP BlackRock Liquidity
Fund-Direct Plan-Growth 107,519 250.1 - - 249,960 500.5
Indiabulls Mutual Fund-indiabulls Liquid Fund-Direct Plan
Growth - - 508,251 750.7 367,372 500.2
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Floater Short Term - Direct Plan -
Growth 187,362 500.1 334,131 830.8 - -
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Liquid Scheme Plan A-Direct
Plan-Growth - - - 88,128 250.3
LIC Mutual Fund-LIC MF Liguid Fund - Direct - Growth 110,235 3251 - - - -
Principal Mutual Fund-Principal Cash Management Fund-
Direct Plan Growth - - - - 735,345 1,001.0
Reliance Mutual Fund-Reliance Liquid Fund - Cash Plan -
Direct Growth Plan - - 716,594 1,752.4 2,239,411 5,048.2
SBI Mutual Fund-SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Direct
Plan - Growth - - - - 323,324 1,000.1
1,675.5 5,336.9 10,552.2
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCICAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 13
INVESTMENTS (CURRENT)

- As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
Aprit 01, 2015

Quantity T in Million

Quantity

% in Million

Quantity

T in Million

Debentures
Unguoted

Sun Speciality Chemicals Pvt Ltd - -
0% Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100 each
fully paid

Quoted

Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd - 9.7%
Secured Redeemabie NCD 23DC18 - -
Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each fully paid

IDFC PP 18/2014 -0% IDFC BS 09-04-2015 - -
Debentures of T 1,000,000 each fully paid

Commercial Paper

Unquoted
Barclays investment & Loans (India) Ltd- 193D CP 04SP 15
Units of Face Value of ¥ 500,000 each fully paid
Barclays Investment & Loans (india) Ltd- 90D CP 05MAY 16
Units of Face Value of ¥ 500,000 each fully paid

JM Financial Products Ltd- 180D CP 17AG15 - -
Units of Face Value of ¥ 500,000 each fully paid

1,675.5

1,156,500

106.0

1,000

488.8

488.8

6,236.0

250

750

2525

7436

600

500

996.1

2857

238.6

5243

20,546.8

* Investments in mutual funds have been fair valued at closing
net asset value (NAV).

Aggregate book value {carrying value) of quoted investments -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

1,675.5

6,236.0

996.1
996.1

19,550.7
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NOTE : 14

TRADE RECEIVABLES T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Unsecured
Considered good 6,236.9 3,824.8 5,370.6
Considered doubtful 148.1 139.1 6.6
6,385.0 3,963.9 5377.2
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) {148.1) (133.1) (6.6)
6,236.9 3.824.8 5,370.6
NOTE: 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Balances with banks 8.0 9.0 6.9
Cash on hand 1.6 1.3 0.7
9.6 10.3 7.6
NOTE: 16
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN DISCLOSED IN NOTE 15 ABOVE Z in Million
As at As at As at

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 01, 2015

Deposit accounts (Refer Note 55) 26.2 329 86.5
26.2 329 86.5
NOTE : 17
LOANS (CURRENT) % in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise
Loans to employees / other parties (")
Secured, considered good - 400.0 1,150.0
Unsecured considered good 9,582.8 9,924.7 6,359.0
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 49) (%) 31.6 8,020.0 -
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease - secured, considered good {Refer Notes 46 and 54) - 10.6 10.0
9,614.4 18,355.3 7,519.0
(*) includes loans granted for purpose of their business
NOTE : 18
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
interest accrued 20.6 27.7 14.9
Insurance claim receivables 11.7 13.6 8.7
32.3 41.3 23.6
NOTE: 19
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS ¥ in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Export incentives receivable - 1.2 -
Prepaid expenses 56.9 8.4 13.4
Advances for supply of goods and services 414.5 263.8 256.7
Balances with government authorities 1,127.5 368.3 766.5
1,598.9 641.7 1,036.6

65




SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 20
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL :
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Number of T in Million Number of % in Million Number of T in Mitlion
shares shares shares
Authorised
Equity shares of T 10 each 50,000,000 500.0 50,000,000 500.0 50,000,000 500.0
Issued, subscribed and fuily paid up
Equity shares of T 10 each (Refer Note 43) 50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5
50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5
NOTE : 21
OTHER EQUITY T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in other equity balance
A. Equity component of compound financial instrument 141.2 1412 141.2
B. Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve 185,654.3 185,654.3 185,654.3
Debenture redemption reserve 2,083.4 1,041.7 -
Capital redemption reserve (¥ 10,000) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retained earnings 9,678.4 5,698.1 562.5
197,416.1 192,394.1 186,216.8
Total of Other Equity 197,557.3 192,535.3 186,358.0

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve - Capital reserve was created pursuant to the scheme of arrangement in the nature of spin off and transfer of domestic formulation undertaking of the holding company to the
Company as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat and Hon'ble High Court of Bombay.

Debenture redemption reserve - The Company is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend. This reserve will be transferred

to general reserve on redemption of debentures.

Capital redemption reserve - This reserve was created on redemption of preference shares and is a non distributable reserve.

NOTE : 22
BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT) 2 in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01, 2015
Unsecured
Redeemable non-convertible debentures {Refer Note 47) 5,000.0 10,000.0 -
Liability component of compound financial instrument
Redeemable Preference shares - from retated party (Refer Note 47) 358.8 328.9 301.5
’ 5,358.8 10,328.9 301.5
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NOTE : 23
PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT) T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Employee benefits (Refer Note 45) 556.7 247.7 143.0
556.7 2477 143.0
NOTE : 24
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) % in Million
Balance as at| Recognised Recognised in Balance as at
April 01,2016 in profit or other March 31, 2017
loss comprehensive
Income
Beferred tax (liabilities) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of property plant and equipment and
capital work in progress as per books of accounts and income tax Act,1961 (431.7) {80.1) - (511.8)
Total Deferred tax (liabilities) {431.7) {80.1) - (511.8)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Aliowance for doubtful debts 481 3.1 - 51.2
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 126.6 60.3 56.6 2435
Others - 10.0 - 10.0
Total Deferred tax Assets 174.7 73.4 56.6 304.7
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (257.0) (6.7) 56.6 (207.1)
Balance as at| Recognised Recognised in Balance as at
Aprit 01,2015 in profit or other March 31, 2016
loss comprehensive
income
Deferred tax (liabilities) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of property plant and equipment and (303.6) (128.1) - (431.7)
capital work in progress as per books of accounts and income tax Act,1961
Total Deferred tax (liabilities) (303.6) (128.1) - {431.7)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
‘Allowance for doubtful debts 2.2 459 - 48.1
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 62.8 21.6 42.2 126.6
Total Deferred tax Assets 65.0 67.5 . 422 174.7
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (238.6) (60.6) 42.2 (257.0)
Unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the As at As at As at
following : March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Tax fosses (Capital in nature) 1,330.0 1,720.0 2,130.0
Unused tax credits (MAT credit entitiement) 2,100.0 - -
3,430.0'] 1,720.0 2,130.0
The unused tax credit will expire in financial year 2026-27 and unused tax losses will expire from financial year 2021-22 to 2023-24
NOTE : 25
BORROWINGS (CURRENT) % in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks - 67.0 87.4
Other loans
Commercial paper 2,982.4 - -
2,982.4 67.0 87.4
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NOTE : 26
TRADE PAYABLES T in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Dues to micro and small enterprises 25.4 24.0 15.6
Others 4,833.4 3,775.5 3,444.4
4,858.8 3.799.5 3,460.0
NOTE : 27
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT) T in Mitlion
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Current maturities of fong-term debt (Refer Note 47) 5,000.0 - -
Interest accrued 2153 217.0 -
Security deposits 19.4 819 79.4
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 378.3 825.4 260.9
Temporary overdrawn bank balance as per books 74.2 87.0 43
5,687.2 1,211.3 344.6
NOTE: 28
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Z in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Statutory remittances 433.3 3298.3 348.5
Advances from customers 8.0 7.0 3.7
441.3 336.3 352.2
NOTE : 29
PROVISIONS (CURRENT) % in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Employee benefits (Refer Note 45) 209.7 185.8 108.8
Product returns (Refer Note 50) 1,751.5 1,575.4 1.391.1
Others (Refer Note 50) 387.8 28.5 676.5
2,349.0 1,790.7 2,176.4
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NOTE : 30
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

¥ in Million

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Sale of products (including excise duty)

March 31, 2017

52,873.9 46,936.3
Other operating revenues 355.0 158.7
53,228.9 47,093.0
NOTE : 31
OTHER INCOME % in Miltion
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2016

Interest income on :

Bank deposits at amortised cost

21 3.5
Loans at amortised cost 789.5 1,9454
Investments in debt instruments at amortised cost 54.4 63.6
investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comperhensive income 70.5 53.3
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 717.4 747.5
Others 277.4 108.3
Gain on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or foss 337.9 643.8
Net gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 10.9 384
Insurance claims 20.5 165.0
Lease rental and hire charges 26 5.0
Miscellaneous income 3.3 2.1
2,286.5 3.775.9
NOTE: 32
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED T in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Raw materials and packing materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year

2,192.7 2.878.7
Purchases during the year 9,648.1 7,503.1
Inventories at the end of the year (2,521.5) (2,192.7)
9,319.3 8,189.1
NOTE : 33
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS T in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

inventories at the beginning of the year

3,248.8 3.,406.8
Inventories at the end of the year {2,466.5) {3,248.8)
782.3 158.0
NOTE : 34
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE  in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Salaries and wages

4,541.3 4,138.0
Contribution to provident and other funds 240.0 193.6
Staff welfare expenses 74.2 66.6
4,855.5 4,398.2
NOTE : 35
FINANCE COSTS ¥ in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

interest expense for financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Interest expense others

1,468.8 245.1
7.5 4.2
1,476.3 249.3
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NOTE : 36
OTHER EXPENSES

Z in Million

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Consumption of materials, stores and spare parts

2728 193.0
Conversion and other manufacturing charges 633.8 653.6
Power and fuel 300.0 217.4
Rent 40.2 42.2
Rates and taxes 136 236
Insurance 80.8 715
Selling and distribution 1,822.0 1,572.0
Commission on sales 44.9 40.7
Repairs and maintenance 236.7 235.3
Printing and stationery 324.4 288.3
Travelling and conveyance 1,959.3 1,787.2
Freight outward and handling charges 156.3 156.9
Communication 45.9 49.6
Aliowance for doubtful debts 9.0 132.5
Professional, legal and consultancy 558.4 370.8
Excise duty on sales 1,610.6 1,175.7
Donation 4.3 13.8
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net 3.3 1.6
(Decrease) / increase of excise duty on inventories 42.0 (23.0)
Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions (28.8) 70.4
Payments to auditors (net of input credit, where applicable)
For audit 3.2 28
For other services 1.6 1.4
Reimbursement of expenses 0.1 0.2
Loss on sale of fong term investment in a Limited Liability Partnership
Loss on sale of investment in a subsidiary - 2,636.9
Less : Impairment in value of investment - (2,420.2)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 203.6 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,572.0 1,074.0
9,910.0 8,369.2
NOTE : 37
TAX RECONCILIATION ¥ in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Reconciliation of tax expense
Profit before tax

Enacted income tax rate (%) applicable to the Company #

Income tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate

Effect of expenses that are not deductible

Effect of deduction claimed under chapter VI A of Income tax act 1961

Effect of income that is exempt from tax

Utilisation of earlier years tax losses on which no deferred tax asset was recongnised
Investment allowance /s 32AC of Income Tax Act 1961

Tax Payable under MAT

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

9,691.0 7.877.5
34.608% 34.608%
3,353.9 2,726.2
5,372.6 5,373.6
(8,487.2) (6,309.4)
(36.9) (21.7)
(135.1) (142.4)
(60.6) (5.7)
2,100.0 -
2,106.7 1,620.6

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% at which the Company is liable to pay tax on taxable income under the Income Tax Law.
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1. General information

2.

Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company
incorporated and domiciled in India and is listed in the Wholesale - Debt segment of BSE
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal place of business is disclosed
in the introduction to the annual report. The Company is in the business of developing,
manufacturing, and marketing a wide range of branded and generic pharmaceutical
formulations. The Company has various manufacturing locations of its own, while it also
engages in trading and other incidental activities.

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company (also
called standalone financial statements). The Company has prepared financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2017 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March
31, 2016. Further, the Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as at April 01,
2015 (the transition date) in accordance with Ind AS.

For all the periods up to the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which

includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
(as amended).

These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 48 for the details
of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial
statements, the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for: (i)
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period; and (ii) defined benefit plans — plan assets that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would

" take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the

measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

+ Llevel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company has consistently appiied the following accounting policies to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

a. Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classifications of its
assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

b. Foreign currency

On initial recognition, transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during

the period or in previous period are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated. '

c. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

d. Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated in balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the

same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and is recognised in profit or loss.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets
are measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or
the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in
which case the acquired asset is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
Capital work-in-progress) less their residual values on straight-line method over their useful
lives as indicated in Part C of Schedule !l of the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over period of the lease agreement or the useful life,
whichever is shorter. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category No. of Years
Leasehold land 90-196
Factory buildings 10-30

Other buildings 10-60

Plant and equipment 3-25
Vehicles 5-10

Office equipment 2-5
Furniture and fixtures 10

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is
an integral part of a tangible asset, including consultancy charges for implementing the
software, is capitalised as part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated
with maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. The capitalised costs
are amortised over the lower of the estimated useful life of the software and the remaining
useful life of the tangible fixed asset.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and that have finite useful lives are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments and milestones
for in-licensed products, compounds and intellectual property are capitalised since the
probability of expected future economic benefits criterion is always considered to be satisfied
for separately acquired intangible assets.

Acquired research and deveiopment intangible assets which are under development, are
recognised as In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D”). IPR&D assets are
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not amortised, but evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such
IPR&D assets is recognised in profit or loss. Intangible assets relating to products under
development, other intangible assets not available for use and intangible assets having
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annuaily, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the assets may be impaired. Aill other intangible assets are tested for
impairment when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The consideration for acquisition of intangible asset which is based on reaching specific
milestone that are dependent on the Company’s future activity is recognised only when the
activity requiring the payment is performed.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

intangible assets. Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortised from the date
they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for Product related intangibles, Trademarks, Designs and Other
intangibles ranges from 5 to 12 years.

The estimated useful life and the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite
useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

De-recognition of infangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognised either on their disposal or where no future economic
benefits are expected from their use. Gain or loss arising on such de-recognition is
recognised in profit or loss, and are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of respective intangible assets as on the date of
de-recognition.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2015 i.e. transition date, measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

f. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries and associates

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries
and associates at cost in the separate financial statements in accordance with the option
available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’. impairment policy applicable on
such investments is explained in Note 2.2.g.

g. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
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rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are

largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

In respect of other asset, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

h. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractua! cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other Income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOC!
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCH category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
comprehensive income (OCIl). However, the Company recognises interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not

meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOC!, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVTOCI! criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if

doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
in OCl.- The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends,
are recognised in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss,

even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
" changes recognised in the profit or loss.
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

¢ The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive contractual cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained

substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the iransferred asset to the extent of the Company's
continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in
profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

/mpairmer;t of financial assets -

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Lease receivables under ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
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reporting date, right from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting

date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilites are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or
is designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term or on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. This category also includes derivative entered into by the Company
that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as

defined by ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For non-held-for-trading financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in OCl would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in
credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred

to profit or loss. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost in subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of
financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based
on the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item in the profit or loss.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s
senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following
the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a fiability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the

Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised
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when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity.

i. Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
lessee is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are appottioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are also recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Company as a lessor

Rental income from operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
‘expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis

as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting

periods so as 1o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’'s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

j- Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials and packing materials, work-in-progress, stock-in-
trade and finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost of raw
materials and packing materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of
work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct material, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present iocation and condition.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

l. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has a detailed formal
restructuring plan and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those
affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditure arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both

necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the
entity. - :

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as
provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefit expected to be received from the contract.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the Company, or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financiai statements.
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m. Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods include excise duty and is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Revenue is net of returns, sales tax, chargebacks,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable
that the economic benefit will flow the Company, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, there is neither continuing management involvernent to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Provisions for applicable discounts are estimated and provided for in the year of sales and
recorded as reduction of revenue.

Sales Returns

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns
concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance is
based on the Company’s estimate of expected sales returns. With respect to established
products, the Company considers its historical experience of sales returns, levels of
inventory in the distribution channel, estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, -price
changes of competitive products, and the introduction of competitive new products, to the
extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With respect to
new products introduced by the Company, such products have historically been either
extensions of an existing line of product where the Company has historical experience or in

therapeutic categories where established products exist and are sold either by the Company
or the Company’s competitors.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the profit or loss as the underlying services
are performed. Upfront non-refundable payments received are deferred and recognised as

revenue over the expected period over which the related services are expected to be
performed.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

n. Government grants

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that
the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
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the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet

and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

o. Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. The currency and term of the government bonds shall be
consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.
The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the profit or loss as
employee benefits expense, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. The
net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in profit or loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to OC! in the period in which they
arise and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense at the earlier of the date when the
Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognises

costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Short-term and Other long-term employee benefits

A liability is. recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
and casual leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
previous periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as
and when the services are received from the empioyees entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services
acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settiement, the fair value of the liability is
remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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p. Income tax

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCi or directly in
equity, in which case it is recognised in OC! or directly in equity respectively. Current tax is
the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offsel where the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or o realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if
there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the Company

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment
of dividends to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as

tax expense for the Company and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes
in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘'MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax
liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

q. Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
eftects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted
retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues

including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board
of Directors.

r. Recent Accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

in March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendment to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of
cash flows’. This amendment is in accordance with the recent amendments made by
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international Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows'. The
amendment is applicable to the Company from April 01, 2017.

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion
of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for
liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the
financial statements is being evaluated.
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NOTE: 38
A CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) {in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
i Contingent liabilities
Liabiities disputed - appeals filed with respect to :
income tax 10,686.8 11,888.9 15,619.0
Excise duty 3,576.0 1,009.2 459.8
Environment cess 23.3 23.3 23.3
Footnote:
Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable onty on
receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.
ii Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of advancesl. 502.7 913.5 1035.5
Letters of credit for imports 4.2 1,065.9 382.6
B Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of the Company (Refer Note 55) 251.2 92.1 95.6
NOTE : 39
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's capital management objectives are:
- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern; and
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through oplimisation of debts and equity balance.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the financial statements. The Company's objective for capital
management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure.
- T in Mitlion
As at As at As at
{1} Debt equity ratio March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Debt (includes non-current, current borrowings and current maturities of long term debt) 13.341.2 10,395.9 3889
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 9.6 10.3 7.6
Net debt 13.331.6 10,385.6 3813
Total equity {excluding capital reserve) 11.903.5 6,881.5 704.2
Net debt to equity ratio 1.1 1.5 0.5
Tin Million

{ii) Dividend on equity shares paid during the year

For the year
March 31, 2017

For the year
March 31, 2016

Dividend on equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2016 of ¥ 40.000.0 (previous year for year ended March 31, 2015 T Nit) per fully paid equity share

2,000.0 -
Dividend distribution tax on above 407.2 -
Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 25, 2017 have recommended payment of final dividend of ¥ 40,000 per share of face value
of T 10 each for the year ended March 31, 2017. The same amounts to ¥ 2,000.0 Mitlion.
This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting and hence not recognised as liability.

¥ in Million

{iii) Dividend on Preference shares paid during the year For the year For the year

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Dividend on Preference shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2016 of ¥ 10 (previous year for year ended March 31, 2015 ¥ Nit) per fully paid preference share

Dividend distribution tax on above

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 25, 2017 have recommended payment of final dividend of ¥ 10 per preference share of face;

value of ¥ 100 each for the year ended March 31, 2017. The same amounts to T 40.0 Million.

This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting and hence not recognised as liability.

40.0
8.1

NOTE : 40
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to
identily and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and
processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet ils contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from

customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparly to which the Company grants
credit terms in the normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision
matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure 10 credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counter-parties, and does nol have any significant concentration of exposures to specilic industry sectors or specific country risks.

{ in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the expected credit loss
Trade receivables

less than 180 days 6,232.0 3,806.4 5,334.0
180 - 365 days ) 10.2 56.8 0.9
beyond 365 days 142.8 100.7 423
Total 6,385.0 3,963.9 53772
¥ in Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

_Movement in the expected credit loss alfowance on trade receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year 139.1 6.6
Addition 9.0 132.5
Balance at the end of the year 148.1 139.1
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Concentration of revenues from one of the customers of the Company were substantial for the year ended March 31, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2016. The said customer also represented
substantial portion of the trade receivables as at March 31, 2017, as at March 31, 2016 and as at April 01, 2015.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risk to the Company's reputation.

The Company had unutilised working capital lines from banks of ¥ 3,400.0 Million as on March 31, 2017, ¥ 2,333.0 Million as on March 31, 2016 and T 2,312.6 Million as on April 01, 2015

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant undiscounted financial liabilities :

T in Mitiion
Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2017

Non derivative
Preference share capitat

- 400.0 - 400.0
Other borrowings® 8.000.0 5,000.0 - 13,000.0
Trade payables 4,858.8 - - 4,858.8
Other financial liabilities 687.2 - - 6872
13,546.0 5,400.0 - 18,946.0
* includes T 5,000.0 Mitlion, disclosed as current maturities of long term debt grouped in ‘other financial liabilities' in the financial statements.
T in Million
Less than 1 year 1 -3years More than 3 years As at

March 31, 2016
Non derivative
Preference share capital

- 400.0 - 400.0
Other borrowings 67.0 10,000.0 - 10,067.0
Trade payables . © 37995 - - 3,799.5
Other financial liabilities 1,211.3 - - 1,211.3
50778 10,400.0 - 15.477.8
T in Miltion
Less than 1 year 1-3vyears More than 3 years As at
April 01, 2015

Non derivative
Preference share capital

- - 400.0 400.0
Other borrowing 87.4 - - 87.4
Trade payables 3,460.0 - - 3,460.0
Other financial liabilities 344.6 - - 344.6
3.892.0 - 400.0 4.292.0
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and
commaodily prices) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments,
all fareign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market
value of its investments. Thus, the Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operaling activities in foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s foreign exchange risk arises mainly from its foreign currency revenues and expenses, {primarily in US Dollars, Euros and israeli New Shekel). As a result, if the value of the Indian rupee
appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues and expenses measured in Indian rupees may decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and
these foreign currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate subslantially in the future.

a) The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary items are as follows:

Amount in Million
As at
March 31, 2017
uso EUR iLsS Others *
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 2.9 0.3 0.3 0.0
- £9.451 2.9 0.3 0.3 0.0
As at
March 31, 2016 .
usD EUR Others #
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 23| 0.4 0.0
# £43.081 23 0.4 0.0
As at
April 01, 2015
usD EUR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 0.7 -
0.7 -
Financiat liabilities
Trade payables 5.8 0.1
5.8 0.1

b) Sensitivity

For the years ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 01, 2015, every 5% strengthening in the exchange rate between the indian Rupee and the respective major currencies for the above mentioned
financial assets/liabilities would decrease Company’'s profit and equity by approximately ¥ 10.7 Miflion, ¥ 9.1 Million and T 16.3 Million respectively. A 5% weakening of the Indian Rupee and the respective
maior currencies would lead o an equal but opposite effect.

In management's opinion, the sensilivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does rot reflect the exposure during the year.

interest rate risk

The Company has loan facilities on floating interest rate, which exposes the Company to risk of changes in interest rates. The Company's treasury department monitors the interest rate movernent and
manages the interest rate risk by evaluating interest rate swap etc. based on the market / risk perception. As at the balance sheet dates the Company has not entered into any such derivatives contracts

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to its loans and borrowings would increase the Company's profit by
approximately T Nil and ¥ 0.3 Million respectively. A 50 basis point increase in floating interest rate would have led o an equal but opposite effecl.

Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company's purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw material components for such active
pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Company's raw materials generally fluctuate in line with
commodity cycles, aithough the prices of raw malerials used in the Company’s active pharmaceutical ingredients business are generally more volatile. Cosl of raw materials forms the largest portion of the

Company's cost of revenues. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. As of March 31, 2017, the Company had not entered into any
malerial derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.
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NOTE :41 ,
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
T in Million
As at March As at March | As at April 01,
31, 2017 31, 2016 2015
Particulars
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments™
in Debentures/Bonds {Unquoted) - 106.0 97.1
In Commercial paper - 488.8 524.3
Trade Receivables 6,236.9 3,824.8 5,370.6
Cash and cash equivalents 9.6 10.3 7.6
Bank balances other than above 26.2 32.9 86.5
Loans to employees / other parties 9,586.0 10,334.4 7,520.3
Loans to related parties 31.6 8,020.0
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease - 389.3 399.3
Other Financial Assets
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 4.9 - -
Interest accrued 20.6 27.7 63.8
Security Deposits 140.2 127.9 , 117.3
Insurance claim receivables 11.7 13.6 8.7
At Fair value through profit or loss (Level 1)
Investments
in Mutual funds , 1,675.5 5,641.2 19,026.4
At Fair value through other comprehensive income (Level 1)
Investments
in Debentures/Bonds (Quoted) 654.8 644 .4 2,671.1
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 13,341.2 10,395.9 388.9
Trade Payables 4,858.8 3,799.5 3,460.0
interest accrued 2153 217.0 -
Security deposits 19.4 81.9 79.4
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 378.3 825.4 260.9
Temporary overdrawn bank balance as per books : 74.2 87.0 4.3

* Excludes Financial Assets measured at Cost

The financial instruments are categorized based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described
below:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date.

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities carried as amortised
cost approximates their fair value.
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NOTE : 42
DISCLOSURES UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon
by the auditors.

in Mitlion

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
April 01, 2015

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and payable for the year

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, untif such date when the interest dues as

above are actually paid

25.4
{Interest - Nil)

24.0
(Interest - Nil)

15.6
(Interest - Nif)

25.4

24.0

156

NOTE : 43
DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SHARE CAPITAL

A Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares and repayment terms of capital
The Company has two classes of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10 per share and 10% Redeemable Non cumulative Preference Shares having par value of ¢ 100 per share.
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. Holder of Preference shares are not entitled to any voting rights but enjoy preferential rights in respect of payments of dividend, if any, and
repayment of capital, if any. The Preference Shares shall be redeemed at par, at the end of five years from the date of allotment.
B EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01,2015
No. of shares Tin Mitlion No. of shares X in Million No. of shares Ein Million
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the
beainning and at the end of reporting period
Opening balance carried over as closing balance 50,000 0.5 50,000 05 50,000 0.5
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Name of equity shareholders No. of shares % of holding % of holding % of holding
held No. of shares held No. of shares held
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limiled (Holding Company) 50,000 100% 50,000 100% 50.000 100%
€ PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL *
As at As al As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01,2015
No. of shares in Million No. of shares T in Mitlion No. of shares % in Million
Authorised Share capital
Redeemable Preference shares of ¥100 each 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of reportina period
Opening balance carried over as closing balance 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01, 2015
Name of preference sharehoiders No. of shares % of holding % of holding % of holding
held No. of shares held No. of shares held
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (Holding Company) 4,000,000 100% 4,000,000 100% 4,000,000 100%

° 10% Non-Convertible, Non-Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares

scherne of amalgamation, withoul payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

NOTE : 44
EARNINGS PER SHARE

40,00,000 (upto March 31, 2016: 40,00,000; upto April 01, 2015: 40,00,000) 10% Non-Convertible, Non-Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each have been alloited, pursuant to

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Numerator used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share (¥ in Million)

Profit for the year (T in Million)

7.584.3 6,256.9
Less: Preference dividend and dividend tax (% in Million) 48.1 -
Profit for the year (2 in Million) - used as numerator for calculating basic and diluted eamings per share 7,536.2 6.256.9
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share 50,000 50,000
Nominal value per share {in ¥} 10 10
Basic and Diluted eamings per share (in %) 150,724 125,138
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NOTE : 45
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
Defined contribution plan

Contributions are made to Regional Provident Fund (RPF), Family Pension Fund, Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which covers all
regular employees. While both the employees and the Company make predetermined contributions to the Provident Fund and ESIC, contribution to the Family
Pension Fund and other Statutory Funds are made only by the Company. The contributions are normally based on a certain percentage of the employee’s salary.
Amount recognised as expense in respect of these defined contribution plans, aggregate 1o T 164.9 Million (Previous year T 142.1 Miilion)

T in Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund 161.3 138.6
Contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 35 35
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund (previous year: ¥ 22,356) 0.1 0.0

Defined benefit plan

In respect of Gratuity, a defined benefit pian, contributions are made to LIC's Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. It is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. Under the Gratuitiy Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five years or death
while in employement. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the time of retirement/termination age. Provision for
Gratuity is based on actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary as at the year end. Each year, the Company reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. The
Company decides its contribution based on the results of its annual review. The Company aims to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a level such that the

fund assets meets the requirements of gratuity payments in short to medium term.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
i} Investment risk - The present value of the defined benefit pian liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields on government
bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. However, the risk is partially mitigated by

investment in LIC managed fund.

ii) Interest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s

debt investments.

il Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan padicipants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

iv) Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the

salarv of the plan participants will increase the olan’s liabilitv.

Other |on§ term benefit plan

Actuarial Valuation for Compensated Absences is done as at the year end and the provision is made as per Company rules with corresponding charge to the
Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to T 168.3 Million {Previous Year ¥ 151.4 Million) and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions,

typically, are years of service and employee compensation.

Obligation in respect of defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plans are actuarially determined as at the year end using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’
method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions relating to defined benefit obligation are recognised in other comprehensive income whereas gains and
losses in respect of other long term employee benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Tin Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) (Funded)
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss (Refer Note 34)
Current service cost 63.2 454
Interest cost 40.8 28.8
Expected return on plan assets (30.5) (23.7)
Expense charged to the statement of profit and loss 73.5 50.5
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in other
comprehensive income
Actuarial loss / {gain) on defined benefit obligation 164.2 123.6
Actuarial gain on plan assets {0.6) (1.8)
Expense/(income) charged {o other comprehensive income 163. 121.8
Reconciliation of defined-benefit obligations
Obligation as at the beginning of the year 539.4 363.1
Current service cost 63.2 45.4
Interest cost 40.8 28.8
Benefits paid {28.0) (21.5)
Actuarial Gains on obligations
- due to change in demographic assumptions (45.4) (5.9)
- due {o change in financial assumptions 2247 955
- due to experience {15.1) 34.0
Obligation as at the year end 779.6 539.4
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T in Million
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Gratuity Gratuity
{(Funded) (Funded)
Reconciliation of liability/(asset) recognised in the Balance sheet
Present value of commitments (as per Actuarial Valuation) 779.6 539.4
Fair value of plan assets (417.8) (403.2)
Net liability recognised in the Balance sheet 361.8 136.2
Reconciliation of plan assets
Pian assels as at the beginning of the year 403.2 298.3
Expected return 30.5 23.7
Actuariat gain 0.6 1.8
Employer's Contribution during the year 115 100.9
Benefits paid (28.0) (21.5)
Plan assets as at the year end 417.8 403.2
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) (Funded)
Discount rate 6.81% 7.56%
Expected return on plan assets 6.81% 7.56%
Expected rate of salary increase 14.50% 10.00%
Interest rate guarantee N.A. N.A.

Mortality Indian Assured Lives
Indian Assured Lives; Morality (2006-08)
Morality (2006-08)
Withdrawal 13.50% 8.00%
Retirement Age (years) 58 to 60 58 {0 60
T in Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
Sensitivity Analysis:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate (56.4) (44.3)
Deita effect of -1% change in discount rate 65.2 51.8
Delta eftect of +1% change in salary escalation rate 60.0 50.1
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate (53.3) (43.7)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover (26.7) (9.5)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 30.6 10.8
Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
31-Mar-18 64.9 38.2
31-Mar-19 66.1 38.6
31-Mar-20 715 495
31-Mar-21 68.8 58.1
31-Mar-22 71.9 61.4
Thereatfter 321.8 435.1
The major categories of plan assets are as under :
Insurer managed funds (Funded with LIC, break-up not available) 417.8 403.2

The contribution expected to be made by the Company for gratuity, during financial
year ending March 31, 2018 is T 110.2 Million (Previous year ¥ 98.9 Miliion)
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NOTE : 46
LEASES

a The Company has obtained certain premises for its business operations (including furiture and fittings therein, as applicable) under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are
generally not non-canceliable and range between 11 months to 5 years under leave and license or longer for other lease and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The
Company has given refundable interest free security deposits where applicable in accordance with the agreed terms.

b Lease payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Rent"

¢ Finance Lease details

in Note 36

The Company has entered into finance lease arrangements for giving centain equipments on lease. Also refer note 57

The future minimum lease payments and reconciliation of gross investment in the lease and present value of minimum lease payments are as under

{in Million

Particulars As at March 31, j As at March 31, As at Aprit 01,

2017 2016 2015
Future minimum lease payments

not later than one vear - 46.8 473
later than one year and not later than five vears - 165.8 171.1
later than five years - 716.3 757.7
928.9 976.1

Less: Unearned finance income - 539.6 5768
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable - 389.3 399.3
not later than one year 10.6 10.0
later than one year and not later than five years - 28.3 30.9
later than five years - 350.4 358.4

NOTE : 47
BORROWINGS

Details of long term borrowings and current maturities of long term debt (included under other current financial liabilities)

i ¥10,000.0 Million Rated unsecured listed redeemable nan-converlible debentures

Redemption
Particulars Face Value (3) Amount Date of Redemption
(T in Mitlion)
Rated Unsecured Listed Redeemable 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures Series 2 1,000,000 5.000.0 March 22, 2019
Rated Unsecured Listed Redeemable 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures Series 1 1,000,000 5,000.0| December 22, 2017
(included in current maturities of long-term debt as at March 31, 2017}

details.
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,] As at Aprilt 0t, 2015
Particulars 2017 2016
10% Non-convertible, Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
Classified in following two categories
Equity component of compound financial instrument 141.2 141.2 141.2
Liability Component of Compound Financial Instrument 358.8 328.9 301.5

it The Company has not defauited on repayment of any ioans and interest payment lhereon during the year.
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NOTE : 48
FIRST TIME IND AS ADOPTION RECONCILIATION

Explanation to transition to ind AS

Ind AS 101 -“First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” requires that all Ind AS and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements which is for the year
ended March 31, 2017 for the Company, be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented, except the Company has availed certain exemptions and complied with the
mandatory exceplions provided in Ind AS 101, as described below. The Company has recognised all assets and Habilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS and has not recognised items of
assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, reclassified items from previous GAAP o Ind AS as required under Ind AS and applied Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and fiabilities.

Set out below are the Ind AS 101 optional exemptions availed as applicable and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company has appfied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for lransactions occurring on or after the transition date.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has assessed conditions for classification of the financial assets on the basis of the lacts and circumstances existing on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a tease

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition date contains a lease on the
basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elecled to continue with the carrying value of alt of its property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets recognised as at April 01, 2015 measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition

The Company has applied the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A (b} of ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to ind AS. This exemption has been
availed by the Company.

Business Combinations

ind AS 101 provides the option to apply ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior 1o the transition date. This provides relief from full retrospective application that
would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date.

The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated.

Excise duty

Under the previous GAAP, excise duty was netted off against sale of products. However, under ind AS, excise duty is included in sale of products and is separately presented as expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Reconciliation of total equity

¥in Million
Footnotes As at As at
March 31,2016 April 01,2015
Totat equity as per previous GAAP * 190,356.7 186,107.1
Add/ (less) : Adjustments for GAAP differences
Effect of measuring investments at fair value through profit or loss a 69.3 574.3
Effect of measuring investment at amortised cost b (9.6} (18.4)
Redeemable preference shares classified as liability under Ind AS c (328.9) (301.5)
Provision for expected credit fosses d (10.7) {4.9)
Adjustment for proposed dividend (including corporate dividend tax) e 2,455.3 -
impact of tax on Ind As adjustments q 3.7 1.9
Total equity as per ind AS 192,535.8 186.,358.5
* Equity as per previous GAAP includes Share capital and Reserves and Surplus
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income X in Million
Footnotes Year ended
March 31. 2016
Net profit as per previous GAAP 6,704.9
Add / (Less) : Adiustments for GAAP differences
Effect of measuring investments at fair value through profit or loss a {505.0}
Eftect of measuring investment at amortised cost b 8.8
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in OCI under Ind AS f 121.8
Redeemable preference shares classified as liability under Ind AS [+ {27.4}
Provision for expected credit losses d (5.8)
Impact of 1ax on Ind As adjustments g {40.4)
Net profit as per Ind AS 6,256.9
Other comprehensive income (79.6)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 6.177.3
Lin Million
Effect of transition
Previous to Ind AS (Refer IND AS
- GAAP foolnote h)
Year ended March 31, 2016
Reconcitiation of cash fiow
Net cash flows from operating activities 22,5185 (748.5) 21,770.0
Net cash flows from investing activities (32.490.5) 748.5 (31,742.0)
Net cash flows from financing activities 9,974.7 20.4 9,995.1
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2.7 20.4 231

Notes on reconciliations between previous GAAP and ind AS

a Effect of measuring investments at fair vatue through profit or loss

Under previous GAAP, non current investments were stated at cost less provision, if any, for other than temporary diminution in value, and current investments were valued at tower of cost and fair
value. Under Ind AS certain investments have been classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) on the date of transition with corresponding adjustment to equity as at that date. Fair value

changes are recognised in profit and loss.
b Effect of measuring investments at amortised cost
Under previous GAAP, non current investments were stated at cost less provision, if any, for other than temporary diminution in value. Current investrments were valued at lower of cost and fair value.
Under Ind AS, certain investments have been measured al amortised cost.
¢ Redeemable preference shares classified as lability under Ind AS
Under previous GAAP, redeemable preference shares were considered as share capital. Under ind AS, the liability component of this compound instrument is classified as borrowings.

d Expected credit foss

Under previous GAAP, the Group had created provision for doubtiul debts based on specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, the allowance for doutbiul debts has been determined based on
expected credit loss model.

e Proposed Dividend (including dividend distribution tax)
Under Ind AS, dividend is recognised as a liability in the periad in which the obligation to pay is established. Under previous GAAP, dividend proposed was recorded as a provision in the period o

which it relates.
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f Employee benefits

Under previous GAAP. acluarial gains and losses were recognised in statement of profit or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form pant of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
/ asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income in the respective periods.

g Tax impact on ind AS adjustments

in the financiat statements prepared under previous GAAP, deferred tax was accounted as per the income statement approach which required creation of deferred tax asset/iiability on temporary
differences between taxable profit and accounting profit. Under tnd AS, deferred tax is accounted as per the Balance Sheet approach which requires creation of deferred tax asset/liability on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of an asset/liability in the Balance Sheet and its corresponding tax base. The application of Ind AS has also resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new
temporary dilferences which were not required to be recognised under previous GAAP.

h Effect of transition o Ind AS on Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents represents movement in cash credit facilities considered as a component of cash and cash equivalents under Ind AS which as per previous GAAP, was
considered as financing activity. Other Ind AS adjustments are either non cash adjustments or are regrouping among lhe cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities and has no impact
on the net cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2016 as compared with the previous GAAP.

NOTE: 48
a RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER ANNEXURE "A"

b LOANS GIVEN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND HOLDING COMPANY

T in Million
As at Maximum balance As al Maximum balance As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01, 2015
Loans outstanding trom a Subsidiary *
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited *31.6: 31.6 - -
Loans ding from Holding Company*
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited - - *8020.0: 28.459.1 -
31.6 31.6 8.020.0 28,459.1

* Includes interest accrued on loan amounting to ¥ 1.6 Mittion in March 31, 2017 and T 20.0 Million in March 31, 2016

These loans have been granled to the above entities for the purpose of its business.

NOTE : 50

In respect of any present obligation as a result of past event that could lead to a probable outflow of resources, provisions has been made, which would be required to settle the obligation. The said provisions
are made as per the best estimate of the management and disclosure as per ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets*® has been given below :

Tin Mitlion
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Product and Sales| Consultancy Total Product and Sales Consultancy Total
related * Charges related * Charges
At the commencement of the year 1,604.9 1.604.9 1.391.1 676.5 2,067.6
Add: Provision for the vear 13154 1,315.4 854.6] - 854.6
Less: Utilisation / Settiement 781.0 - 781.0 640.8) 676.5 1,317.3
At the end of the year 2,139.3 - 21393 1.604.9 - 1,604.9

(*} includes provision for product returns

NOTE : 51

DETAILS OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES HELD AND TRANSACTED DURING THE PERIOD NOVEMBER 08, 2016 AND DECEMBER 30, 2016 IS AS UNDER:

All amounts in absolute

Specified bank QOthers Totat
notes*
Cash in hand as on November 08, 2016 806,500 1,745,676 2,552,176
Permitted receipts during November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 - 1,471,847 1,471,847
Permitted payments during November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 {34,000) (857.698) (891,698)
Amount depaosited in banks (772,500} - (772,500)
Cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 2,359,825 2.359,825

* Specified bank notes are currency notes of ¥ 500 and ¥ 1,000 disconlinued vide notification S.0. 3407(E) daled November 08, 2016
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 52
Expendilure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VIl thereol: T 71.9 Mitfion (Previous Year ¥ 54.5 Million).

NOTE : 53

The Company holds intangible assets of the Domestic Farmulation undertaking transferred to the Company on and with effect from the close of business hours on March 31, 2012, pursuant to the
scheme of arrangement approved by the Hon'ble High Courls, in the nature of spin off and transfer of the said undertaking without consideration by Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited, the Holding
Company are accounted at Fair Value on the basis of an Independent Professional Valuer's report.The carrying value and remaining amortisation period of such assets is ¥ 106,628.9 Milfion (As at
March 31, 2016 ¥ 121,918.0 Million, As at April 01, 2015 ¥ 137,157.8 Million) and 7 years {As at March 31, 2016 B years, As at April 01, 2015 9 year) respectively. The amortisation of intangible assets
over 12 years is arrived at based on the management's best estimates of useful lives of such assels after due consideration as regards their expected usage, the product life cycles, technical and
technological obsolescence, market demand for products, competition and their expected future benefits to the Company.

NOTE : 54
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease were receivable from a private company in which a director of the Company is a director.

NOTE: 55
Deposits with banks are pledged with banks against Bank Guarantees.

NOTE : 56

The Board has recommended payment of dividend of ¥ 10 per preference share of ¥ 100 each and ¥ 40,000 per equity share of ¥ 10 each {or the year ended March 31, 2017 subject to approval of the
members at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE : 57

Pursuant to the declaration executed by the Company (‘Donor’) in favour of an entity controlled by Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP (Assaociate of the Company), namely Vintage Power Generation
LLP (‘Donee’) on March 31, 2017, the power undertaking of the Donor located at Kukshi, Madhya Pradesh has been gifted to the Donee. Accordingly, on and with effect from the close of business
hours on March 31, 2017, all the assets, movable and immovable, tangible and intangible, along with the liabilities pertaining to the said power undertaking stand transferred to and vested in the Donee
as a going concern without consideration. Accordingly, the value of power undertaking gifted to the Donee has been added to the cost of investment of the Company in the said Assaciate.

NOTE : 58
SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company has only one reporiable segment namely 'Pharmaceuticals’.

NOTE : 58
USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial stalements is included in the following notes:

1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation is defived after
delermining an eslimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The uselul lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by the
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed pericdically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of

future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the
product or service output of the asset.

2 Assets and obligations relating to emplovee benefits

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/
(income) include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

3 Tax expense [Refer Note 2.2 (p)l
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgernents are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, if any. including amount expecled to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax
positions. Further, significant judgement is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax assets (DTA) that could be recognised based on the probability that future taxable profits will be avaitable
against which DTA can be utilized and amount of temporary difference in which DTA can not be recognised on want of probable taxable profits.

4 Provisions [Refer Note 2.2 ()]

5 Write down in value of inventories (Refer Note 12)

6 Contingencies (Refer Note 38)
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
Ind AS-24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES ANNEXURE "A"

Country of Proportion of ownership interest for the year
Incorporation ended

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016}  April 01, 2015

Names of related parties where control exists and description of relationships

1 Holding Company
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

India
2 Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Universal Enterprises Private Limited India 100% 100% 100%
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Ltd (Refer Footnote 1) India 100% - -

Names of related parties where there are transactions and description of relationships

3 Fellow Subsidiaries

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries, Inc United States of

America
Aditya Acquisition Company Limited israel
Neetnav Real Estate Private Limited India

Sun Pharma Medisales Private Limited (Formerly known as Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company) India

Sun Pharmaceutical Industries (Europe) B.V. Nelherlands

4 Controlled Entity
Silverstreet Developers LLP (Refer Footnote 3)

india - 100% 100%
5 Associates
Sun Pharma Holdings {Refer Footnote 5) Mauritius 0.01% 0.01% “
Generic Solar Power LLP India 28.76% 28.76% -
Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP (Refer Footnote 1 and 2) India 40.61% - -

6 Key Managerial Personnel
Apbhay A. Gandhi (Refer Foolnote 4)
Sudhir V. Valia
Sailesh T. Desai
Kalyansundaram Subramanian (w.e.f. February 13, 2017)
S. Mohanchand Dadha
Rekha Sethi
Naresh Chand Singhal (w.e.f. February 11, 2016)
Dilip S. Shanghvi

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Direclor
Non-Executive Director
Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company

7 Enterprise under control of Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives
Makov Associates Lid.
Shantilal Shanghvi Foundation
Dadha Pharma Pvt.Ltd.

8 Enterprise under significant influence of Key Managerial Personne! or their relatives
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Ltd.
Alfa infraprop Pvi. Ltd.

Footnote
1 incorporated / Acquired during the year.

2 Investment in Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP with effect from March 31, 2017.

3 During the previous year, the company has sold its investment in Silverstreet Developers LLP with effect from April 01, 2015.
4 Mr. Abhay A. Gandhi was an Executive Director and Chief executive officer upto November 10, 2016.

5

Signiiicant influence through representation on the board of directors of the investee which gives the Company power to participale in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES * ANNEXURE “A"

Detail of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2017:

T in Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Purchase of goods 2,3225 2,632.2
Holding Company 2,3225 2,632.2
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives (2 5,228) 0.0 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 175 65.8
Holding Company ' 13.0 65.8
Fellow Subsidiaries 4.5 -
Sale of goods 577.6 689.5
Holding Company 563.1 689.5
Fellow Subsidiaries 14.5 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives (March 31, 2017 0.0 0.0
T33,278, March 31, 2016 T 15,238)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 283.8 0.5
Holding Company 2838 0.5
Receiving of service 865.0 803.1
Holding Company 423.0 424.0
Fellow Subsidiaries 35.1 27.5
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnet or their relatives 141.4 115.9
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives 2655 235.7
Reimbursement of expenses paid 51.2 61.2
Holding Company 9.1 3.6
Fellow Subsidiaries ' 421 57.6
Rendering of service 269.2 104.8
Holding Company 269.2 1048
Reimbursement of expenses received 2.6 -
Holding Company 2.6 -
Subsidiaries (¥ 45,000) 0.0 -
Finance {including investment and equity contributions) 3150 217.2
Subsidiaries 25 -
Controlled Entity - 217.2
Associates (March 31, 2016 ¥ 28,760) (Refer Note 57) 3125 0.0
Loans / Deposit given 9,231.6 35,480.0
Holding Company 9,200.0 35,480.0
Subsidiaries 31.6
Loans received back 17,220.0 27,480.0
Holding Company 17,220.0 27,480.0
Purchase of Investment in Sun Pharma Holding 32,3185 37,994.6
Holding Company 32,3185 37,994.6
Iinterest Income 116.4 1,187.9
Holding Company 1164 1,187.9
Subsidiaries (T 20,121) 0.0 -
interest Expense - 1.0
Fellow Subsidiaries - 1.0
Receipts on account of assets given under finance lease 46.8 473
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their refatives 46.8 473
Rent expense 20.3 24.7
Holding Company 19.3 238
Subsidiaries 0.3 0.3
Fellow Subsidiaries 07 08
Corporate Sociat Responsibility expenses 521 -
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives 52.1 -
Remuneration
Key managerial personnet 47.8 434
Director's Sitting Fees . 1.3 0.6
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES "

Balance Qutstanding as at the end of the year

T in Million

Particulars

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 01, 2015
Receivables 629.0 421.5 403.7
Holding Company 253.8 - -
Subsidiaries 360.7 - -
Fellow Subsidiaries 145 | 283 1.0
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personne! or their relatives - 393.2 402.7
Payable 909.9 315.8 440.3
Holding Company 775.0 253.2 390.6
Subsidiaries 4.9 49 49
Fellow Subsidiaries 29.9 18.6 7.0
Key managerial personnel 75 6.1 6.3
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives 63.0 33.0 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives 29.6 - 315
Loan Given 316 8,020.0 -
Holding Company - 8,020.0
Subsidiaries 31.6 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives - - -
Deposit Given 87.6 87.6 87.6
Holding Company 0.1 0.1 0.1
Fellow Subsidiaries 87.5 875 87.5
Deposit Received - 66.2 66.2
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives - 66.2 66.2

Key managerial Personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term employee benefits
recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefils' in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of
actuarial valuation, the same is not included above and there is no Share-based payments to key manageriat personnel of the company.

Disclosure in respect of material transactions with related parties during the year .

T in Million

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Purchase of goods
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Sale of goods
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Receiving of Service
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Ltd.

Reimbursement of Expenses Paid
Neeinav Real Estate Pvt Lid.

Rendering of Service
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Reimbursement of Expenses Received
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Finance {including investment and equity contributions)
Trumpcard Advisiors & Finvest LLP (Refer Note 57)
Silverstreet Developers LLP

Loans / Deposit given
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Loans received back
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Sun Pharma Medisales Private Limited (Formerly known as Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company)

2,322.5

13.0
45

563.1
283.8

423.0
285.5

415
269.2
2.6

312.5

9,200.0

17,2199

2,632.2

65.8

669.5

0.5

424.0
2356.7

55.0

104.8

217.2

35,480.0

27,480.0
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES *

ANNEXURE "A"
Disclosure in respect of material transactions with related parties during the year .
¥ in Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Purchase of Investment in Sun Pharma Holding
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited ) 32,3184 37,994.6
Interest income
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 1164 1,187.9
Interest Expense
Neetnav Real Estate Private Limited - 1.0
Receipts on account of assets given under finance lease
Alfa Infraprop Pvt. Lid. 46.8 47.3
Rent expense
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited 183 238
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Shantilal Shanghvi Foundation 52.1 -
Remuneration
Key managerial Personnel
Abhay A. Gandhi 411 434
Director's Sitting Fees
Rekha Sethi 0.4 0.2
S. Mchanchand Dadha 03 0.2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Sun
Pharma Laboratories Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Parent") and its subsidiaries
(the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and its associates,
comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31%t March, 2017, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated Ind AS financial statements").

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the Group including
its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associates
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Parent,
as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the
- provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are

required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Parent's preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Parent's

Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.’

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group and its associates as at 31 March, 2017, and their consolidated profit, consolidated
total comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 1,939.8 Million as at 31 March, 2017, total
revenues of T Nil and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 23.4 Million for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The
above figures are before giving effect to consolidation adjustments.

These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in

so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

(b) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements include the Group's share of net profit
of ¥ 2.5 Million for the year ended 31t March, 2017, as considered in the consolidated

Ind AS financial statements, in respect of 3 associates, whose financial information
have not been audited.

These financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management of the Parent and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management of the Parent, these financial information are not material to the Group.
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(c) The comparative financial information for the year ended 31% March, 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 1% April, 2015 in respect of a subsidiary
included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Ind AS have been audited by other auditors and have been relied upon by

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above, and our report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors
and the financial information certified by the Management of the Parent.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries, referred
in the Other Matters paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far

as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors,

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on 31% March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Parent and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on 31% March, 2017 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”, which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and
subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Qur report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Parent and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note
37(A)(i) to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India.

iv. The Parent has provided requisite disclosures in Note 50 to the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements as regards the holding and dealings in Specified
Bank Notes as defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated 8" November,
2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8 November, 2016
to 30" December, 2016 in respect of the Parent and subsidiaries incorporated
in India. Based on the audit procedures performed, the representations
provided to us by the Management of the Parent and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors, referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph above, we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the
relevant books of accounts maintained by the Parent and subsidiaries

incorporated in India, for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
Partner

(Membership No. 36920)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25™ May, 2017
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the Members of Sun Pharma
Laboratories Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company
as of and for the year ended 315t March, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited (hereinafter referred to as

“the Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as
of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system

over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other
Matter paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31% March, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to
2 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25™ May, 2017
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

T Million
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017 Notes As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 10,328.6 6,868.4 5,885.2
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2,736.0 2,248.9 2,276.9
(c) Goodwill 1.0 - -
(d) Other intangible assets 4 107,033.5 122,398.9 137,236.6
(e) Investments in associates 5 70,628.0 37,994.6 -
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 654.8 6844.4 1,772.1
(i) Loans 7 3.2 388.4 400.6
(iii) Other financial assets 8 155.7 127.9 166.2
{g) Income tax assets (Net) 9 4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
(h) Other non-current assets 10 929.2 1,207.0 449.8
Total non-current assets 196,978.1 175,978.1 152,573.7
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 5,305.2 54415 6,285.5
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 12 1,675.5 6,236.0 20,546.8
(i) Trade receivables 13 5,926.7 3,824.8 5,370.6
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 33.3 10.4 8.4
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 15 26.2 329 86.5
(v) Loans 16 9,584.9 18,355.3 7,519.0
(vi) Other financial assets 17 32.3 41.3 23.6
(c) Other current assets 18 1,966.8 641.7 1,036.8
Total current assets 24,550.9 34,583.9 40,877.2
TOTAL ASSETS 221,529.0 210,562.0 193,450.9
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 - 05 0.5 0.5
(b) Other equity 20 197,538.5 192,528.4 186,351.7
Total equity 197,540.0 192,528.9 186,352.2
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 5,358.8 10,328.9 301.5
(b) Provisions 22 556.7 247.7 143.0
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 49 2071 257.0 238.6
Total non current liabilities 6,122.6 10,833.6 683.1
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities )
(i) Borrowings 23 3,983.9 67.0 87.4
(i) Trade payables 24 5,264.5 3,794.6 3,455.1
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 5,809.5 1,211.3 3446
(b) Other current liabilities 26 445.7 335.9 352.1
{c) Provisions 27 2,362.8 1,790.7 2,176.4
Total current liabilities 17,866.4 7,199.5 6,415.6
Total liabilities 23,989.0 18,033.1 7,098.7
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 221,529.0 210,562.0 193,450.9
See accompanying notes 1 to 62 to the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
SUDHIR V. VALIA
Director
UDAY V. BALDOTA Mumbai
Chief Financial Officer
RAJESH K. HIRANANDANI Mumbai
Partner

Mumbai, May 25, 2017
SAILESH T. DESAI

Director
Mumbai
RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary
Mumbai

KALYANASUNDARAM SUBRAMANIAN
Whole time Director & CEQ
Montreal
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017 T Million
Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(1) Revenue from operations 28 53,228.9 47,093.0
(i) Other income 29 2,286.5 3,775.9
(i) Total income (! + 1) 55,515.4 50,868.9
(IV) Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 9,390.7 8,189.1
Purchase of stock-in-trade 3,511.2 5,757.6
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-
in-progress 31 708.7 158.0
Employee benefits expense 32 4,860.7 4,398.2
Finance costs 33 1,478.0 2493
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 &4 15,971.7 15,870.0
Other expenses 34 9,916.7 8,369.8
Total expenses (IV) 45,837.7 42,992.0
(V) Profit before tax (lll-IV) 9,677.7 7,876.9
(VI) Tax expense 35
Current tax 2,100.0 1,560.0
Deferred tax 6.7 60.6
Total tax expense (Vi) 2,106.7 1,620.6
(Vi) Profit for the vear before share of profit of associates (V-VI) 7,671.0 6,256.3
(VHit) Share of profit of associates (March 31, 2016 % 26,697) 25 0.0
(IX) Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (VII + Vil}) 7,573.5 6,256.3
(X) Other comprehensive income
(A) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans {163.6) (121.8)
(ii) Income tax effect relating to remeasurements of the defined
benefit plan 56.6 42.2
(107.0) (79.6)
(B) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference in translating the financial statements of
foreign operation (March 31, 2016 ¥ 856) (0.1) (0.0)
(0.1) (0.0)
(X) Total other comprehensive income (A + B) {107.1) (79.6)
(XI) Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to i
owners of the Company (IX + X) 7,466.4 6,176.7
Earnings per equity share (face value per equity share - 3 10) 43
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) 150,508 125,126
See accompanying notes 1 to 62 to the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
Chartered Accountants
SUDHIR V. VALIA
RAJESH K. HIRANANDANI Director

Partner
Date : May 25, 2017

Mumbai

UDAY V. BALDOTA
Chief Financial Officer SAILESH T. DESAI
Mumbai Director

Mumbai

RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary KALYANASUNDARAM SUBRAMANIAN
Mumbai Whole time Director & CEO

Montreal

Date : May 25, 2017
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES OF EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

T Million
Equity share Other equity Other
capital comprehensive
income (OCl)
Equity Reserve and surplus Total Equity
component of Capital Capital Debenture Retained Foreign
compound reserve redemption | redemption earnings currency
financial reserve reserve translation
instrument reserve

Balance as at April 01, 2015 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 00 - 556.2 - 186,352.2
Profit for the year - - - - - 6,256.3 - 6,256.3
Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign - - - - - - (0.0} (0.0)
operation (March 31, 2016 ¥ 856)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - * {79.6) - (79.6)
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - - - - 6,176.7 {0.0} 6,176.7
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - 1,041.7 (1,041.7} - -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 0.0 1,041.7 5,691.2 {0.0} 192,528.9
Profit for the year - - - - - 7,573.5 - 7,573.5
Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign - - - - - - {0.1) (0.1)
operation
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - * (107.0) - {107.0}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 7.466.5 (0.1) 7.466.4
Payment of dividends-Equity Shareholders - - - - - {2,000.0} - {2,000.0)
Payment of dividends-Preference Shareholders - - - - - (40.0) - {40.0)
Corporate dividend tax - B - - - (415.3) - {415.3)
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - - 1,041.7 {1,041.7) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 0.5 141.2 185,654.3 # 0.0 2,083.4 9,660.7 (0.1) 197,540.0

* Represents remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(#) 110,000

See accompanying notes 1 to 62 to the consolidated financial statements

in terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

RAJESH K. HIRANANDANI
Partner
Mumbai, May 25, 2017

UDAY V. BALDOTA
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai

RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary

Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

SUDHIR V. VALIA

Director
Mumbai

SAILESH T. DESAI

Director
Mumbai

KALYANASUNDARAM SUBRAMANIAN
Whole time Director & CEO

Montreal

Date : May 25, 2017
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

T In Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 9.677.7 7.876.9
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 15871.7 15,870.0
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 203.6 -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments, net 3.3 16
Finance costs 1,478.0 2493
Interest income {1.911.3} (2,921.6)
Gain on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (337.9) (643.8)
Net Gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss {10.9) {38.4)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 2174
Allowance for doubtful debts 9.0 1325
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 5.1 (18.1)
Operating profit before working capital changes 25,088.3 20,7258
Movements in working capital:
Decrease in inventories 444.0 844.0
(increase)/decrease in trade receivables (2,062.9) 1,420.7
(Increase} /decrease in other assets (1,062.9) 35.9
Increase in trade payables 716.6 350.1
tncrease/{decrease) in provisions 703.7 (402.8)
increase in other liabilities {18.9) 69.7
Cash generated from operations 23.807.9 23,0434
Net income tax paid (2,508.5) (1,273.3)
Net cash generated by operating activities (A) 21,2994 21,7701
. Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress and intangible (3,623.9) {1,870.4)
assets)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 62.9 4.4
Receipt of rental on fixed assets given under finance lease 10.6 10.0
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary (8.7) -
Purchase of investments
Subsidiary - (217.2)
Associates (32,318.4) (37,994.1)
Others (210,023.0) (267.996.0)
Proceeds from sale of investments
Subsidiary - 0.5
Others 214,921.9 284,124.8
Inter corporate deposit given
Holding company (9,200.0) {35,480.0)
Others {5,970.0) (4,972.1)
inter corporate deposit received back
Holding company 17,220.0 27,480.0
Others 6,721.2 2,165.7
investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 1.8 53.6
interest received 1,918.4 2,948.8
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {20,288.2) (31.742.0}
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

¥ In Million

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 10,000.0
Net increase / {decrease) in working capital borrowings 2,955.9 -
Finance costs 1.422.0) (4.9)
Dividends paid (2,040.0) -
Tax on dividend (415.3) -
Net cash (used in) / qenerated by financing activities (C) {921.4) 9,995.1
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 89.8 232
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear {56.6) (79.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33.3 (56.6)
T in_Million
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
A Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
Balances with banks in current account 31.5 9.1
Cash on hand 1.8 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 33.3 10.4
Less:- cash credit facilities included under loans repayable on demand in note 23 - 67.0
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 33.3 {56.6)
B For non cash transactions refer note 53

See accompanying notes 1 to 62 to the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

RAJESH K. HIRANANDANI
Partner
Mumbai, May 25, 2017

UDAY V. BALDOTA
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai

RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary
Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited

SUDHIR V. VALIA
Director
Mumbai

SAILESH T. DESAI
Director
Mumbai

KALYANASUNDARAM SUBRAMANIAN

Whole time Director & CEO

Montreat

Date: May 25, 2017
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE: 3
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment

Freehold Leasehold land| Buildings Plant and | Furniture and Vehic} Office equip T:tela’; Mien
land equipment fixtures

At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2015 120 134.4 3,481.2 1,989.3 90.8 418 135.6 5,885.2
Additions - - 691.0 754.3 155 12.7 1155 1,589.0
Disposals - - - (3.7) - (2.2) (0.9) (6.8)
As at March 31, 2016 120 1344 4,172.2 2,739.9 106.3 52.4 250.2 7,467.4
Taken over on acquisition » - - - 600.2 27.3 6.0 - 633.5
Additi;)ns 261 - 1,657.2 1,886.9 68.9 273 36.6 3,703.0
Disposals - - - {12.3) (0.6) {7.1) (5.3) {25.3)
As at March 31, 2017 38.1 . 1344 5,829.4 5,214.7 201.9 78.6 2815 11,778.6
A lated depreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2015 - - - - - - - -
Depreciation expense - 13 104.5 410.3 13.1 9.4 61.2 599.8
Eliminated on disposals of assets o - - - (0.2) - (0.6) #(0.0) {0.8)
As at March 31, 2016 - 1.3 104.5 410.1 13.1 8.8 61.2 599.0
Depreciation expense - 1.1 130.6 416.1 16.1 14.2 80.7 658.8
Impairment losses recognised in consolidated
statement of profit and loss - 13.2 97.4 93.0 - - - 203.6
Eliminated on disposals of assets - - - (5.4) {0.3}) (2.9) (2.8) (11.4)
As at March 31, 2017 - 15.6 3325 913.8 28.9 20.1 139.1 1,450.0
Carrying amount
As at April 01, 2015 12.0 134.4 3,481.2 1,989.3 90.8 41.9 135.6 5,885.2
As at March 31, 2016 12.0 133.1 4,067.7 2,329.8 93.2 43.6 188.0 6,868.4
As at March 31, 2017 38.1 118.8 5,496.9 4,300.9 173.0 58.5 142.4 10,3286
(#) T 23,472
Footnotes:

(i) Building includes ¥ 1.8 Million (As at March 31, 2016 : ¥ 1.8 Million; As at April 01, 2015 : ¥ 1.8 Million) and ¥ 1,772.0 Million (As at March 31, 2016 : ¥ 1,772.0 Million ; As at April 01, 2015 : ¥
1,772.0 Million) towards cost of non- convertibie preference shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each and compulsorily convertible Debentures of face value of ¥ 10,000/~ each respectively in a Company
entitling the right of occupancy and use of premises.

(ii) The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) The impairment losses have been included in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the "Other Expenses® line item. This charge is on account of impairment of certain property, plant and
equipment located at the Parent Company's manufacturing facility at Jammu. Management has taken this decision after considering cost and other strategic matters. The recoverable amount of the
assets is the fair value less costs to sell which is determined by the management on the basis of its past experience.

(iv) The Parent company has elected to measure all it's property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying amount at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2017

NOTE: 4
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other than internally generated
Following are the changes in the carrying value of intangible assets

% in Million

Product

related

intangibles

At cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2015 137,236.6
Additions 4325
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2016 137,669.1
Additions -
Eliminated on disposals of assets {63.5)
As at March 31, 2017 137,605.6
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2015 -
Amortisation expense 15,270.2
Eliminated on disposals of assets -
As at March 31, 2016 15,270.2
Amortisation expense 15,3129
Eliminated on disposals of assets (11.0)
As at March 31, 2017 30,572.1
Carrying amount
As at April 01, 2015 137,236.6
As at March 31, 2016 122,398.8
As at March 31, 2017 107,033.5

Footnotes
(i) The aggregate amortisation has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
(i) The Parent company has elected to measure all it's Intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 5
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (NON-CURRENT)
(Carrying amount determined using equity method of accounting)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01,2015
Quantity X in Million Quantity X in Million Quantity X in Miliion
Unquoted, fully paid
investment in equity instruments
Sun Pharma Holdings
Ordinary Shares of USD 1 each fully paid 50,000 5.8 50,000 34 - -
Preference shares
Sun Pharma Holdings 1,025,000,000 70,309.7 550,000,000 37,991.2 - -
5% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of USD 1
each fully paid
Investment in limited fiability partnership
Generic Solar Power LLP
[ 28,760 (As at March 31, 2016 X 28,760)] - 0.0 - 0.0 - -
Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP - 312.5 - - - -
3125 0.0 -
70,628.0 37,994.6 -
NOTE: 6
INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity ¥ in Million Quantity R in Million Quantity X in Million
investments in Debentures / Bonds
Quoted
Canara Bank-9.55% Canara Bank Perpetual Bonds 05-03-
2025 - - - - 500 499.7
Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each fully paid
Housing Development Finance Corporation Lid - 9.9 NCD
23DC18 250 259.4 250 257.8 250 262.2
Debentures of T 1,000,000 each fully paid
IDBI Bank Ltd-10.75% {DB! Bank Ltd OMNI (2014-15-Series
I} Tier { Perpetual Bonds 17-10-2024 - - - - 500 536.5
Debentures of T 1,000,000 each fully paid
National Highways Authority of india-8.2 BD 25JN22 61,809 66.7 61,809 65.3 61,809 63.6
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid
Power Finance Corporation Lid -SR-1 8.2 BD 01FB22 142,393 153.6 142,393 150.4 142,393 146.6
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid
indian Railway Finance Corporation Ltd -8/8.15 BD 23FB22
Bonds of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid 163,131 175.1 163,131 170.9 163,131 166.4
654.8 644.4 1,675.0
Unquoted
Sun Speciality Chemicals Pvt. Lid. - - - - 1,156,500 97.1
0% Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100 each
fully paid
654.8 644.4 1,7721
Aggregate book value {carrying value) of quoted investments 654.8 644.4 1,675.0
Aggregate amount of quoted investments at market value 654.8 644.4 1,675.0
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment - - 97.1
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

% Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
LOANS (NON-CURRENT)
L.oans to employees
Unsecured considered good 3.2 9.7 1.3
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease - secured
considered good (refer note 45 and 55) - 378.7 389.3
3.2 388.4 400.6
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSSSETS (NON-CURRENT)
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 4.9 - -
Interest accrued on investment - - 48.9
Security deposits 150.8 127.9 117.3
155.7 127.9 166.2
T Miltion
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
INCOME TAX ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
Advance income tax 4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
[Net of provision of ¥ 10,651.8 Million (As at March 31,2016 : ¥ 8,551.8
Million; As at Aprit 01, 2015 : £ 6,992.1 Million)]
4,508.1 4,099.6 4,386.3
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital advances 161.8 531.6 90.2
Prepaid expenses - 0.2 0.2
Balances with government authorities 765.8 673.4 358.1
Others 1.6 1.8 1.3
929.2 1,207.0 4498
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
INVENTORIES
Lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw materials and packing materials 2,619.8 2,023.0 2,8722
Goods-in-transit 140.5 169.7 6.5
2,760.3 2,192.7 2,878.7
Work-in-progress 576.0 630.6 754.3
Finished goods 1,686.7 1,909.9 2,555.9
Stock-in-trade 277.2 708.3 96.6
Stores, spares and other materials 5.0 - -
5,305.2 5,441.5 6,285.5

(i) Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing, liquidation plan and net realisable value. Write downs of inventories
amounted to ¥ 806.0 Million as at March 31, 2017 (As at March 31, 2016: ¥ 750.0 Million; As at April 01, 2015: ¥ 475.4 Million), The changes in write downs are
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(ii) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense is disclosed in Note 30, 31, 34 and as "Purchase of stock-in-trade” in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss.
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE : 12
INVESTMENTS (CURRENT)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Quantity T in Million Quantity ¥ in Million Quantity % in Million
Investment in Mutual funds
Unguoted (*)

Units of Face Value of T 10 each fully paid
Dsp Merrill Lynch Mutuat Fund - DSP BlackRock FMP -Series
161 - 12M-Dir-Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2179
Deutsche Mutual Fund-DWS Fixed Maturity Plan Series 63- :
Regular Plan-Growth - - - - 15,000,000 163.7
Deutsche Mutual Fund- DWS interval Fund - Annual Plan .
Series 1 Direct - Growth - - - - 18,416,715 213.0
ICIC1 Prudential Mutual Fund-ICICI Prudential FMP Series 73+
391 Days Plan G Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 25,000,000 2753
ICIC! Prudential Mutual Fund- ICIC! Prudential FMP Series 73
369 Days Plan T Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 20,000,000 218.5
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudential FMP Series 74
- 367 Days Plan D Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 40,000,000 434.5
ICICt Prudential Mutual Fund- ICICI Prudential FMP Series 74
368 Days Plan J Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 20,000,000 216.0
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund- ICICI Prudential FMP Series 74
369 Days Plan K Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 15,000,000 161.5
ICICi Prudential Mutual Fund - ICIC1 Prudential FMP Series 74
370 Days Plan S Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 20,000,000 214.2
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudential FMP Series 74
- 368 Days Plan B Direct Plan Cumulative - - - - 30,000,000 3259
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Fmp Series 145 Direct-Growth

- “ - - 35,000,000 385.5
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 155 Direct-Growth

- - - - 25,000,000 273.0
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 156 Direct - Growth

- - - - 25,000,000 2725
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 157 Direct - Growth

- - - - 20,000,000 217.7
Kotak Mutual Fund - Kotak FMP Series 158 Direct - Growth

- - - - 20,000,000 2174
L&T Mutual Fund-L&T FMP Series 10- Plan T - Growth - - - - 25,000,000 2729
Reliance Mutual Fund-Refiance Yearly Interval Fund -Series 1-
Direct Plan-Growth Plan - - 22,980,898 304.3 22,980,898 2784
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXVI -
Series 9 - Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 50,000,000 545.4
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01, 2015
Quantity X in Million Quantity T in Million Quantity % in Million
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Yearly interval Fund - Series
6 -Direct Growth Plan - - - - 45,929,287 5449
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXVI-
Series-20-Direct Plan-Growth Plan - - - - 25,000,000 2701
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Yearly Interval Fund-Series 8
Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 18,423,501 2142
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXVi-
Series-31-Direct Plan-Growth Plan - - - - 30,000,000 3209
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Yearly Interval Fund - Series
9 - Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 18,395,541 2133
Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund -XXVI-
Series 12-Direct Plan Growth Plan - - - - 25,000,000 2726
Religare Invesco Mutual Fund - Religare Invesco FMP-Series
23-Plan O (370 Days) - Direct Plan Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2133
Religare invesco Mutual Fund - Religare invesco FMP-Series
23-Plan H (370 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 10,000,000 109.0
Religare Invesco Mutual Fund - Religare invesco FMP-Series
23-Plan L (370 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 21,000,000 2278
Religare Invesco Mutual Fund - Religare Invesco FMP-Series
23-Plan N (367 Days)-Direct Plan Growth - - - - 20,000,000 2143
- 304.3 7,503.7
Units of Face Value of ¥ 100 each {ully paid
ICIC1 Prudential Mutual Fund-ICICI Prudential Money Market
Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - - - 5,015,403 970.5
- - 970.5
Units of Face Value of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid
Axis Mutual Fund-Axis Liquid Fund-Direct Growth 110,943 200.1 - - - -
Axis Mutual Fund - Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Plan Growth-
CFDG - - - - 483,934 750.6
BNP Paribas Mutual Fund- BNP Paribas Overnight Fund-
Direct Plan Growth Option - - 214,785 500.5 348,489 750.6
Baroda Pioneer Mutual Fund -Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund
Plan B-Growth 213,966 400.1 863,209 1,502.5 467,631 750.7
DSP BlackRock Mutual Fund-DSP BlackRock Liquidity Fund-
Direct Plan-Growth 107,519 250.1 - - 249,960 500.5
Indiabulls Mutua! Fund-Indiabufls Liguid Fund-Direct Plan
Growth - - 508,251 750.7 367,372 500.2
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Floater Short Term - Direct Plan -
Growth 187,362 500.1 334,131 830.8 - -
Kotak Mutual Fund-Kotak Liquid Scheme Plan A-Direct Plan-
Growth - - - - 88,128 250.3
LIC Mutual Fund-LIC MF Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 110,235 325.1 - - - -
Principal Mutual Fund-Principal Cash Management Fund-
Direct Plan Growth - - - - 735,345 1,001.0
Reliance Mutual Fund-Reliance Liquid Fund - Cash Plan -
Direct Growth Plan - - 716,594 1,752.4 2,239,411 5,048.2
SBI Mutual Fund-SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Direct Plan -
Growth - - - - 323,324 1,000.1
1,675.5 5,336.9 10,652.2
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NOTE : 12
INVESTMENTS (CURRENT)

As at
March 31

2017

As at
March 31,2016

As at

April 01, 2015

Quantity

T in Million

Quantity

T in Million

Quantity

% in Million

Investment in Debentures
Unquoted
Sun Speciality Chemicals Pvt Ltd

0% Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100 each
fully paid

Quoted

Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd - 9.7%
Secured Redeemable NCD 23DC18
Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each fully paid

IDFC PP 18/2014 -0% IDFC BS 09-04-2015
Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each fully paid

Commercial Paper

Unquoted
Barclays Investment & Loans (India) Ltd- 193D CP 04SP15
Units of Face Value of ¥ 500,000 each fully paid

Barcfays Investment & Loans (India) Lid- 90D CP 05MAY16

Units of Face Value of ¥ 500,000 each fully paid

JM Financial Products Ltd- 180D CP 17AG15
Units of Face Value of T 500,000 each fully paid

1,675.5

1,156,500

106.0

1,000

488.8

488.8

6,236.0

250

750

2525

743.6

600

500

996.1

285.7

238.6

524.3

20,5468

* Investments in mutual funds have been fair valued at closing
net asset value (NAV).

Aggregate book value (carrying value) of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment

1,675.5

6,236.0

996.1
996.1
19,550.7
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TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less : Allowance for doubtiul debts (expected credit loss allowance)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks
Cash on hand

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN DISCLOSED IN NOTE 14 ABOVE
Deposit accounts

LOANS (CURRENT)

Loans to employees / other parties (*)

Secured, considered good

Unsecured considered good
Loans 1o related parties - unsecured, considered good (Refer Note 47)(*)
Receivable on account of assets given under finance lease - secured,
considered good (Refer Notes 45 and 55)
(*} inciudes loans granted for purpose of their business

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Interest accrued
Insurance claim receivables

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Export incentive receivable

Prepaid expenses

Advances for supply of goods and services
Balances with government authorities
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T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
5,926.7 38248 5,370.6
148.1 139.1 6.6
6,074.8 3,963.9 5,377.2
(148.1) (139.1) (6.6)
5,926.7 3,824.8 5,370.6
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
31.5 9.1 7.7
1.8 1.3 0.7
33.3 10.4 8.4
T Miilion
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
26.2 32.9 86.5
26.2 32.9 86.5
¥ Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
- 400.0 1,150.0
9,584.9 9,924.7 6,359.0
- 8,020.0 -
- 10.6 10.0
9,584.9 18,355.3 7,519.0
¥ Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at Aprii 01,
2017 2016 2015
20.6 27.7 14.9
11.7 13.6 8.7
32.3 41.3 23.6
Z Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
- 1.2 -
65.2 8.4 13.4
450.9 263.8 256.7
1,450.7 368.3 766.7
1,966.8 641.7 1,036.8
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As at March 31, As at March 31, As at Aprit 01,
2017 2016 2015
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 500.0 500.0 500.0
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (refer note 42) 0.5 0.5 0.5
0.5 0.5 0.5
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
Other Equity
Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in other equity balance
A. Equity component of compound financial instrument 141.2 141.2 141.2
B. Reserves and surplus
Capital reserve 185,654.3 185,654.3 185,654.3
Debenture redemption reserve 2,083.4 1,041.7 -
Capital redemption reserve (X 10,000) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retained earnings 9,660.7 5,691.2 556.2
197,398.4 192,387.2 186,210.5
C. Items of other comprehensive income(OCH)
Foreign currency translation reserve (0.1) (0.0) -
197,539.5 192,528.4 186,351.7

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve - Capital reserve was created pursuant to the scheme of arrangement in the nature of spin off and transfer of domestic formulation undertaking of the
holding company to the Company as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat and Hon'ble High Court of Bombay.

Debenture redemption reserve - The Group is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the
purpose of redemption of debentures.

Capital redemption reserve - This reserve was created on redemption of preference shares and is a non distributable reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve - Exchange differences relating to the translation of the result and net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e.%) are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income and accumulated in foreign currency

translation reserve. Exchange difference in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at Aprit 01,
2017 2016 2015
BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)
Unsecured
Redeemable non-convertible debentures (refer note 46) 5,000.0 10,000.0 -
Liability component of compound financial instrument
Redeemable preference shares - from related party (refer note 46) 358.8 328.9 301.5
5,358.8 10,328.9 301.5
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Employee benefits (refer note 44) 556.7 247.7 143.0
556.7 247.7 143.0
T Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
BORROWINGS (CURRENT)
Loans repayable on demand
From banks
Unsecured - 67.0 87.4
From others
Unsecured 1,001.5 - -
Other loans
Commercial paper
Unsecured 2,982.4 - -
3,983.9 67.0 87.4
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24 TRADE PAYABLES

25

26

27

Dues to micro and small enterprises
Others

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)
Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 46)
Interest accrued
Security deposits
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment
Temporary overdrawn bank balance as per books

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory remittances

Advances from customers

PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Employee benefits (refer note 44)
Product returns (refer note 48)
Others (refer note 48)
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% Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
28.0 24.0 15.6
5,236.5 3,770.6 3,438.5
5,264.5 3,794.6 3,455.1
< Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at Aprit 01,
2017 2016 2015
5,000.0 - -
215.3 217.0 -
20.3 81.9 79.4
499.7 825.4 2609
74.2 __87.0 43
5,809.5 1,211.3 344.6
% Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
438.5 329.3 348.4
7.2 6.6 3.7
445.7 3359 352.1
X Million
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 01,
2017 2016 2015
223.5 185.8 108.8
1,751.5 1,575.4 1,391.1
387.8 29.5 676.5
2,362.8 1,790.7 2,176.4
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products (including excise duty)
Other operating revenues

OTHER INCOME

Interest income on:
Bank deposits at amortised cost
Loans at amortised cost
Investments in debt instruments at amortised cost
Investments in debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
Others
Gain on sale of financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss
Net Gain arising on financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Insurance claims
Lease rental and hire charges
Miscellaneous income

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw Materials and Packing Materials
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Inventories acquired on acquisition (Refer Note 60)
Purchases during the year
Inventories at the end of the year

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-
TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Inventories at the end of the year

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expense

FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense for financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Interest expense others
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Year ended
March 31, 2017

T Million
Year ended
March 31, 2016

52,873.9 46,936.3
355.0 156.7
53,228.9 47,093.0
T Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

3.5

2.1
789.5 1,945.4
54.4 63.6
705 53.3
717.4 747.5
277.4 108.3
337.9 643.8
10.9 38.4
20.5 165.0
2.6 5.0
3.3 2.1
2,286.5 3,775.9

T Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

2,192.7 2,878.7
307.7 -
9,650.6 7,503.1
(2,760.3) (2,192.7)
9,390.7 8,189.1
% Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

3,248.8 3,406.8
{2,540.1) (3,248.8)
708.7 158.0
T Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

4,544.7 4,138.0
240.1 193.6
75.9 66.6
4,860.7 4,398.2
¥ Million

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1,470.5 2451
7.5 4.2
1,478.0 249.3
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34 OTHER EXPENSES

35

Consumption of material, stores and spare pans
Conversion and other manufacturing charges
Power and fuel
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Selling and distribution
Commission on sales
Repairs and maintenance
Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Freight outward and handling charges
Communication
Allowance for doubtful debts
Professional, legal and consultancy
Excise duty on sales
Donation
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net
(Decrease) / increase of excise duty on inventories
Net {gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions
Payments to auditors (net of input credit, where applicable)
For audit
For other services
Reimbursement of expenses
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses

Reconciliation of Income tax expense
Profit before tax
Enacted income tax rate in India (%) #

Income tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate
Effect of expenses that are not deductible

Effect of deduction claimed under chapter V! A of income tax act 1961

Effect of income that is exempt from tax

Effect of unused tax fosses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets
Utilisation of earlier years tax losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised

Investment allowance u/s 32AC of Income Tax Act 1961
Tax Payable under MAT

Income tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

Year ended
March 31, 2017

T Million
Year ended
March 31, 2016

273.6 193.0
634.5 653.6
300.3 217.4
40.4 42.2
13.6 23.6
808 71.5
1,822.0 1,572.0
44.9 - 407
237.3 235.3
3245 289.3
1,959.4 1,787.2
156.3 156.9
45.9 49.6
9.0 132.5
558.8 370.8
1,610.6 1,175.7
4.3 13.8

3.3 1.6
46.7 (23.0)
(30.3) 70.4
3.3 28

1.6 1.4

0.1 0.2

- 217.4

203.6 -
1,572.2 1,073.9
9,916.7 8,369.8

_ Z Million
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

9,677.7 7,876.9
34.608% 34.608%
3,349.3 2,726.0
5,372.6 5,373.8
(8,487.2) (6,309.4)
(36.9) 21.7)
47 -
(135.1) (142.4)
(60.7) (5.7)
2,100.0 -
2,106.7 1,620.6

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.608% at which the Group is liable to pay tax on taxable income

under the Income Tax Law.
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1.

General information

Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited ("the Parent Company") is a public limited company
incorporated and domiciled in India and is listed in the Wholesale - Debt segment of BSE
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal place of business is disclosed in
the introduction to the annual report. The Company is in the business of developing,
manufacturing, and marketing a wide range of branded and generic pharmaceutical
formulations. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the
Group”) has various manufacturing locations of its own, while it also engages in trading
and other incidental activities.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2017 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016. Further, the Group
has prepared the opening consolidated balance sheet as at April 01, 2015 (the transition
date) in accordance with Ind AS (Refer Note 59).

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial
statements, the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for: (i) certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period; and (ii) defined benefit plans — plan assets that are measured at

fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. -

Historical cost is generaily based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:
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o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

a. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
Company, and its subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 36. Control exists when the parent has
power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power
is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those
which significantly affect the entity's returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
control commences until the date control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and
intra-Group balances, transactions including unrealised gain / loss from such transactions and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated upon
consolidation. These financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting
policies in use at the Group.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed off the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/ permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in a joint venture.
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Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
entities but is not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for
in accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Distributions received from an associate or a joint
venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment. The carrying value of the Group’s
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
losses. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds its
interest in that associate or joint venture, the carrying amount of that interest (including any
long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has obligations or has made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture and discontinues from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale.

The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

b. Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has

determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of classifications of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.
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¢. Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations
that occurred on or after April 01, 2015. The acquisition date is generally the date on which
control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date
and determining whether control is transferred from one party to another. Control exists when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the entity. In assessing control,
potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The Group measures
goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the consideration transferred,
including the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), less the net
recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. When the fair
value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration
transferred, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the OCI and accumulates
the same in equity as Capital Reserve where there exists clear evidence of the underlying
reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase else the gain is
directly recognised in equity as Capital Reserve. Consideration transferred includes the fair
values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred also includes
the fair value of any contingent consideration. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case maybe. The
subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity-is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at fair value
at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settiement of pre-
existing relationships.

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a
liability represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be
measured reliably. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controliing interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder's fees, legal fees, due
diligence fees and other professional and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

d. Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in

currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are translated at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
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in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items
or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous period are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for:

¢ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Foreign operations

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of Group’s foreign operations, are translated to the Indian Rupees at exchange rates
at the end of each reporting period. The income and expenses of such foreign operations are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Resulting foreign currency
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) and presented within equity
as part of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (and attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). When a foreign operation is disposed off, the relevant amount in the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
through acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

f. Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated in consolidated balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not
depreciated. :
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Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the

same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and is recognised in profit or loss.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets
are measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or
the fair value of either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in
which case the acquired asset is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
Capital work-in-progress) less their residual values on straight-line method over their useful
lives as indicated in Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over period of the lease agreement or the useful life,
whichever is shorter. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category No. of Years
Leasehold land 90-196
Factory buildings 10-30

Other buildings 10-60

Plant and equipment 3-25
Vehicles 5-10

Office equipment 2-5
Furniture and fixtures - 10

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors and which is an
integral part of a tangible asset, including consultancy charges for implementing the software,
is capitalised as part of the related tangible asset. Subsequent costs associated with
maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. The capitalised costs are
amortised over the lower of the estimated useful life of the software and the remaining useful
life of the tangible fixed asset.
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g. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred, together with the amount of non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, over the fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable net
assets acquired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. The goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, for the purpose of impairment testing, allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated, the goodwill associated
with the disposed cash-generating unit is included in the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit when determining the gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and that have finite useful lives are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when they increase the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments and milestones for
in-licensed products, compounds and intellectual property are capitalised since the probability
of expected future economic benefits criterion is always considered to be satisfied for
separately acquired intangible assets.

Acquired research and development intangible assets which are under development, are
recognised as In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D”). IPR&D assets are
not amortised, but evaluated for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment charge on such
IPR&D assets is recognised in profit or loss. Intangible assets relating to products under
development, intangible assets not available for use and intangible assets having indefinite
useful life are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the assets may be impaired. All other intangible assets are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The consideration for acquisition of intangible asset which is based on reaching specific
milestone that are dependent on the Group’s future activity is recognised only when the
activity requiring the payment is performed.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible

assets. Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortised from the date they are
available for use.

The estimated useful lives for Product related intangibles, Trademarks, Designs and Other
intangibles ranges from 5 to 12 years.

The estimated useful life and the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite useful

life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognised either on their disposal or where no future economic
benefits are expected from their use. Gain or loss arising on such de-recognition is
recognised in profit or loss, and are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of respective intangible assets as on the date of de-
recognition.

For transition to Ind As; the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2015 i.e. transition date, measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The carrying amounts of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

i. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
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All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost
¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other Income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognises interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OClI is reclassified from the equity
to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
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FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCl. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair vaiue changes
on the instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are
recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even
on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Group has transferred its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit
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or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right tQ receive cash or another financial asset
e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the Group uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

"Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.
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Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the
Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 applies or is held for trading or is designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term or on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. This category also includes derivative entered
into by the Group that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For non-held-for-trading financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised in profit or loss. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit or
loss. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the consohdated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost in subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of
financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based
on the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item in the profit or loss.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the profit or loss.
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value and if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the
parent when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

j- Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
lessee is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
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reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are also recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Group's expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is aliocated to accounting periods so as to

reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

k. Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials and packing materials, work-in-progress, stock-in-
trade and finished goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost of raw
materials and packing materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of
work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct material, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, Iess the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

I. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management. '
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m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (lega!l or constructive) as
a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has a detailed formal restructuring
plan and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditure arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring
and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as
provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefit expected to be received from the contract.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the Company, or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

n. Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods include excise duty and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is net of returns, sales tax, chargebacks,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of goods, it is probable that
the economic benefit will flow to the Group, the associated costs and possible return of goods
can be estimated reliably, there is neither continuing management involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.
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Provisions for applicable discounts are estimated and provided for in the year of sales and
recorded as reduction of revenue.

Sales Returns

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns
concurrent with the recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance is
based on the Company’s estimate of expected sales returns. With respect to established
products, the Company considers its historical experience of sales returns, levels of inventory
in the distribution channel, estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, price changes of
competitive products, and the introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each of
these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With respect to new products
introduced by the Company, such products have historically been either extensions of an
existing line of product where the Company has historical experience or in therapeutic
categories where established products exist and are sold either by the Company or the
Company’s competitors.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the consolidated statement profit and ioss
as the underlying services are performed. Upfront non-refundable payments received are
deferred and recognised as revenue over the expected period over which the related services
are expected to be performed.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition. ‘

o. Government grants

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that
the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet

and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

p- Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
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government bonds. The currency and term of the government bonds shall be consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. The current
service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the profit or loss as employee benefits
expense, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements. Past service costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in profit or
loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to OCI in the period in which they arise and is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense at the earlier of the date when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognises costs for a

restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Short-term and Other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
and casual leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
previous periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

Defined contribution plans

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and
when the services are received from the employees entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services
acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period
until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is
remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the year.

g. Income tax

Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in
- equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively. Current tax is
the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
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in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary
differences that arise on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits and taxable
temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if
there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends
to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for
the Company and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part
of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax
liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

r. Earnings per share

The Parent Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all stock options granted to
employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted
retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues

including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of
Directors.

s. Recent Accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendment to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash
flows’. This amendment is in accordance with the recent amendments made by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’. The amendment is
applicable to the Company from April 01, 2017.

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion
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of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for
liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the
financial statements is being evaluated.
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NOTE : 36

a) List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements is as under:

Name of Subsidiaries

Country of
incorporation

Proportion of ownership interest for the year ended

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 01, 2015
Parent Company
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
Direct Subsidiaries
1 Universal Enterprises Private Limited india 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
2 Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limited (Refer Note b) India 100.00% -
3 Silverstreet Developers LLP (Refer Note d) India - - 95.00%
Name of Associates
4 Generic Solar Power LLP India 28.76% 28.76% -
5 Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP India 40.61% - -
6 Sun Pharma Holdings (Refer Note e) Mauritius 0.01% 0.01% -

b} Incorporated during the year ended March 31, 2017.

c) Disclosures mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 Schedule iit Parl Il by way of additionat information is given in Annexure A.

d) The Group has sold its investment in Silverstreet Developers LLP w.e.l. Aprit 01, 2015

e) Significant influence through representation on the board of directors of the investee which gives the Parent Company power lo participate in the financial and

operating policy decisions of the investee.

NOTE : 37
A CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) ¥ in Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
i Contingent liabilities
Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respeci to :
income tax 10,686.8 11,888.9 15,619.0
Excise duty 3,643.8 1.009.2 459.8
Environment cess 233 233 233
Footnote:
Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinabie only on
receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various forums / authorities.
ii Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of advances]. 502.7 9135 1035.5
Letters of credit for imports 4.2 1,0659 382.6
B Guarantees given by the bankers on behaif of the Group {(Refer Nole 56) 251.2 92.1 95.6
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NOTE : 38
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
X in Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments
In Debentures/Bonds (Unguoted) - 106.0 97.1
In Commercial paper - 488.8 524.3
Trade Receivables 5,926.7 3,824.8 5,370.6
Cash and cash equivalents 333 10.4 8.4
Bank balances other than above 26.2 32.9 86.5
Loans to employees / other parties 9,588.1 10,334.4 7,520.3
Loans to related parties - 8,020.0 -
Receivable on account of assets given under finance - 389.3 399.3
lease
Other Financial Assets
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 4.9 - -
interest accrued 20.6 27.7 63.8
Security Deposits 150.8 127.9 117.3
Insurance claim receivables 11.7 13.6 8.7
At Fair value through profit or loss (Level 1)
Investments
In Mutual funds 1,675.5 5,641.2 19,026.4
At Fair value through other comprehensive income
{Level 1)
Investments
In Debentures/Bonds (Quoted) 654.8 644.4 2,671.1
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 14,342.7 10,395.9 388.9
Trade Payables 5,264.5 3,794.6 3,455.1
Interest accrued 215.3 217.0 -
Security deposits 20.3 81.9 79.4
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 499.7 825.4 260.9
Temporary overdrawn bank balance as per books 74.2 87.0 4.3

The financial instruments are categorized based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date.

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities carried as amortised cost approximates

their fair value.
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NOTE : 39
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are:
- to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn; and
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders through oplimisation of debts and equity balance.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the financial statements. The Group's objective for capital management is o
maintain an optimum overall financial structure.

T in Mitlion

As at As at As at

March 31,2017 { March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015

{i) Debt equity ratio

Debt {includes non-current, current borrowings and current maturities of long term debt) 14,342.7 10,395.9 388.9

Less : Cash and cash equivalents 333 10.4 B4

Net debt 14.309.4 10.385.5 380.5

Total equity (excluding capital reserve) 11,885.7 6.874.6 697.9

Net debt to equity ratio 1.2 1.5 05
T in Mitlion

(it} Dividend on equity shares paid during the year For the year For the year

March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016

Dividend on equily shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2016 of T 40,000 (previous year for year ended March 31, 2015 ¥ Nil) per fully paid share 2,000.0 -
Dividend distribution tax on above

407.2 -
Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 25, 2017 have recommended payment of linal dividend of ¥40,000.0 per share of face
value of ¢ 10 each for the year ended March 31, 2017. The same amounts to ¥ 2,000.0 Million.
This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting and hence not recognised as
liability.

¥ in Mitlion

{iti) Dividend on Preference shares paid during the year For the year For the year

March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016

Dividend on Preference shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2016 of ¥ 10 (previous year for year ended March 31, 2015 ¥ Nil) per fully paid preference
share

400 -
Dividend distribution tax on above

8.1 -

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 25, 2017 have recommended payment of fina! dividend of ¥ 10 per preference share of
face value of £100 each for the year ended March 31, 2017. The same amounts to T 40.0 Million.

This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting and hence not recognised as
- liability.

NOTE : 40
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify
and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to moniior such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are
reviewed reqularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from
customers, toans and investments. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit imits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The Group has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix
takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers.
investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Group does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

Tin Million
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprii 01, 2015

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the expected credit loss
Trade receivables
less than 180 days

59128 3,806.4 5,3340
180 - 365 days 18.8 56.8 0.8
beyond 365 days 143.2 100.7 42.3
Totai 6,074.8 3,963.9 5377.2
¢ in Miltion
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

Movement in the expecled credil loss allowance on trade receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year

1391 6.6
Addition 9.0 132.5
Bal, at the end of the year 148.1 139.1

Concentration of revenues from one of the cuslomers of the Group were substantial for the year ended March 31, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2016. The said customer also represented substantial
portion ol the trade receivables as at March 31, 2017, as at March 31, 2016 and as at April 01, 2015.
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Liquiditv risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk 1o the Group's reputation.

The Group had unutilised working capital lines from banks of ¥ 3,400.0 Milfion as on March 31,2017, ¥ 2,333.0 Million as on March 31, 2016, ¥ 2,312.6 Million as on Aprit 01, 2015

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of undiscounted significant financiat liabilities :

¥ in Million
Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2017
Non derivative
Preference share capital - 4000 - 400.0
Cther Borrowings* 9,001.5 5,000.00 - 14,001.5
Trade payables 5,264.5 - - 5.264.5
Other financial liabilities 809.5 - - 809.5
15,075.5 5,400.0 - 204755
Includes ¥ 5,000.0 Million, disclosed as current maturities of long term debt grouped in ‘other financial liabilities' in the financial statements
2 in Mitlion
Less than 1 year 1 - Jyears More than 3 years As at
March 31, 2016
Non derivative
Pretference share capital - 400.0 - 400.0
Borrowings 67.00 10,000.00 - 10,067.0
Trade payables 3.794.6 - - 3.794.6
Other financial liabilities 12113 - - 1.211.3
50729 10,400.0 - 154729
 in Million
Less than 1 vear 1-3vyears More than 3 years As at
April 01, 2015
Non derivative
Preference share capital - - 400.0 400.0
Borrowings 87.4 - - 874
Trade payables 3.455.1 - - 3.455.1
Otner financial fiabilities 3446 - - 344.6
3,867.1 - 400.0 4.287.1

Market risk
M:r::t rrissk is the risk of loss of luture eamings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and
commodity prices) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market rigk is attributable 1o all market risk-sensitive financial instruments,
all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of
its investments. Thus, the Group’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange risk
The Group's foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in US Dollars, Euros and Israeli new shekel). As a result, if the value of the Indian
rupee appreciates relative to these loreign currencies, the Group's revenues and expenses measured in Indian rupees may decrease or increase and vice-versa. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee
and these foreign currencies have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to lfucluate substantially in the future.
a) The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary items are as foltows:

Amount in Million

As at
March 31, 2017
uso EUR iLS Others
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 3.1 0.3 0.3 0.0
3.1 0.3 0.3 0.0
As at
March 31, 2016
Usob EUR s Others
Financial fiabilities
Trade payables 2.3 0.4 * 00 -
~ £43.081
2.3 04 0.0 -
As at
April 01, 2015
UsD EUR iLs Others
Financial assets
Trade receivables 0.7 - - -
9.7 - - -
Financial iabilities
Trade payables 58 0.1 - -
5.8 0.1 - -

b) Sensitivity

For the years ended March 31,2017, March 31, 2016 and April 01, 2015, every 5% strengthening in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and the respective major currencies for the above mentioned
financial assetsfliabilities would decrease Group's profit and equity by approximately ¥ 10.7 Million, ¥ 9.1 Million and ¥ 16.3 Million respectively. A 5% weakening of the Indian Rupee and the respective major
currencies would lead to an equal but opposite effect.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

interest rate risk

The Group has loan facilities on floating interest rate, which exposes the Group to risk of changes in interest rales. The Group's treasury department monitors the interest rate movement and manages the
interest rate risk by evaluating interest rate swap etc. based on the market / risk perception. As at the balance sheet dates the Group has not entered into any such derivatives contracts

For the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, every 50 basis point decrease in the floating interest rate component applicable to its loans and borrowings would increase the Group’s profit by
approximately ¥ Nit and ¥ 0.3 Million respectively. A 50 basis point increase in floating interest rate would have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Commodity rate risk

Exposure to market risk with respect to commeodity prices primarily arises from the Group's purchases and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients, including the raw malerial components for such active
pharmaceutical ingredients. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Group’s raw materials generally fluctuate in line with commodity
cycles, although the prices of raw materials used in the Group's active pharmaceutical ingredients business are generally more volatile. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Group’s cost of

revenues. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. As of March 31, 2017, the Group had not entered into any material derivative
contracts 10 hedge exposure to fluctuations in commaodity prices.
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NOTE : 41
GOODWILL:

Goodwill acquired in business combination is aflocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected 1o benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has

been allocated as follows:

3 in Million
i} Goodwill in respect of: As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Sun Pharmaceutical Medicare Limiled 1.0 - -
Total 1.0 -
i) Below is the reconciliation of the carrving amount of goodwiil: ¥ in Million
As at As at
March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 |
Openina balance - -
Add: Due 1o acquisitions during the vear 1.0 -
Closing balance 1.0 -

NOTE : 42
DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SHARE CAPITAL

A Right, Preference and restrictions attached to shares and repayment of capital

The Parent Company has two classes of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of € 10 per share and 10% Redeemable Non cumulative Preference Shares having par value of ¥ 100
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. Holder of Preference shares are not entitled lo any voting rights but enjoy preferential rights in respect of payments of dividend,
if any, and repayment of capital, if any. The Preference Shares shall be redeemed at par, at the end of five years from the date of allotment.

B EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at

As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01,2015
No. of shares ¥ in Mitlion No. of shares Tin Miflion No. of shares Lin Miltion
Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 50,000 05 50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount cutstanding at the
beainnina and at the end of reportina period
Opening balance carried over as closing balance 50,000 0.5 50,000 0.5 50,000 05
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Name of equity shareholders No. of shares % of hotding % of holding % of holding
held No. of shares held No. of shares held
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (Holding Company) 50,000 100% 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
C PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL *
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 01,2015
No. of shares T in Million No. of shares % in Miflion No. of shares T in Million
Authorised Share Capital
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the
beainnina and at the end of reportina period
Opening balance carried over as closing balance 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0 4,000,000 400.0
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Name of preference shareholders No. of shares % of holding % of holding % of holding
held No. of shares held No. of shares heid
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (Holding Company) 4,000,000 100% 4,000,000 100% 4,000,000 100%

* 10% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

40,00,000 (upto March 31, 2016: 40,00,000: upto April 01, 2015: 40,00,000) 10% non-convertible, non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of T 100 each have been ailotted, pursuant to scheme
of amalgamation, without payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

NOTE: 43
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Numerator used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share (T in Million)
Profit for the year (¥ in Million) 7.5735 6,256.3
Less: Preference dividend and dividend tax (¥ in Miltion) 48.1 -
Profit for the year (¥ in Million) - used as numerator for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 75254 6,256.3
Weighted average number of shares used in compuling basic and diluted earnings per share 50,000.0 50,000.0
Nominat value per share (in ) 10.0 10.0
Basic and Diluted eamings per share (in ) 150,508 125,126
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NOTE : 44
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
Defined contribution plan
Contributions are made to Regional Provident Fund {RPF), Family Pension Fund, Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which
covers ali regular employees. While both the employees and the Company make predetermined contributions to the Provident Fund and ESIC,
contribution to the Family Pension Fund and other Statutory Funds are made only by the Company. The contributions are normally based on a certain
percentage of the employee’s salary. Amount recognised as expense in respect of these defined contribution plans, aggregate to ¥ 165.1 Million
{Previous year T 142.1 Million)

Tin Million

Year ended

March 31, 2016

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund 161.5 138.6
Contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI) 3.5 35
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund (previous year: T 22,356) 0.1 0.0

Defined benefit plan

In respect of Gratuity, a defined benelit plan, contributions are made to LIC's Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. it is governed by the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employment on
completion of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary al the time
of retirement/termination age. Provision for Gratuity is based on actuaria! valuation done by an independent actuary as at the year end. Eagch year, the
parent company and Indian subsidiaries reviews the level of funding in gratuity fund. The parent Company and Indian subsidiaries decides its
contribution based on the results of its annual review. The parent Company and indian subsidiaries aims to keep annual contributions relatively stable
at a level such that the fund assets meets the requirements of gratuity payments in short to medium term.

These plans typically expose the Parent Company and indian subsidiaries to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk
and salary risk.

i) Investiment risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market
yields on government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. However,
the risk is partiaily mitigated by investment in LIC managed fund.

ii} Interest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return
on the plan’s debt investments.

iif)y Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

iv) Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Other fong term benefit plan

Actuarial Valuation for Compensated Absences is done as at the year end and the provision is made as per Company rules with corresponding charge
to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss amounting o ¥ 168.3 Million (Previous Year ¥ 151.4 Million) and it covers all regular employees.
Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation.

Obligation in respect of defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plans are actuarially determined as at the year end using the
'Projected Unit Credit’ method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions relating to defined benefit obligation are recognised in other

comprehensive income whereas gains and losses in respect of other long term employee benefit plans are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

T in Mitlion
Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)

Expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(Refer Note 32)
Current service cost 63.2 45.4
Interest cost 40.8 28.8
Expected return on plan assets (31.8) {23.7)
Expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss 72.2 50.5
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised in other
comprehensive income
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation 164.2 123.6
Actuarial gain on plan assets (0.6) (1.8)
Expense/(income) charged to other comprehensive income 163.6 121.8
Reconciliation of defined-benefit obligations
Obligation as at the beginning of the year 539.4 363.1
Current service cost 63.2 45.4
Interest cost 40.8 28.8
Liability fransferred in pursuant to acquisition 19.6 -
Benefits paid (30.2) (21.5)
Actuarial Gains on obligations

- due to change in demographic assumptions (45.4) (5.9)

- due to change in financial assumptions 224.7 955

- due to experience {15.1) 34.0
Obligation as at the year end 797.0 539.4
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T in Million
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
Reconciliation of liability/(asset) recognised in the Consolidated
Balance sheet
Present value of commitments (as per Actuarial Valuation) 7970 539.4
Fair value of plan assets {433.8) (403.2)
Net liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance sheet 363.2 136.2
Reconciliation of plan assets
Plan assets as at the beginning of the year 403.2 298.3
Expected return 318 23.7
Actuarial gain 0.6 1.8
Employer's Contribution during the year 12.0 100.9
Assels transferred in pursuant fo acquisition 16.4 -
Benefits paid (30.2) (21.5)
Plan assets as at the year end 433.8 403.2
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) {Funded)
Discount rate In the range of
681% to 7.74% 7.56%
Expected return on plan assets In the range of
6.81% 10 7.74% 7.56%
Expected rate of salary increase In the range of
7.00% to 14.50% 10.00%
Interest rate quarantee N.A. N.A.

Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Morality| Lives Morality (2006
(2006-08) 08)
Withdrawal In the range of
1.00% to 13.50% 8.00%
Retirement Age (years) 58 to 60 58 to 60
T in Million
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Funded)
Sensitivity Analysis:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate (58.8) (44.3)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 68.1 51.8
Delta effect of +1% change in salary escalation rate 62.9 50.1
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate (55.7) (43.7)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover {26.7) (9.5)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 30.6 10.8
Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
31-Mar-18 65.4 38.2
31-Mar-19 66.4 38.6
31-Mar-20 71.9 495
31-Mar-21 69.1 58.1
31-Mar-22 72.2 61.4
Thereafter 3245 435.1
The major categories of plan assets are as under :
Insurer managed funds (Funded with LIC, break-up not available) 433.8 403.2

The contribution expected to be made by the group for gratuity, during
financial year ending March 31, 2018 is T 114.7 Million (Previous year ¥
98.9 Million)
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NOTE : 45
LEASES

a The Group has oblained certain premises for its business operations (including fumiture and fitings therein, as applicable) under operating lease or leave and ficense agreements. These are generally
nol non-canceliable and range between 11 months to 5 years under leave and license or longer for other lease and are renewable by mulual consent on mutually agreeable lerms. The Group has given
refundable interest free security deposits where applicable in accordance with the agreed terms.

b Lease payments are recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” in Note 34

¢ Finance Lease deiails

The Group has entered into linance lease arrangements for giving centain equipments on lease.

The future minimum lease payments and reconciliation of gross investment in the lease and present value of minimum lease payments are as under

T in Million
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31. As at April 01,
2017 2018 2015
Future minimum lease payments
not later than one vear - 46.8 473
later than one vear and not later than five vears - 1658 1711
later than five vears - 7163 757.7
- 9289 976.1
Less: Uneamed finance income - 539.6 576.8
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable - 3893 399.3
not later than one year - 10.6 10.0
fater than one year and not later than five years - 28.3 30.9
later than five years - 350.4 358.4
NOTE: 46
BORROWINGS

Details of long term borrowings and current maturities of long term debt (included under other current financial liabilities)

i ¥10,000.0 Million Rated unsecured listed redeemable non-convertible debentures at a coupon rale of 7.94% p.a. were issued by the Parent Company on December 23, 2015. Foliowing are the details:

Redemption Date of
Particulars Face Value (%) Amount Redemption

{ in Million}
Rated Unsecured Listed Redeemable 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures Series 1,000,000 5,000.0 March 22, 2019
2
Rated Unsecured Listed Redeemable 5,000 Non-Convertible Debentures Series 1,000,000 5,000.0§ December 22, 2017
1 (included in current maturities of long-term debt as at March 31, 2017) '

10% Non-convertible, Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of X 100 each were issued by the company on August 10, 2013 (Redeemable at par on August 09, 2018). Following are the
details.
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As al Aprit 01, 2015
2017 2016

10% Non-convertible, Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
Classified in following two cateqories

Equity component of compound financial instrument 141.2 141.2 141.2
Liabitity Component of Compound Financial Instrument 358.8 328.3 301.5

iii  The Group has not defaulted on repayment of any loans and interest payment thereon during the year.
NOTE : 47 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER ANNEXURE “B*

NOTE: 48

In respect of any present obligation as a result of past event that could lead to a probable outflow of rasources, provisions has been made, which would be required to settle the obfigation. The said provisions
are made as per the best estimate of the management and disclosure as per Ind AS 37 - *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets® has been given below :

¥ in Million
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Product and Consultancy Total Product and Sales Consuitancy Total
Sales related * Charges related * Charges

At the commencement of the year 1,604.9 - 1.604.9 1,391.1 676.5 2.067.6
Add: Provision for the vear 1.315.4 - 1,315.4 854.6 - 854.6
Less: Utilisation / Settiement 781.0 - 781.0 640.8 676.5 1,317.3
At the end of the year 2,139.3 - 2,133.3 1,604.9 - 1,604.9

{*) includes provision for product returns for breakage and expiry
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NOTE : 49
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) {in Million
Bal asat | Recogl din Recognised in Bal as at
April 01, 2016 profit or toss other March 31, 2017
comprehensive
Deferred tax (liabilities) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of property plant and equipment and
capital work in progress as per books of accounts and income tax. (431.7) {80.1) {511.8)
Total Deferred tax (liabilities) {431.7) {80.1) - {511.8)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Allowance for doubtful debts 481 31 - 51.2
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 126.6 60.3 56.6 2435
Others - 10.0 - 100
Total Deferred tax Assets 174.7 734 56.6 304.7
Totat Deferred tax (Liabilities) / Assels {257.0 (6.7} §6.6 (207.1)
Bal; as at | Recognised in Recog din Balance as at
April 01, 2015 profit or loss other March 31, 2016
comprehensive
income
Deferred tax (liabilities) in relation to:
Ditference between written down value of property plant and equipment and {303.6) {128.1) - {431.7)
capital work in progress as per books of accounts and income tax.
Total Deferred tax (liabilities) {303.6) {128.1) - (431.7)
Deferred tax assets in refation to:
Allowance for doubtiul debls 22 45.9 - 48.1
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis 62.8 21.6 42.2 126.6
Total Deferred tax Assels 65.0 67.5 42.2 174.7
Total Deferred tax (Liabilities)/ Assets (238.6) (60.6) 42.2 {257.0)
3 in Miflion
Unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the following : As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Tax losses (Capital in nature) 1,330.0 1,7200 2,130.0
Tax losses 135 - -
Unused tax credits {MAT credit entittement) 2,100.0 - -
3,4435 1,720.0 2.130.0
The unused tax credit will expirg in financial year 2026-27 and unused tax losses wili expire from financial year 2021-22 {0 2023-24

NOTE: 50
DETAILS OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES HELD AND TRANSACTED DURING THE PERIOD NOVEMBER 08, 2016 AND DECEMBER 30, 2016 IS AS UNDER:

All amounts in absolute ¥
Specified bank Others Yotal
notes”
Cash in hand as on November 08, 2016 806,500 1,745,676 2,552,176
Permitted receipts during November 8, 2018 and December 30, 2016 - 1,471,847 1,471,847
Permitted payments during November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 (34,000} {857.698) (891,698)
Amount deposited in banks (772.500) - {772,500)
Cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 2,359.825 2,359,825

* Specified bank notes are currency notes of T 500 and & 1000 discontinued vide notification $.0. 3407(E) dated November 08, 2016

NOTE: 51
Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule Vil thereof: T 71.9 Million (Previous Year ¢ 54.5 Million).

NOTE : 52

The Group does not have any malerial associates warranting a disclosure in respect of individual associates. The Group's share of other comprehensive income is ¥ Nil (March 31, 2016: T Nit) in
respect of such associates. The unrecognised share of loss of ¥ Nil (March 31, 2016: ¥ Nil) in respect of such associates.

NOTE: 53

Pursuant to the declaration executed by the Parent Company (‘Donor’) in favour of an entity controlled by Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP (Associate of the Parent Company), namely Vintage
Power Generation LLP (‘Donee’) on March 31, 2017, the power underaking of the Donor located at Kukshi, Madhya Pradesh has been gifled to the Donee. Accordingly, on and with effect from the
close of business hours on March 31, 2017, all the assets, movable and immovable, tangible and intangible, along with the liabilities pertaining to the said power undertaking stand transferred to and

vested in the Donee as a going concern without consideration. Accordingly, the value of power undertaking gifled to the Donee has been added to the cost of investment of the Parent Company in the
said Associate.

NOTE: 54
The Group holds intangible assets of the Domestic Formulation undertaking transferred to the Group on and with effect from the close of business hours on March 31, 2012, pursuant to the scheme of
arrangement approved by the Hon'ble High Courts, in the nature of spin off and transfer of the said undertaking wilhout consideration by Sun Pharmaceutical tndustries Limited, the Holding Company
are accounted at Fair Value on the basis of an independent Professional Valuer's reporl. The carrying value and remaining amortisation period of such assets is ¥106,628.9 Milion (As at March 31,
2016 ¥ 121,918.0 Million, As at April 01, 2015 ¥ 137,157.8 Million) and 7 years {As at March 31, 2016 8 years, As at April 01, 2015 9 year) respectively. The amortisation of intangible assets over 12
years is arrived at based on the manag W's best of useful lives of such assets after due consideration as regards their expacted usage, the product life cycles, technical and technological

obsolescence, market demand for products, compstition and their expected future benefits to the Group.
NOYE : 55

Receivable on account of assets aiven under finance lease were receivable from a private company in which a director of the Parent Company is director.

NOTE : 56
Deposits with banks are pledaed with banks aqainst Bank Guarantees.

NOTE : 57

The Board has recommended payment of dividend of ¥ 10 per preference share of ¥ 100 each and ¥ 40,000 per equity share of ¥ 10 each for the year ended March 31, 2017 subject to approval of the
members at ensuing Annual Genaeral Meeting.
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NOTE: 58

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparalion of the Group’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affec! the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Useful lives of propertv. plant and equipment and intanaible assets

Propenty, plant and equipment and intangible assels represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful fife and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useiul lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by the
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commaercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the

product or service output of the asset.
Assets and obligations refating to employee benefits

The employment benelit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/
{income) include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

Tax expense [Refer Note 2.2 (a)i

Significant judgements are invalved in determining the pravision for income taxes, if any, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncerain tax positions. Further, significant judgement is
exercised o ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA) that could be recognised based on the probability thal future taxable profits will be available against which DTA can be utifized and amount of
temporary difference in which DTA can not be recognised on want of probable taxable profits.

Provisions [Refer Note 2.2 {m)1

Write down in value of inventories (Refer Note 11)

Contingencies (Refer Note 37)

Business Combinations (Refer Note 60)

NOTE: 59

Since this is the first year, the Parent Company is required to prepare consolidated financial statements, reconciliation aof Total comprehensive income and Equity as compared 1o pervious GAAP is not
applicable

NOTE : 60
BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of plant (Baska, Gujarat) from Unimed Technologies Limited

On March 25, 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of the manufacturing undertaking of Unimed Technologies Limited located at Baska, Gujarat which is engaged in the manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products, on a slump sales basis to continue expansion of the Group's business. The acquisition price of ¥ 9.9 Million was paid in cash.

The following assels and liabilities were recognised as at the date of acquisition (at fair value):

L in Million
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2
Trade receivables 48.0
Inventories 307.7
Other current assets 371.1
Other non-current financial assets 106
Capital work in progress 522.1
Property, plant and equipment 633.5
1,893.2
Liabilities
Trade payables {748.2)
Provision for employee benefits {13.7)
Other current financial liabilities (122.4)
Borrowings (1.000.0)
{1,884.3)
Total identifiable assels at fair value 8.9
Goodwill 1.0
Total purchase price 9.9

The goodwill is tax deductible.
The gross amount of trade receivables acquired have been largely collected.

There has not been any contribution 1o group revenue on account of this business purchase. The business acquired has contributed a net loss of ¥ 13.5 Million from the date of acquisition.

NOTE : 61
SEGMENT REPORTING
The Group has only one reportable segment namely 'Pharmaceuticals'.

NOTE: 62

Figures pertaining 1o the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with group financial statements.
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Ind AS-24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES * ANNEXURE “B*

Country of incorporation

Names of related parties where control exists and description of relationships

1 Holding Company
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited

Names of related parties where there are transactions and description of relationships

2 Fellow Subsidiaries
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries, Inc
Aditya Acquisition Company Limited
Neetnav Real Estate Private Limited

india

United States of America
Israel

india
Sun Pharma Medisales Pvt Ltd. (formerly known as Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company) India
Sun Pharmageutical Industries (Europe) B.V. - Netherlands
Skisen Labs Private Limited india

3 Associates

Sun Pharma Holdings Mauritius
Generic Solar Power LLP india
Trumpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP (w.e.f. March 31, 2017) India

4 Key Managerial Personnel
Abhay A. Gandhi (upto November 10, 2016)
Sudhir V. Valia
Sailesh T. Desai
Kalyansundaram Subramanian (w.e.f. February 13, 2017)
S. Mohanchand Dadha
Rekha Sethi
Naresh Chand Singhal (w.e.f. February 11, 2016)
Dilip S. Shanghvi

5 Enterprise under controf of Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives
Makov Associates Ltd.
Shantilal Shanghvi Foundation
Dadha Pharma Pvi.ltd.

6 Enterprise under significant influence of Key Managerial Personnel or their refatives
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Ltd.
Alfa Infraprop Pvt. Ltd.

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company

Detail of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2017:

¥ Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Purchase of goods 2,3225 2,632.2
Holding Company 23225 2,632.2
Enterprise under controt of key managerial personnel or their relatives (% 5,228) 0.0 -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 17.5 65.8
Holding Company 13.0 €5.8
Fellow Subsidiaries 45 -
Sale of goods 577.6 689.5
Holding Company 563.1 689.5
Fellow Subsidiaries 14.5 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives (March 0.0 0.0
31, 2017 ¥ 33,278 March 31, 2016 T 15,238)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 283.8 0.5
Holding Company 283.8 05
Receiving of Service 865.0 803.1
Holding Company 423.0 424.0
Feliow Subsidiaries 35.1 27.5
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives 141.4 1159
Enterprise under significant influence of key ranagerial personnel or their refatives 265.5 235.7
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Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES "

ANNEXURE “B"
Detail of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2017:
T Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid §1.2 61.2
Holding Company 9.1 3.6
Fellow Subsidiaries 42.1 57.6
Rendering of Service 269.2 104.8
Holding Company 269.2 104.8
Reimbursement of Expenses Received 2.6 B
Holding Company 2.6 -
Finance {(inciuding investment and equity contributions) 3128 217.2
Associates {March 31, 2016 ¥ 28,760) (Refer Note 53) 3125 0.0
Fellow Subsidiaries - 217.2
Loans / Deposit given ’ 9,200.0 35,480.0
Holding Company 9.200.0 35,480.0
Loans received back 17,220.0 27,480.0
Holding Company 17.220.0 27.480.0
Purchase of Investment in Sun Pharma Holding 32,3184 37,994.6
Holding Company 32,318.4 37,9946
Interest Income 116.4 1,187.9
Holding Company 116.4 1,187.9
Interest Expense - 1.0
Fellow Subsidiaries - 1.0
Receipts on account of assets given under finance lease 46.8 47.3
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives 46.8 473
Rent expense 20.0 24.4
Holding Company 19.3 23.8
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.7 0.6
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 52.1 -
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives 52.1 -
Remuneration
Key managerial personnet 47.8 43.4
Director's Sitting Fees 1.3 0.6
Batance Qutstanding as at the end of the year T Million
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 01, 2015
Receivables 268.3 4215 403.7
Holding Company 253.8 - -
Fellow Subsidiaries 145 28.3 1.0
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their relatives - 393.2 402.7
Payable 1,152.7 310.9 435.4
Holding Company 1,002.9 253.2 390.6
Fellow Subsidiaries 49.7 18.6 7.0
Key managerial personnel 7.5 6.1 6.3
Enterprise under control of key managerial personnel or their relatives 63.0 33.0 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personne! or their relatives 29.6 - 315
Loan Given - 8,020.0 -
Holding Company - 8,020.0 -
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their retatives - - -
Deposit Given 87.6 876 87.6
Holding Company 0.1 0.1 0.1
Fellow Subsidiaries 87.5 875 87.5
Deposit Received - 66.2 66.2
Enterprise under significant influence of key managerial personnel or their refatives - 66.2 66.2

Key managerial Personnel who are under the employment of the Group are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term employee benefits
recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employee Benefits' in the consolidated financial statemenls. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts

provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above and there is no share-based payments to key managerial personnel of the
Group.
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Ind AS- 24 - " RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES * ANNEXURE "B"

Disclosure in respect of material transactions with related parties during the year .

T Milion
Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
Purchase of goods
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited 23225 26322
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 13.0 65.8
Sun Pharma Medisales Pvt Ltd. (formerly known as Solrex Pharmaceuticals Company} 4.5 -
Sale of goods
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 563.1 689.5
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sun Phammaceutical Industries Limited 283.8 0.5
Receiving of Service
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 423.0 424.0
Sun Pharma Advanced Research Company Ltd. 265.5 235.7
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid
Neetnav Real Estate Pvt Ltd. 41.5 55.0
Rendering of Service
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 269.2 1048
Reimb of Exp Received
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 2.6 -
Finance (including investment and equity contributions}
Trurnpcard Advisors and Finvest LLP (Refer Note 53) 3125 -
Skisen Labs Private Limited - 217.2
Loans / Deposit given
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 9.200.0 35,480.0
Loans received back
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited 17,219.9 27,480.0
Purchase of investment in Sun Pharma Holding
Sun Pharmaceutical industries Limited 32,318.4 37.994.6
Interest income
Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 116.4 1.187.9
Interest Expense
Neetnav Real Estate Private Limited - 1.0
Receipts on account of assets given under finance lease
Alla Infraprop Pvt. Ltd. 46.8 47.3
Rent expense
Sun Pharmaceutical industries timited 19.3 23.8
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Shantital Shanghvi Foundation 52.1 -
Remuneration
Key managerial Personnel
Abhay A. Gandhi 41.1 43.4
Director's Sitting Fees
Rekha Sethi 0.4 0.2
S. Mohanchand Dadha 0.3 0.2
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SUN PHARMA LABORATORIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Part "B": Associate Companies

¥ In Million

Sr. No Name of Associates

Associate

Generic Solar Power

Trumpcard Advisors

Sun Pharma

LLP and Finvest LLP Holdings
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Date of acquisition 09.10.2015 31.03.2017 03.12.2015
2 Shares of Associates held by the company on the year
end
No. 28,760 NA 50000
Amount of Investment in Associates 0.0 312.5 3.4
Extend of Holding % 28.76% 40.61% 0.01%
3 Description of how there is significant influence NA NA NA
4 Reason why the associate is not consolidated NA NA NA
5 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 0.1 0.4 11.9
audited Balance Sheet
6 Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation 0.0 0.0 2.6
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 0.0 0.0 43877.9
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sun Pharma Laboratories Limited
UDAY V. BALDOTA SUDHIR V. VALIA
Chief Financial Officer Director
Mumbai Mumbai

RACHANA N. KOKAL
Company Secretary
Mumbai
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SAILESH T. DESAI
Director
Mumbai

KALYANASUNDARAM SUBRAMANIAN

Whole time Director & CEO

Montreal

Date: May 25, 2017



